Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Friday, 28th June, 2013 at 9.45 am

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

J Akhtar Hyde Park and Woodhouse;
J Chapman (Chair) - Weetwood;
J Elliott - Morley South;
C Gruen - Bramley and Stanningley;
AlLamb - Wetherby;
P Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon;
K Mitchell - Temple Newsam;
M Rafique - Chapel Allerton;
K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood;
A Sobel - Moortown;
B Urry - Roundhay;

Co-opted Members (Voting) *

* Vacancy - Church Representative (Catholic)

* Vacancy - Church Representative (Church of England)
Ms A Craven - Parent Governor Representative (Primary)
Ms J Ward - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) *

*Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative

* Ms C Raftery - Teacher Representative

* Vacancy - Early Years Representative
* Vacancy - Young Lives Leeds

* Subject to confirmation by the Scrutiny Board — please refer to agenda item 7

Agenda compiled by: Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Guy Close Sandra Newbould
Governance Services Tel: 24 74792

Tel: 24 74356

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting).

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:

No exempt items have been identified on
this agenda.




Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and
notification of substitutes.

MINUTES - 25TH APRIL 2013 (ORDINARY AND
CALL-IN MEETINGS)

To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the
meetings held on 25" April 2013 (Ordinary and
Call-in meetings).

CO-OPTED MEMBERS
To receive a report of the Head of Scrutiny and

Member Development on the appointment of co-
opted members to Scrutiny Boards.

SCRUTINY BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development presenting the Board’s
terms of reference.

15 -
26



Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
9 SOURCES OF WORK AND AREAS OF 27 -
PRIORITY FOR THE SCRUTINY BOARD 176
To receive a report of the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development on potential sources of work
for the Scrutiny Board.
10 2012-13 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT | 177 -
196
To receive a report of the Deputy Chief Executive
and Director of Children’s Services summarising
the quarter 4 performance data relevant to the
Scrutiny Board.
11 WORK SCHEDULE 197 -
202
To consider the Board’s work schedule for the
forthcoming municipal year.
12 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 25™ July 2013 at 9.45am (Pre meeting
for all Board Members at 9.15am)




Agenda Iltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES)
THURSDAY, 25TH APRIL, 2013
PRESENT: Councillor J Chapman in the Chair

Councillors B Gettings, C Gruen,
A Hussain, A Khan, A Lamb, P Latty,
M Rafique, K Renshaw, A Sobel and B Urry

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING):

Mr E A Britten — Church Representative (Catholic)

Ms A Craven — Parent Governor Representative (Primary)
Ms J Ward — Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING):
Ms C Foote — Teacher Representative
Ms C Raftery — Teacher Representative

125 Chair's Opening Remarks
The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the April meeting of Scrutiny Board
(Children and Families). The Chair also thanked Members and officers for
their positive contribution to the Scrutiny Board’s work throughout the 2012/13
municipal year.

126 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.

127 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes

Apologies for absence were submitted by Co-opted Members, Mrs S
Hutchinson, Ms T Kayani and Ms J Morris-Boam.

128 Minutes - 14th March 2013

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 14™ March 2013 be
approved as a correct record.

129 Welfare Reform and Child Poverty

The Chief Officer (Partnership Development and Business Support),
Children’s Services, submitted a report which provided the Scrutiny Board
with additional information in relation to the questions raised at the April
Scrutiny Board meeting when it considered a number of issues in relation to
child poverty and welfare reform.

Page 1



The following information was appended to the report:

Cluster funding 2013/14

Response from the Housing Investment Manager, City Development, in
relation to the programme of building new council homes and how this
tied in with targeting families currently occupying council properties
where there was under occupancy.

The following Executive Member and officers attended the meeting:

Councillor Blake, Executive Member (Children’s Services)

Nigel Richardson, Director of Children’s Services

Steve Carey, Chief Revenues and Benefits Officer

Rob McCartney, Head of Housing Support

Jim Hopkinson, Head of Targeted Services

Andrea Richardson, Head of Early Help Services

Clare Walker, Head of Policy, Planning, Procedures and Information
Simon Darby, Head of Finance, Children’s Services

Sarah Rutty, Headteacher, Bankside Primary School.

The key areas of discussion were:

Update on recent work undertaken by clusters, particularly in relation to
family intervention. New initiatives being established to support those
individuals most in need.

The important role of targeted services and early years.

The key role of governors, particularly in terms of accountability and
ensuring good practice.

A request for Members to be provided with a ward breakdown of the
number of families on the Families First programme in each ward.
Officers agreed to provide the Scrutiny Board with this information.
Confirmation that benefits and welfare advice was to be provided as
part of the Families First programme. All staff to be trained in
signposting families to the right areas for support.

The impact of the benefit cap and under occupancy. In Leeds, the
number of families affected by both of these was less than 50.
Hardship scheme funding of £2.8m approved by the Executive Board
to support families sustain homes.

The need to develop good practice across all schools in relation to
clothing exchange schemes.

Confirmation about the process for the allocation of social housing.

RESOLVED -

(a) That the report and appendices be noted
(b) That the issues raised be used to help inform the Scrutiny Board’s

work programme for 2013/14

(c) That the Director of Children’s Services be requested to provide

regular updates to the Scrutiny Board covering the impact of welfare
reform on children, young people and their families.

Page 2



(Councillors A Khan and A Lamb withdrew from the meeting at the conclusion
of this item at 10.55am.)

130 Recommendation Tracking - Combating Child Poverty and Raising
Aspirations

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which set
out the progress made in responding to the recommendations from the
previous Scrutiny review into Combating Child Poverty and Raising
Aspirations.

The following information was appended to the report:

- Recommendation tracking flowchart

- Recommendation tracking table detailing progress against each
recommendation

- Leeds Children’s Trust Board — update on progress and national
consultation

- Members’ Briefing Note (December 2012) — Advice Service Review
and Commissioning.

The status of recommendations were agreed as follows:

e Recommendation 1 — achieved. Child Poverty Strategy to remain a
regular agenda item for scrutiny

e Recommendation 2 — achieved

e Recommendation 3 — not achieved. Progress made acceptable.
Continue monitoring

e Recommendation 4 — not achieved. Progress made acceptable.
Continue monitoring

e Recommendation 5 — not achieved. Progress made acceptable.
Continue monitoring

e Recommendation 6 — not achieved. Progress made acceptable.
Continue monitoring

e Recommendation 7 — not achieved. Progress made acceptable.
Continue monitoring.

RESOLVED -
(a) That the report and appendices be noted
(b) That the Scrutiny Board approves the status of recommendations as set
out above.
131 Update on recent inspections
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report which provided the

Scrutiny Board with an update on recent external inspection and
assessments.

Page 3



The following Executive Member and officers attended the meeting:

- Councillor Blake, Executive Member (Children’s Services)

- Nigel Richardson, Director of Children’s Services

- Steve Walker, Deputy Director, Safeguarding, Specialist and Targeted
Services

- Rob Murray, Head of Service (Looked After Children).

The main areas of discussion were:

e Update on work undertaken as part of the care planning process.
Members were informed that work had been undertaken with 2
professors at York University resulting in 4 key work streams being
identified as follows:

- Assessment

- Permanency

- Care leavers

- Special guardianship.

e Changes to the Ofsted framework resulting in a single 4 week
inspection programme. The new programme was likely to commence
in September 2013.

e Confirmation that the number of looked after children in Leeds was
1,385. It was agreed to provide the Scrutiny Board with a ward
breakdown of this information.

RESOLVED - That the contents of the report be noted.

(Councillors A Khan and A Lamb re-joined the meeting at 11.05am, during the
consideration of this item.)

132 Work Schedule

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
presented the Executive Board minutes held on 13" March 2013.

RESOLVED - That the minutes of Executive Board held on 13" March 2013,
be noted.

133 Date and Time of Next Meeting

Thursday, 25™ April 2013 at 11.45am (Call In Meeting)

(The meeting concluded at 11.25am.)

Page 4



134

135

136

137

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES)
THURSDAY, 25TH APRIL, 2013
PRESENT: Councillor J Chapman in the Chair

Councillors B Gettings, R Grahame,
C Gruen, A Hussain, A Khan, A Lamb,
P Latty, M Rafique, B Urry and N Walshaw

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING):
Mr E A Britten — Church Representative (Catholic)
Ms J Ward — Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING):
Ms C Foote — Teacher Representative
Ms C Raftery — Teacher Representative

Chair's Opening Remarks

The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the April Scrutiny Board (Children
and Families) Call In meeting.

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests.
Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors K Renshaw and

A Sobel and Co-opted Members, Ms A Craven, Mrs S Hutchinson,

Ms T Kayani and Ms J Morris-Boam. Notification had been received that
Councillor R Grahame was to substitute for Councillor K Renshaw and
Councillor N Walshaw for Councillor A Sobel.

Call In Briefing Paper

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report in relation
to the procedural aspects of the call in process.

Members were advised that the options available to the Scrutiny Board in
respect of this particular called in decision were:

Option 1 — Release the decision for implementation — Having reviewed the
decision, the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) may decide to release it for
implementation. If the Scrutiny Board chooses this option, the decision will be
immediately released for implementation and the decision may not be called
in again.

Page 5



138

Option 2 - Recommend that the decision be reconsidered — The Scrutiny
Board may decide to recommend to the decision maker that the decision be
reconsidered. If the Scrutiny Board chooses this option a report will be
submitted to the decision maker.

RESOLVED - That the report outlining the call in procedures be noted.
Call-in - Delegated Decision D39845 - Allocation of Funding to Clusters

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report, together
with relevant background papers, in relation to Delegated Decision Notice
D39845: Allocation of funding to clusters of schools.

The decision had been called in for review by Councillors A Lamb,
B Anderson, C Fox, P Latty and G Latty on the following grounds:

‘Members have concerns about the formula model selected by the schools’
forum, used to calculate the cluster budgets. Specifically that it will
disproportionately affect some areas of the city over others and that the report
does not contain an adequate explanation as to why this is the best allocation
of resources, and does not provide adequate mitigation for the adverse effect
this will have on some communities.

There are specific concerns about the accountability of the schools’ forum as
a consultative body, particularly as they rejected the recommendations of
officers in the department, leading to concerns about the decision making
process and the accountability and influence of the schools’ forum.

Given the way pupil premium funding is allocated was consideration given to
funding following the pupil in the method established by the pupil premium.

Wider concerns about how representative the schools’ forum is of schools in
the city as a consultative body and as a body that represents all areas of the
city.’

The Scrutiny Board considered the following written evidence:

Copy of completed Call In request form

The Delegated Decision Notification — D39845

Report of the Head of Finance — School Services — 19" March 2013
Agenda and minutes of the Leeds Schools Forum — 17" January 2013
Report of the Director of Children’s Services to the Leeds Schools
Forum — 17" January 2013.

The following Members and officers attended the meeting:
- Councillor Lamb, Signatory to the Call In and Scrutiny Board Member

- Councillor Blake, Executive Member (Children and Families)
- Nigel Richardson, Director of Children’s Services

Page 6



Paul Brennan, Deputy Director of Children’s Services (Learning Skills
and Universal Services)

Simon Darby, Head of Finance, Children’s Services

Ken Morton, Head of Service (Young People and Skills)

Sarah Rutty, Headteacher, Bankside Primary School.

Councillor Lamb presented the reasons for calling in the decision. These
included:

Concern about the formula model used to calculate the cluster
budgets, particularly the impact of families moving across wards and
outside of the local authority area.

Concern that there had been limited opportunity for Members to debate
the chosen formula model.

Suggested remedial action to include funding of clusters for one year.
Scrutiny to introduce measures aimed at monitoring performance of
clusters and enhancing working arrangements with the Schools Forum.

In response to the concerns raised, the following key points were made:

Clarification that the schools forum had not rejected the
recommendations of officers in the department.

Clarification about the percentage of funding to clusters that the
delegated decision represented.

The schools forum was a statutory body comprising school and non-
school representatives from across Leeds.

The schools forum had voted strongly in favour of the chosen formula
model, 21 votes to 1.

The election of representatives to the schools forum was not within
local authority control.

The development of a governance and accountability framework.

The formula model focussed on narrowing the gap, a key focus of the
Children’s and Young People’s Plan (CYPP), endorsed by partners and
the Children’s Trust Board (CTB).

Other areas of discussion were:

Concern that the impact of the proposed change to funding
arrangements from 3 years to 1 year, undermined wider, longer term
plans of clusters.

Confirmation that the chosen formula model originated from the
Secretary of State for Education.

Following questions from the Scrutiny Board, Councillor Lamb was invited to
summarise the reasons for calling in the decision. He emphasised that the
decision could result in negative outcomes for young people in Leeds. He
added that there should also be a greater role for Elected Members and
Scrutiny as part of the decision making process. It was proposed that the
Scrutiny Board worked directly with the schools forum in the allocation of

Page 7



139

cluster funding. The proposal to implement funding for 1 year was again
reaffirmed.

RESOLVED - That the report and information provided be noted.
Outcome of Call-in
The outcome of the vote by voting Members present was as follows:
Option 1 — 10 in favour, 3 against.
Following the vote it was
RESOLVED -
(i) To release the decision for implementation as stipulated in the
delegated decision
(i) That Scrutiny Members be provided with a clearer understanding about

the role of the schools forum as part of the 2013/14 work
programme.

(The meeting concluded at 1.30 pm.)

Page 8



Agenda ltem 7

Report author: Sandra Pentelow
Tel: 2474792

== CITY COUNCIL

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Date: 28th June 2013

Subject: Co-opted Members

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [] Yes X No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards. However, the
appointment of co-opted members has not been considered consistently across all
Scrutiny Boards.

2. This report provides guidance to the Scrutiny Board when seeking to appoint co-opted
members. There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment
of specific co-opted members. Such cases are set out in Article 6 of the Council’s
Constitution and are also summarised within this report.

Recommendation

3. In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to consider
the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board.

Page 9



1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Purpose of this report

The purpose of this report is to seek the Scrutiny Board’s formal consideration for the
appointment of co-opted members to the Board.

Background information

For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards. For those Scrutiny
Boards where co-opted members have previously been appointed, such
arrangements have tended to be reviewed on an annual basis, usually at the
beginning of a new municipal year. However, the appointment of co-opted members
has not been considered consistently across all Scrutiny Boards.

Main issues

General arrangements for appointing co-opted members

It is widely recognised that in some circumstances, co-opted members can
significantly aid the work of Scrutiny Boards. This is currently reflected in Article 6
(Scrutiny Boards) of the Council’'s Constitution, which outlines the options available to
Scrutiny Boards in relation to appointing co-opted members.

In general terms, Scrutiny Boards can appoint:

* Up to five non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that does not go
beyond the next Annual Meeting of Council ; and/or,

* Up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that relates to the
duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry.

In the majority of cases the appointment of co-opted members is optional and is
determined by the relevant Scrutiny Board. However, Article 6 makes it clear that co-
option would normally only be appropriate where the co-opted member has some
specialist skill or knowledge, which would be of assistance to the Scrutiny Board.
Particular issues to consider when seeking to appoint a co-opted member are set out
later in the report.

There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment of specific
co-opted members. Such cases are also set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards) of the
Council’'s Constitution and are summarised below.

Arrangements for appointing specific co-opted members

Education Representatives

In addition to elected Members appointed by Council, the Local Government Act
2000 states that the relevant Scrutiny Board dealing with education matters shall
include in its membership the following voting representatives in accordance with
statutory requirements:

Page 10



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

« One Church of England diocese representative’ - A nomination has yet to be
received.

« One Roman Catholic diocese representative’ - A nomination has yet to be
received.

» Parent governor representatives?
Two representatives are currently in post
Amanda Craven (primary) — 08/09/2011 — 07/09/2015
Jacqueline Ward (secondary)— 21/04/11 — 20/04/2015

The Parent Governor Regulations (Representatives) England 2001states that a local
education authority shall appoint at least two parent governor representatives to each
of their education overview and scrutiny committees and sub-committees. It is
recommended that the structure for Educational Representatives should reflect this
requirement for 2013/14 and that the vacant post be removed. It is also
recommended that a review of representatives is conducted during 2013/14 as part
of a wider co-opted member review.

The number and term of office of education representatives is fixed by full Council
and set out in Article 6. Representatives of the Church of England and Roman
Catholic dioceses are nominated by their diocese and parent governor
representatives are elected. Such representatives are then notified to the Scrutiny
Board and their appointment confirmed.

Where the Scrutiny Board deals with other non-educational matters the co-opted
members may participate in any discussion but shall not be entitled to vote on those
matters.

Crime and Disorder Committee

In accordance with the requirements of the Police and Justice Act 2006, the Council
has designated the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) to act as the
Council’s crime and disorder committee.

In its capacity as a crime and disorder committee, the Scrutiny Board (Safer and
Stronger Communities) may co-opt additional members to serve on the Board,
providing they are not an Executive Member.

3.10 The Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) may limit the co-opted

member’s participation to those matters where the Scrutiny Board is acting as the
Council’s crime and disorder committee.

3.11 Unless the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) decides otherwise, any

co-opted member shall not be entitled to vote and the Board may withdraw the co-
opted membership at any time.

1

Article 6 states this appointment shall be for a term of office that does not go beyond the next Annual

Meeting of Council
2 Article 6 states these appointments shall be for a four-year term of office

Page 11



Issues to consider when seeking to appoint co-opted members

3.12 Currently, there is no overarching national guidance or criteria that should be

considered when seeking to appoint co-opted members. As a result, there is a
plethora of methods employed within Councils for the appointment of co-optees to
Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Scrutiny Boards). For example, some Council’s
use “job descriptions”, some carry out formal interviews and some advertise for co-
optees in the local press, with individuals completing a simple application form which
is then considered by Members.

3.13 The Constitution makes it clear that ‘co-option would normally only be appropriate

where the co-opted member has some specialist skill or knowledge, which would be
of assistance to the Scrutiny Board’. In considering the appointment of co-opted
members, Scrutiny Boards should be satisfied that a co-opted member can use their
specialist skill or knowledge to add value to the work of the Scrutiny Board. However,

co-opted members should not be seen as a replacement to professional advice from
officers.

3.14 Co-opted members should be considered as representatives of wider groups of

people. However, when seeking external input into the Scrutiny Board’s work,
consideration should always be given to other alternative approaches, such as the
role of expert withesses or use of external research studies, to help achieve a
balanced evidence base.

3.15 When considering the appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of

office, Scrutiny Boards should be mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may
arise during the course of the year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms
of reference. To help overcome this, Scrutiny Boards may wish to focus on the
provision available to appoint up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of
office that relates to the duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry.

3.16 Despite the lack of any national guidance, what is clear is that any process for

appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried out in a manner
which seeks to strengthen the work of Scrutiny Boards. Services for Children and
Families have changed significantly since the Scrutiny Board conducted its last
review of co-opted representation in 2005, both on a national and local level. It is
recommended that the Scrutiny Board conduct a review of the groups represented in
preparation for the 2014/15 municipal year to ensure that an appropriate cross
section of representation is maintained and to ‘plug the gap’ in any identified area of
skills and expertise.

Nominations for non —voting co-opted members for 2013/14

In addition to those voting co-opted member nominations stated in paragraph 3.5 the
following non-voting nominations have been received:

1) Teacher Representative — Celia Foote (Board Member 2012/13)

2) Teacher Representative — Christine Raftery (Board Member 2012/13)

3) Early Years Representative — Sandra Hutchinson (Board Member 2012/13) or
Sue Knowles

Page 12



4) Young Lives Leeds (0 — 13 years) — Jeanette Morris-Boam (Board Member
2012/13)

5) In previous years Taira Kayani has been co-opted onto the board as the
representative from the Leeds Youth Work Partnership. This partnership has ceased
to exist and in the absence of a partnership it is recommended that Young Lives
Leeds® is able to make a second nomination who would be Taira Kayani with a focus
on the 13 — 19 age group.

4.0 Corporate Considerations
4.1 Consultation and Engagement

4.1.1 The guidance surrounding co-opted members was discussed by the Scrutiny Chairs
and it was agreed that individual Scrutiny Boards would consider the appointment of
co-optees on an individual basis.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

4.2.1 The process for appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried
out in a manner which seeks to strengthen the work of the Scrutiny Board. In doing
so, due regard should also be given to any potential equality issues in line with the
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme.

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities

4.3.1 The Council's Scrutiny arrangements are one of the key parts of the Council’s
governance arrangements. Within the Council’s Constitution, there is particular
provision for the appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards,
which this report seeks to summarise.

4.4 Resources and Value for Money

4.4.1 Where applicable, any incidental expenses paid to co-optees will be met within
existing resources.

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 Where additional members are co-opted onto a Scrutiny Board, such members
must comply with the provisions set out in the Member’s Code of Conduct as
detailed within the Council’s Constitution.

4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 As stated in paragraph 3.15 above, when Scrutiny Boards are considering the
appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of office, they should be
mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may arise during the course of the
year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms of reference.

® Young Lives Leeds is the major organisation supporting the third sector organisations working with
children, young people and families in Leeds

Page 13



5.0
5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

Conclusions

For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards. However, the
appointment of co-opted members has not been considered consistently across all
Scrutiny Boards. This report therefore sets out the legislative arrangements in place
for the appointment of specific co-opted members and also provides further guidance
when seeking to appoint co-opted members.

Recommendations

In line with the options available and information outlined in this report, Members are

asked to:

i) consider the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board.
ii) determine and specify who will be appointed as co-opted members.
iii) agree to undertake a review of co-opted membership in 2013/14.

Background documents*
* The Council’s Constitution

* Police and Justice Act 2006
KPMG Scrutiny Review May 2009

* The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include

published works.

Page 14



Agenda Item 8

Report author: Sandra Pentelow
Tel: 2474792

== CITY COUNCIL

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Date: 28" June 2013

Subject: Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [] Yes X No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. This report presents the terms of reference for the Children and Families Scrutiny
Board for Members’ information (Appendix A).

2. Scrutiny Boards will continue to be aligned to the Strategic Partnership Boards and are
therefore authorised to review or scrutinise the performance of their relevant
Partnership Board. In accordance with the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, Scrutiny
Boards will also continue to act as ‘critical friend’ to their relevant Partnership Board
and assess how well the Partnership is working in practice. A report summarising the
Scrutiny Board’s observations and recommendations following its assessment of the
Childrens Trust Board in March 2013 is attached for information (Appendix B).

Recommendation

3. Members are requested to:
(a) note the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference;

(b) note the report of the Children and Families Scrutiny Board on the Childrens
Trust Board.

Page 15



1.0
1.1

1.2

2.0
2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.4

3.5

Purpose of this report

This report presents the terms of reference for the Children and Families Scrutiny
Board following recent amendments made to the Council’s Constitution.

Following the Scrutiny Board’s assessment of the Childrens Trust Board in March
2013, a report summarising the Scrutiny Board’s observations and recommendations
is also attached for information.

Background information

The Annual Review of the Constitution more often than not identifies areas for
amendment in relation to the Scrutiny Boards’ terms of reference to ensure
consistency in wording and provide procedural clarity.

Main issues

Constitutional changes affecting the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference

On this occasion there have been no changes to the remit of the Children and
Families Scrutiny Board for 2013/14. The terms of reference are attached for
Members’ information (Appendix A).

The Board'’s terms of reference are related to the functions delegated to the Director
of Childrens Services. In terms of Executive Members, the Scrutiny Board'’s role
encompasses the areas of responsibility assigned to the Executive Member for
Children’s Services.

Alignment of Scrutiny Boards to the Strategic Partnership Boards

Scrutiny Boards will continue to be aligned to the Strategic Partnership Boards and
are therefore authorised to review or scrutinise the performance of their relevant
Partnership Board. In accordance with the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, Scrutiny
Boards will also continue to act as ‘critical friend’ to their relevant Partnership Board
and consider and report on the following areas:

1. What contribution the Partnership Board is making to tackle poverty and
inequality, and the progress being made against this?

2. How successfully the Board’s partnership arrangements are working?

3. To what extent are significant benefits being seen from partnership working? How
has partnership working ensured increased pace of change to address the issue
in hand?

During March 2013, the Scrutiny Boards received a report from their relevant
Strategic Partnership Board setting out their strengths and potential areas for
development in respect of the three key questions above. The Scrutiny Boards were
also given the opportunity to question the chair, members of the Partnership Board
and support officers.

Page 16



3.6 It was agreed that, following the scrutiny sessions, each Scrutiny Board would
produce a summary report of its findings. The Scrutiny Support Unit would then
prepare a cover report drawing out any common threads and best practice emerging
from the individual inquiry sessions. Each Strategic Partnership Board will also
receive their respective individual report and will be requested to respond to any
scrutiny recommendations in the normal manner.

3.7 As the Children and Families Scrutiny Board is aligned to the Childrens Trust Board,
representatives from this Partnership Board attended the Scrutiny Board’s meeting
on 14" March 2013. A report summarising the Scrutiny Board’s observations and
recommendations in relation to the Childrens Trust Board was forwarded to the
Partnership Board and is also attached (Appendix B).

4.0 Corporate Considerations
4.1 Consultation and Engagement

4.1.1 The amendments made to the Council’s Constitution were considered by the
General Purposes Committee on 9" May 2013, prior to being formally considered
and approved by Council on 20" May 2013.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

4.2.1 In line with the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, the Scrutiny Boards will continue to
ensure through service review that equality and diversity/cohesion and integration
issues are considered in decision making and policy formulation.

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards continue to promote a strategic and
outward looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the City Priorities. The Scrutiny
Boards will continue to review or scrutinise the performance of their relevant
Strategic Partnership Board. In doing so, they will review outcomes, targets and
priorities within the Business Plan and specific “Best City for.... “ priorities set out
within the City Priority Plan.

4.4 Resources and Value for Money
4.4.1 This report has no specific resource and value for money implications.
4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 The amendments made to the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference aim to provide
procedural clarity.

4.6 Risk Management
4.6.1 This report has no risk management implications
5.0 Conclusions

5.1 This report clarifies the duties and functions of the Children and Families Scrutiny
Board.

Page 17



6.0 Recommendations
6.1 Members are requested to:
(a) note the Scrutiny Board'’s terms of reference;

(b) note the report of the Children and Families Scrutiny Board on the Children’s
Trust Board.

7.0 Background documents’

7.1 None

' The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 18



Appendix A
Council Committees’ Terms of Reference

Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)

The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) is authorised to discharge the following
overview and scrutiny functions’:

1. to review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in connection with
any council or executive function or any matter which affects the authority’s
area or the inhabitants of that area;2

2. to review or scrutinise the performance of the Children’s Trust Board;?

3. to carry out such other reviews or policy development tasks as it may be
requested to do by either the Executive Board or the Council;

4. to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board in relation to the Executive’s initial
proposals for a relevant plan or strategy4 within the Budget and Policy
Framework:®

5. to review or scrutinise executive decisions that have been Called In;

6. to review outcomes, targets and priorities within the Council Business Plan
and the Best city... for children and young people priorities within the City
Priority Plan;

7. to receive requests for scrutiny and councillor calls for action and undertake
any subsequent work; and

8. to make such reports and recommendations as it considers appropriate and to
receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations
made.

" In relation to functions delegated to the Director of Children’s Services under the Officer Delegation
Scheme whether or not those functions are concurrently delegated to any other committee or officer.
2 Including matters pertaining to outside bodies and partnerships to which the authority has made
appointments.
*The Scrutiny Board has a duty to do this each municipal year - Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 10.3
4 Namely the Youth Justice Plan and the Children and Young Peoples Plan
® In accordance with Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.

Part 3 Section 2B(1)

Page 1 of 1

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Report of the Children and Families
Scrutiny Board on the Children’s Trust
Board

Appendix B

Background

1. The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules state that all Scrutiny Boards will act as a
“critical friend” to the relevant Strategic Partnership Board and consider and
report on the following areas:

* What contribution the Partnership Board is making to tackle poverty and
inequality, and the progress being made against this

* How successfully the Board’s partnership arrangements are working

* To what extent are significant benefits being seen from partnership
working? How has partnership working ensured increased pace of change
to address the issue in hand?

2. A common approach was adopted by Scrutiny Boards in exercising their
“critical friend” role, in order that outcomes could be compared and contrasted
between Partnership Boards. However, it was also acknowledged that each
Strategic Partnership Board is at a different stage in its development and
maturity.

3. During March and April 2013, Scrutiny Boards received reports from the
relevant Strategic Partnership Board and had the opportunity to question the
chair and members of the Partnership Board and support officers.

4. |t was agreed that, following the scrutiny sessions, each Scrutiny Board would
produce a summary report of its findings. The Scrutiny Support Unit would
then prepare a cover report drawing out any common threads and best
practice emerging from the individual inquiry sessions. The full report will be
presented to Council, as the commissioning body for this piece of scrutiny
inquiry work. Each Strategic Partnership Board will also receive their
respective individual report, and will be requested to respond to any scrutiny
recommendations in the normal manner.

5. The Scrutiny Board received a report on the history and development of the
Children’s Trust Board (CTB) and the subsidiary groups, committees,
partnerships, boards and forums which support the CTB. Members were also
presented with information to assist them in assessing strengths and areas for
development for the CTB in respect of the three key questions set out above.

6. The following representatives attended the Scrutiny Board’s meeting on 14" March
2013:
* Councillor Blake, Chair of the Children’s Trust Board
* Nigel Richardson, Director of Children’s Services
* Sue Rumbold, Chief Officer (Partnership Development and Business
Support)
» Jane Mischenko, NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds
* Dr Sharon Yelin, NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds
» Keith Gilert, Superintendent, West Yorkshire Police.

Page 21



The Scrutiny Board’s observations and recommendations

Partnerships, Structure and Governance

7.

10.

11.

12.

Of the Partnership Boards the CTB is one of the most mature. Established in
April 2010, the Children’s Trust Board was a statutory requirement at that time.
This is no longer the case, however the CTB was recognised locally as an
effective strategic body and therefore it remains operational. The Board was
advised that the remit of the CTB is as follows:

* Improving outcomes for children and young people

» Bringing together statutory partners to strengthen co-operation
arrangements

» Having a local vision for children, young people and families.

* Overseeing the development and implementation of a Children and Young
People’s Plan (CYPP) as the single, shared citywide strategy for improving
outcomes

Through the CYPP the CTB is maintaining a focus on the three core

obsessions:

» Helping children to live in safe and supportive families thereby reducing the
number of looked after children

* Improving school attendance and both primary and secondary level

* Increasing the number of young people in education, employment and
training.

The Scrutiny Board were advised of the examples of improvement in service
which collectively help to “Turn the Curve’ on the obsessions and priorities in
the CYPP. A new and clear report to aid the communication and tracking
performance was also presented. The Board acknowledged the considerable
progress made since 2010 and welcomed the assurances of the CTB to strive
for continued improvement despite challenging financial circumstances.

A core part of the CYPP is developing the voice and influence of Children and
Young People. The Scrutiny Board welcomed the valuable contribution of the
Youth Council and Youth Parliament in reviewing the effectiveness of the CTB.
The Scrutiny Board re-affirmed the importance of the CTB having strong
communication networks with the children and young people in the city that
also facilitates their contribution to inform the work of the CTB.

Partner representatives from West Yorkshire Police and NHS Airedale,
Bradford and Leeds advised the Scrutiny Board of the key role the CTB has in
providing an overview around ambitions and key processes. This provides
clear strategic aims which all organisations can work towards collectively
across the city. The Scrutiny Board was advised that the city wide strategy for
Children and Young People is clearly articulated and is meaningful for
partners. Plans and policies can be closely aligned and training of staff can be
organised to provide focus. Partner representatives stated their appreciation of
the networks and linkages to key people in Children’s Services which have
evolved into strong working relationships.

With regard to membership of the CTB the Scrutiny Board were reassured to
note that it has already been recognised that there needs to be a business

Page 22



13.

partner representative on the CTB. This representation should be effective
from May 2013.

The Scrutiny Board expressed concern about the absence of Adult Social
Services representation on the CTB and the limited representation from non
council Early Years Services. The Scrutiny Board was advised that
representation on the CTB is currently under review.

Recommendation 1 — That the CTB further extends membership of the board to
incorporate representation from Adult Social Services and private/voluntary
sector Early Years Services.

14.

15.

The Scrutiny Board was presented with a structure diagram which specified
the additional citywide and local groups and sub — boards that report to the
CTB. These manage shared priorities are all multi-agency, bringing together
partners from across all aspects of children’s services within the city. In
addition to these citywide groups there are joint working arrangements with 25
‘Clusters’ of schools and services that are accountable to the CTB.

The Scrutiny Board expressed concern about the complexity around the CTB
with no fewer than 30 boards and sub groups engaging. Advised that this
represents a smaller structure to that previously in place, the Scrutiny Board
requested clarity about how effectively the resulting complex structure is
functioning and recommended the need for continual review and challenge of
the effectiveness and purpose of the sub-boards. Further, the CTB needs to
ensure that the mechanisms for communication, operational processes and
terms of reference of the sub-groups are not repetitive, cumbersome and
counter productive to the implementation of effective change.

Recommendation 2 — That the CTB undertake to regularly review the
effectiveness and purpose of its sub-groups, boards, partnerships and forums to
ensure that they are operationally effective, fit for purpose and contribute to
producing significant benefits and outcomes for the children and young people
of Leeds.

16.

17.

The Scrutiny Board recognises the importance of Cluster working in order to
strengthen targeted and universal support on a local level whilst providing a
strong connection to the community, and is wholly supportive of this
methodology. The Scrutiny Board perceives that there are inconsistencies in
the operational effectiveness of Clusters across the city, with some working
more progressively than others. The Scrutiny Board also feels it is essential to
identify if Cluster working is delivering the best possible outcomes and
providing value for money.

A significant amount of funding has been invested to support Cluster working
including £5.2 million of funding from Schools Forum. The Scrutiny Board
consider that to ensure the best outcomes for children and young people
across the city work needs to be undertaken to:

* Ensure robust governance arrangements are in place with good
representation and participation from partner organisations at a local level.

* improve the performance of those Clusters who are not currently working
effectively,

Page 23




» ensure full accountability via the production of coherent performance and
financial data which is reported to those bodies who have invested
resources to support Clusters.

* Monitor outcomes for Children and Young People as a result of Cluster
working to ensure that this investment is making a difference.

Recommendation 3 — That the CTB undertake to improve Cluster performance,
accountability and governance arrangements across the city in order to provide
the best possible support for children and young people in the city.

Recommendation 4 — That the CTB ensure value for money by monitoring the
performance of clusters in order to identify if the investment in this methodology
is making a difference and effectively meeting the needs of children and young
people in the City.

18. The Scrutiny Board have stated the intention to consider the performance of
Clusters during 2013/14 and review recommendations 3 and 4 above to
ensure that significant progress is made.

Poverty and Inequality

19. Information presented to the Scrutiny Board advised that the CTB has set up a
subgroup, the Child Poverty Outcomes Group which regularly reports progress
against the Leeds Child Poverty Strategy. The Scrutiny Board commended the
key successes achieved so far and recognised the major challenge that lies
ahead as welfare reform impacts on families.

20. The Scrutiny Board emphasized that the work done in Clusters to support
families, although valuable, will impact on a fraction of the 40,000 children in
Leeds that are living in poverty. The Scrutiny Board sought clarification about
the monitoring of effort and the impact this has on reducing the number of
children living in poverty. Overall are we making a difference?

21. At the February and April 2013 meetings the Scrutiny Board considered Child
Poverty and Welfare Reform. This will continue to remain on the Scrutiny
Boards work programme throughout 2013/14.

Recommendation 5 — That the CTB reports back to the Scrutiny Board
(Children and Families) in 2013/14 on the mechanisms for monitoring and
reporting child poverty in the city. This report should also identify how the
impact of initiatives put into place to reduce child poverty is measured.

Page 24



Conclusion

22. The Scrutiny Board recognises the considerable amount of effort undertaken
by Council Employees, Partners and Young People in the preparation and
presentation of information and would like to thank those who have
participated in this inquiry.

23. The Scrutiny Board has made a number of recommendations which seek to
aid the aims and vision of the CTB. The Scrutiny Board fully supports the
priorities of the CTB based on the CYPP, the ‘Three Obsessions’ and ‘Child
Friendly Leeds’ and recognises that robust partnership arrangements are
essential to the delivery of successful outcomes. The Scrutiny Board was
reassured that the CTB have identified significant areas that require
development and have communicated their commitment to drive forward
change and improvement.

24. We will continue to support the CTB by acting as a critical friend to assist in
our common objective to improve the lives of Children and Young People.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Agenda Item 9

Report author: Sandra Pentelow
Tel: 2474792

== CITY COUNCIL

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Date: 28" June 2013

Subject: Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [] Yes X No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and L[] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

This report is provided too assist the Scrutiny Board in effectively managing its workload
and set an outline for the work programme for the forthcoming municipal year. The report
also provides information and guidance on potential sources of work and clarifies the
Board'’s terms of reference.

Recommendation

Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with those
present at the meeting to

(@) confirm the areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year

(b) authorise the Chair, in conjunction with officers, to draw up inquiry terms of
reference for subsequent approval by the Scrutiny Board.

Page 27



1
1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.4

3.5

3.6

Purpose of this report

To assist the Scrutiny Board in effectively managing its workload for the forthcoming
municipal year, this report provides information and guidance on potential sources of
work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.

Background information

Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a
strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond
to issues of high public interest.

Scrutiny Boards are encouraged to be strategic and outward looking in their
operation and continue to focus on the City Priorities.

City Priority Plans were established to replace the Leeds Strategic Plan. These city-

wide partnership plans identify the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by the
Council, and its partners, from 2011 until 2015. The City Priority Plans are aligned to
the Strategic Partnerships who will own the plans and be responsible for ensuring the
delivery of the agreed priorities.

Main issues

Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference

Five of the Scrutiny Boards are themed to mirror the Strategic Partnership Boards,
which is reflected in the terms of reference for each Board. Whilst it is recommended
that areas of review are focused around the City Priorities and maintain a strategic
approach all Scrutiny Boards remain autonomous in determining their reviews.

Sources of Scrutiny work

In addition to the functions outlined with the Scrutiny Board’s terms of reference,
other sources of work will continue to be ‘requests for scrutiny’ and corporate
referrals.

The City Priority Plans are structured around a small set of short term (4 years)
priorities each of which is measured through a headline indicator. As such they are
the “must-do” priorities or “obsessions” for each partnership and may be supported
by more detailed plans as the partnership sees fit. The most relevant plan is the
Children and Young People Plan 2011-15 (refresh xxxxx 2013). This is attached as
appendix 1. A copy of the original Children and Young Peoples Plan approved April
18™ 2011, will be made available at the meeting should members wish to view it.

A draft of “The Best Council Plan 2013-17’ is to be presented to Executive Board on
the 19" of June 2013. This replaces the Council Business Plan for 2011- 15 and aims
to set out the strategic priorities for the council. The plan sets out best council
objectives, including building a child friendly city on page 19. The draft ‘Best Council
Plan 2013 — 17 is attached as appendix 2.

Page 28



3.7 In February 2013 the analysis report of the Every Child Matters Survey 2011/12 was
published. The report identifies and insight into what it is like for children and young
people growing up in Leeds and highlights a number of key area’s that the Board may
wish to consider for scrutiny. This report is attached as appendix 3.

3.8 The Quarter 4 Performance Report is also scheduled for consideration at the meeting
which may highlight potential areas of work for 2013/14.

3.9 Attached as appendix 4 is the latest Executive Board minutes. The Scrutiny Board
may also undertake further pieces of scrutiny work as considered appropriate.

3.10 Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the
process is more effective and adds greater value if the Board seeks to minimise the
number of substantial inquiries running at one time and focus its resources on one
key issue at a time. This view was echoed within the findings of the KPMG external
audit report 2009 on the Scrutiny function in Leeds.

3.11 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require Scrutiny Boards, before deciding to
undertake an inquiry, to consider the current workload of the Scrutiny Board and the
available resources to carry out the work.

3.12 In addition the Board should consider if a similar or related issue is already being
examined by Scrutiny or has been considered by Scrutiny recently and if the matter
raised is of sufficient significance and has the potential for Scrutiny to produce
realistic recommendations that could be implemented and lead to tangible
improvements. A list of previous scrutiny inquires relating to Children and Families
work area is attached as appendix 5.

4 Corporate Considerations
4.1 Consultation and Engagement

4.1.1 It is recognised that in order to enable Scrutiny to focus on areas of priority, each
Scrutiny Board needs to establish an early dialogue with the Director and Executive
Board Member holding the relevant portfolio and also the Partnership Chair.

4.1.2 The Director of Children’s Services and the Executive Board Member with
responsibility for Children’s Services have been invited to attend the meeting to
discuss priorities.

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration.

4.2.1 In determining the areas of work and setting the work programme there will be will
be no equality, diversity, cohesion and integration implications for groups or
individuals. Further consideration will be made and recorded accordingly as the
Board undertake their obligations during 2013/14.

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities

4.3.1 The following plans are relevant to the work of the Scrutiny Board (Children and
Families):

Page 29



* The Leeds Children and Young Peoples Plan 2011 -15
»  Best Council Plan 2013-17

4.4 Resources and Value for Money

4.4.1 This section is not relevant to this report

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1 There is no restricted or confidential information contained in this report.
4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 This section is not relevant to this report

5 Recommendations

5.1 Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with
those present at the meeting to

(@) confirm the areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year
(b) authorise the Chair, in conjunction with officers, to draw up inquiry terms of
reference for subsequent approval by the Scrutiny Board.

6  Background documents'

6.1 None

' The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 30



Appendix 1

Children and Young People’s Plan
2011-15

Refresh 2013

(Approved by Children’s Trust Board May 2013, Last
updated June 2013)

Page 31



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Welcome- What is the Children and Young People’s Plan? 3

Who are Children Leeds, the Children’s Trust Board and the Leeds 4
Safeguarding Children Board?

Improving Outcomes through Working Restoratively 4

The Health & Well Being Board & Joint Health & Well Being Strategy 5

Our Vision, Obsessions, Outcomes, Priorities & Indicators 7

Leeds Joint Health & Well Being Strategy 2013-15 8

Progress so far 9

Turning the Curve on the Obsessions 11

The Five Outcomes- Achievements & Challenges 13

» All CYP are safe from harm 13

* All CYP do well at all levels of learning & have the skills for life 15

« All CYP choose healthy lifestyles 17

* All CYP have fun growing up 18

» All CYP are active citizens who feel they have voice & influence 19

Key Improvement Strategies 20

* Working restoratively, putting the child at the centre 20

» Supporting children and families, strengthening social work 21

+ Enhancing Cluster and Locality working 22

* Implementing Early Intervention & Prevention 23

* Building a Child Friendly City 25

«  Tackling Inequality & Vulnerability 26

* Investing in Children’s Services 29

Appendix 1: Every Disabled Child Matters Charter 32

Appendix 2: Key Plans & Strategy documents supporting the CYPP 33

2

Page 32




Welcome- what is the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP)?

Welcome to the April 2013 refresh of the Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan
(CYPP) 2011-15. The CYPP is our statement of intent and ambition for how we will
make a positive and significant difference to the lives of over 180,000 children and
young people.

We started with a simple question: What is it like to be a child, or young person
growing up in Leeds? From there we thought about the things we can do to make the
biggest positive difference to those who need our help the most. We have done this
through a partnership approach because addressing these issues is the
responsibility of everyone who works with and cares about the children and young
people of Leeds. We want to be very clear about what outcomes we're aiming to
achieve for them, the priorities we must address to do so and how we’ll measure our
success. This Plan can help all of us to do that.

We strongly believe that everyone in Leeds has a part to play, which is why the
aspiration to become a child friendly city is at the heart of our Plan. If we all do what
we can to ensure our children and young people are heard, involved and respected
at home, at school, in their communities - wherever they are in Leeds and whenever
decisions affect them — it sends the right message about how important their welfare
is to us and how important they are to our future.

So, our challenge to everyone reading this plan is to look at the 5 outcomes and 11
priorities, look at our key indicators, look at our progress so far and what still needs
to be done, look at how we propose to make further improvement and think about
your contribution to making it happen. How will you play your part in changing a
child or young person’s life for the better and shaping the future of our city? How will
you engage with children and young people and work with them in a restorative way,
helping them to develop responses and solutions to the issues they face?

In 2015 it would be fantastic if, as a city, we could look back on the ambitions we’ve
set out here and feel really proud and positive about how far we have come towards
realising them. It is crucial that we do. With collective determination it can happen.
We look forward to working with you to make Leeds a child friendly city and changing
the lives of 180,000 children and young people.

So far we have made a lot of progress and laid some firm foundations for further
improvement but there is a lot more to do and a lot further to go to realise our
ambitions for the city and its children and young people.

Councillor Judith Blake Nigel Richardson
Executive member for Director of Children’s
Children’s services, Services

Chair of CTB

Page 33



Who are Children Leeds, the Children’s Trust Board and the Leeds
Safeguarding Children Board?

Children Leeds describes the overall partnership between all those agencies who
play a part in improving outcomes for children and young people in our city.

The business of Children Leeds is managed by the Children’s Trust Board. (CTB)
The CTB is one of five city-wide strategic boards working towards the overall
ambition of best city in the UK. The Board is chaired by Councillor Judith Blake, who
as Executive Member is the senior Councillor responsible for Children’s services,
and also led by Nigel Richardson, the Director of Children’s services.

The Board brings together NHS Leeds, Leeds Youth Offending Service, West
Yorkshire Police, West Yorkshire Probation, Job Centre Plus, local schools, colleges
and children’s centres, the voluntary sector, and Leeds City Council services such as
children and young people’s social care, housing, early years, and education and
learning. The partners share a commitment to the CYPP and working together to
deliver the priorities for improvement.

The Leeds Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) has a statutory responsibility for
holding those agencies responsible for promoting children’s welfare, and protecting
them from abuse and neglect, to account. It monitors and influences how effectively
they keep children and young people safe. The LSCB has representatives on the
CTB and vice versa. The two Boards work together closely and their responsibilities
are complementary.

The LSCB is responsible for coordinating our work to safeguard and promote the
welfare of children and for ensuring the work is effective. It develops policies and
procedures, contributes to service planning, takes a leadership role in sharing
learning and understanding practice, and providing workforce development and
training, and monitors and performance manages safeguarding practice.

Improving Outcomes through Working Restoratively

Central to what we need to do to improve outcomes for children, young people and
their families, and through that to help Leeds become the best city in the UK, and a
child friendly city, is changing the way we work with the citizens of Leeds. As part of
this, we know we must try and prevent situations in families escalating to the point at
which the council has to take serious action, which in the most extreme cases can
mean removing a child from their family, because the social and financial costs of
doing so, as well as the impact on the child themselves, can be significant.

We need to support families to become better equipped to solve their own problems
and address the challenges they face. We need to develop our role as a facilitator,
so that more of what we do enables families to make positive changes themselves
that ultimately make them stronger together and more resilient. Working in this way,
doing things with children, young people and families rather than to them or for them,
is a technique known as restorative practice and over the last 18 months we’ve been

Page 34



gradually introducing a revolution in this approach across children’s services. There
is a significant body of evidence that consistently shows the impact they can have.
In Leeds we started our work by drawing on the best of this existing practice.

Ultimately restorative practice is about creating the conditions for people to have
better quality conversations, ones that avoid blame and instead focus on
understanding how people feel and finding meaningful solutions to their problems.
This is done through things like asking the right type of questions, creating the right
setting to make the conversation as equitable as possible and having the right
facilitation s kills present to keep the conversation flowing, focused and constructive.
It may sound simple and in many ways it is, but embedding these ways of working
genuinely into everything we do takes time and investment.

And we have been investing. Over the last 18 months more and more of our staff
have been on restorative practice training. A number of our schools now use
restorative practice techniques to structure their day and shape how pupils and staff
communicate with each other. .

Of particular importance is our roll-out, city-wide, of an approach called family group
conferencing, which is a form of restorative practice that takes the techniques I've
discussed, into the heart of families experiencing serious challenges. We have built
a team of skilled facilitators who are leading this work and we’re already seeing
some fantastic results to help families take control of their problems and make
positive changes.

Restorative practice has benefits not just in how we work with families, but also how
we work with one another, reducing hierarchy, creating shared ownership of issues
and finding solutions together.

The Health & Well Being Board & Joint Health & Well Being Strategy

The Health and Well Being Board (HWBB) was established in May 2013. Itis a new
national initiative which provides a framework for a range of services for children and
adults. It sets out through the Joint Health and Well Being Strategy common
outcomes, priorities and key ambitions for services and agencies working in the
National Health Service, Public Health and Social Care services, and in a range of
Council services for children and adults.

It complements the CYPP by helping all providers understand their areas of work,
and focus on common priorities that help tackle the issues facing all the people of
Leeds.

The framework of outcomes, priorities and indicators set out in the first Leeds Joint
Health and Well Being Strategy for 2013-15 is set out on page 8 of this document.
The 4 must do priorities for initial focus are highlighted in red. Seeing this alongside
the CYPP outcomes, priorities and indicators- see page 7- immediately shows a
number of concerns and interests common to the work of the CTB and the HWBB.

Page 35



There is a shared recognition that the two Boards will need to work closely together.
The Chair of the CTB and the Director of Children’s Services sit on both Boards and
Health organisations are well represented on the CTB. Joint working also takes
place through well established forums such as the Infant Mortality Steering Group
and the Child Poverty Outcomes Group.

As part of the CYPP refresh 2013 the CTB have added a new priority to the CYPP n
— ‘Minimise the misuse of drugs, alcohol & tobacco’. This along with the other
priorities under the outcome ‘Children and young people choose healthy lifestyles’
link directly to the outcome in the Leeds Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2013-
2015 ‘People will live longer and healthier lives.

This is only one expression of our shared and mutually reinforcing agendas. Other
key areas include a focus on making sure that:

* everyone has the best start in life

» people have a voice and are involved in and can influence decision making
» everyone achieves their full potential through education and learning

* people are supported into work and employment

* people are provided with advice and support on debt and income

There is also a shared concern to focus on narrowing the gap for those who continue
to experience worse outcomes than the average or best outcomes for the city. Key
shared areas for measuring progress include rates of infant mortality, levels of
obesity and teenage pregnancy, educational achievement, levels of employment,
and levels of the misuse of drugs, alcohol and tobacco.

A refreshed approach to tackling substance misuse in clusters across the city using

the OBA methodology is one early new initiative. Work is underway to develop and
test a model framework prior to a wider roll out across all clusters.

Page 36



OUR VISION, OBSESSIONS, OUTCOMES, PRIORITIES & INDICATORS

Our vision is for Leeds to be a child friendly city. As part of this vision we will
minimise the effects of child poverty.

Our vision contributes to the wider vision for Leeds- By 2030 Leeds will be locally and
nationally recognised as the best city in the UK.

We will drive change by using restorative practice, cluster and locality working and by
extending the voice and influence of children and young people. The child is at the
centre of everything we do. We have a relentless focus on improved outcomes.

5 outcomes

12 priorities
(3 starting points highlighted in
italics)

17 Key indicators
(3”obsessions” highlighted in
italics)

CYP Are safe from
harm

1. Help children to live in safe and
supportive families

2. Ensure that the most vulnerable
are protected

1. Number of Children Looked
After

2. Number of children and young
people with child protection plans

CYP Do well at all
levels of learning and
have the skills for life

3. Improve behaviour, attendance
and achievement)

4. Increase numbers in
employment, education or training

5. Support children to be ready for
learning

6. Improve support where there are
additional health needs

3. School attendance
Primary; Secondary

4 % of Young people NEET

5. % with good level of
development in Early Years

6. % with good achievement at
the end of primary school

7. % gaining 5 good GCSEs
including English and maths

8. Level 3 qualifications at 19.

9. The number of CYP 16-18
who start an apprenticeship

10. The number of disabled
children accessing short breaks &
levels of satisfaction

CYP Choose healthy
lifestyles

7. Encourage activity and healthy
eating

8. Promote sexual health

9. Minimise the misuse of drugs,
alcohol & tobacco

11. Obesity levels at age 11

12. Free school meal uptake-
primary; secondary

13. Teenage pregnancy

14. Rates of under 18s alcohol
related hospital admissions

CYP Have fun
growing up

10. Provide play, leisure, culture and
sporting opportunities

15. % of CYP who agree with the
statement “I enjoy my life”

CYP Are active
citizens who feel they
have voice &
influence

11. Reduce crime and anti-social
behaviour

12. Increase participation, voice and
influence

16. Proportion of 10-17 year olds
offending

17. C&YP who report influence
in @) school b) the community

Page 37




Leeds Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-2015

Vision for health & wellbeing: Leeds will be a healthy and caring city for all ages

Principle in all outcomes: People who are the poorest, will improve their health the fastest

Indicator: Reduce the differences in life expectancy between communities

live longer and
have healthier

2. Ensure everyone will have the best start in life

Outcomes Priorities Indicators
1. Support more people to choose healthy lifestyles | 1- Percentage of adults over 18 that smoke
2. Rate of alcohol related admissions to hospital
1. People will 3. Infant mortality rate

4. Excess weight in 10-11 year olds

5. Rate of early death (under 75s) from cancer.

lives 3. Ensure people have equitable access to screening
d ti ices to red t . .
z]nortzlri(ta;/en 107 SEMEES FOTEEUCE PIEMELIS 6. Rate of early death (under 75s) from cardiovascular disease
4. Increase the number of people supported to live 7. Rate Qf hospital adm_|SS|ons for care that could have been
safely in their own home provided in the community
2. People will 8. Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care
live full, active homes, per 1,000 population
and . .
independent | 5. Ensure more people recover from ill health 9: Proport]on of peop_le (65 and over) still at home 91 days after
lives discharge into rehabilitation
6. Ensure more people cope better with their 10. Proportion of people feeling supported to manage their
conditions condition
3. People’s , . 11. The number of people who recover following use of
quality of lfe 7. Improve people’s mental health & wellbeing osychological therapy
will be . - -
improved by | 8- Ensure people have equitable access to services 12. Improvement in access to GP primary care services
access to y ) .| 13. People’s level of satisfaction with quality of services
quality 9. Ensure people have a positive experience of their
services | @€ 14. Carer reported quality of life
4. People wil 10. Ensure that people have a voice and influence in | 15. The proportion of people who report feeling involved in
be involved in | decision making decisions about their care
decisions [ 11, Increase the number of people that have more : . . .
made about | choice and control over their health and social care 16. Propor‘uon of people using NHS and social care who receive
them SEIVICes self-directed support

5. People will live
in healthy and
sustainable
communities

12. Maximise health improvement through action on
housing

17. The number of properties achieving the decency standard

13. Increase advice and support to minimise debt and
maximise people’s income

18. Number of households in fuel poverty

19. Amount of benefits gained for eligible families that would
otherwise be unclaimed

14. Increase the number of people achieving their
potential through education and lifelong learning

20. The percentage of children gaining 5 good GCSEs including
maths & English

15. Support more people back into work and healthy
employment

21. Proportion of adults with learning disabilities in employment

22. Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health
services in employment

Page 38




Progress so far

The CYPP 2011-15 was agreed by the Children’s Trust Board (CTB) in April 2011.
The framework of outcomes, priorities, obsessions and indicators outlined above is
now widely understood across the city. It helps everyone focus on the key areas.
For 2013 onwards we have added minimising substance misuse as part of priority 7.
This reflects the importance of the misuse of drugs, alcohol and tobacco by children
and adults and its role as a primary factor in many poor outcomes.

We have the highest aspirations and are confident we can continue to make a real
difference for children and young people in Leeds, especially the most vulnerable.
Our relentless focus on the 3 obsessions remains. This has helped focus attention
and resources on those with the greatest needs and multiple poor outcomes. Work
on the obsessions impacts on the full range of outcomes and indicators.

Our starting point must always be identifying those most at risk of poor outcomes in
each of the 25 clusters across the city, and building responses and services around
their needs. We increasingly work “restoratively” with children, young people and
their families. Restorative practice means doing things with them rather than to
them or for them. We know that people are happier, more productive, and more
likely to make positive changes when we work with them.

Our collective effort to develop restorative practice, put the child at the centre of
everything we do, treating them as the client and safeguarding and promoting their
interests is beginning to show results. Central to this is a focus on outcomes-
improved outcomes- at locality level; making a real difference “on the ground” where
our children and young people live and experience Leeds in 2013 through listening
to their voice and engaging them in responses and decisions.

CTB have discussed progress in detail through a programme of regular reports.
Dashboards showing the latest performance against key indicators in localities
across the city are available at every meeting. Detailed reports on our 3 obsessions
look at the context behind the figures. City wide impact is summarised in two page
report cards.

Progress at the end of the second year of the CYPP 2011-15 remains mixed. There
are clear signs of good progress in outcomes and underlying this clear evidence for
the effectiveness of the strategies we have put in place to deliver improvement.
However, even where there is improvement, it is often the case that gaps between
average outcomes and those for the lowest achieving groups remain stubbornly
significant. As do gaps between our performance and that of other authorities.

Improvement Planning and responses to Inspections
Our work on our improvement plan developed in the light of the challenges identified
by Ofsted inspections is part of the progress story. Building on the work of the

original Improvement Plan and Improvement Board, and following the restructure of
social care and social work services across the city, including better integration with

Page 39



other services at locality level, we have developed a new 9 point plan- “Supporting
children and families, strengthening social work.” This consolidates progress and
details plans for further progress under 9 headings.

» Strengthen the voice and influence of children and young people:
* Improve provision for looked after children and young people:

» Strengthen the role of families:

» Develop social work practice:

* Improve communication and engagement across social care

* Improve ICT Systems and the estate for social work and families:
» Develop peer support and challenge:

» Strengthen quality assurance and performance management:

» Strengthen Early Help / Early Intervention and Prevention:

Recent inspection activity

Inspectors are currently positive about progress in Leeds. Feedback from a January
2013 Ofsted thematic review of the Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) service
provided very positive feedback about the IRO service and social work practice.
They were impressed with the enthusiasm and commitment of the IROs and Social
Workers they met, and by the fact that both groups knew their children well and were
clearly focused on delivering the best possible outcomes for them. They identified no
cases where they were concerned about practice, and in their feedback felt that in all
cases interventions were purposeful, and that the IROs provide effective support and
challenge to social workers which is recognised and valued.

We have also had positive feedback from the pilot inspection of Services for Children
Looked After and Care Leavers carried out in February 2013. Whilst it is important
not to read too much into the individual feedback from this and from the thematic
review of the Independent Reviewing Officer and Looked After Services as they not
full inspections, taken together they provide a robust examination of how Children’s
Services and partners are working together to deliver good outcomes for looked after
children.

LILAC (Leading Improvements for Looked After Children) is an organisation led by
care experienced young people that assesses the effectiveness of Local Authorities
involvement of children and young people in their care. LILAC visited Leeds in
February to assess the progress of children’s services in involving children and
young people in improving their care.

LILAC have developed their own good practice standards for services and are
trained to assess the performance of local providers against these LILAC standards.
The seven LILAC standards are based on the well-known 'Hear By Right' approach
to participation but they have been developed to closely reflect the nature of the
Care system.

The assessment by LILAC is important because the judgement is made by young
people who have been in care themselves, and because the findings are based on

10
Page 40



interviews with children, young people, foster carers and staff. Future OfSTED
inspections will similarly base their inspections on interviews with children and carers
S0 success in this assessment gives some more confidence that improvements are
making a difference and being recognised by children and carers. The final report is
not yet complete but initial feedback from LILAC is that Leeds has fully met all seven
standards.

No Leeds children’s home is rated as inadequate by Ofsted. Five of the twelve (42
per cent) are rated good or better; seven (58 per cent) are rated as
satisfactory/adequate. Based on the most recent interim inspection reports, eight
homes (67 per cent) are currently making good or better progress.

A more challenging school inspection framework began in September 2012. The
Primary School Improvement Service have supported schools before, during and
after Ofsted inspections and have used the findings of all Leeds primary inspections
during the autumn term to enable schools who are expecting an inspection this year
to prepare based on Ofsted’s current areas of focus. At the time of writing 80% of
primary schools are judged to be good or outstanding, an increase of 12 percentage
points compared to the same period last year. Six schools are currently inadequate.

Over the past 12 months, a number of high schools previously judged as satisfactory
by Ofsted are now judged as 'good’ schools. Challenges remain though, with four
secondary schools judged inadequate.

Key challenges

Key challenges include further work in the following areas:

* “turning the curve” for our 3 obsession indicators and other key indicators,
ensuring that effort and input translates into improved outcomes

» narrowing the gap for those who continue to experience worse outcomes than
the average or best outcomes in the city

* narrowing persistent health inequalities against the background of complex
changes to the organisation and funding of health services

» developing strong clusters of multi agency services across the city that
effectively target and direct resources to those most in need

» continuing to build our capacity for improvement and implementing the
improvement strategies

» streamlining and simplifying commissioning processes and focusing them on
outcomes

Turning the curve on the obsessions
There is some good progress on each of our 3 obsessions. In summary:
* The number of children in care at the end of March 2013 is 98 lower (6.6
per cent) than the same period 12 months ago, and is also lower than at

any point since November 2009. There are 12 per cent fewer starters in the
2012-13 financial year than in the 2011-12 financial year.

11
Page 41



At the end of February 2013 there were 1437 NEET young people in
Leeds (6.3%). The projected out-turn for Leeds for 2012 is 6.6%, a reduction
from 8.1% in 2011. In November 2012 the rate in Leeds was 5.9% and the
national NEET rate was 5.8%. As at February 2013, Leeds is ranked 80th of
150 local authorities.

The most recent national comparative data (2011/12 academic year) shows
that primary attendance for Leeds schools was in the top quartile of all
local authorities. Secondary attendance remained in the bottom quartile,
but was the highest ever recorded in the city. In the autumn term of 2012
attendance rates are still higher than in 2010/11 but the increases observed
in autumn 2011 have not been sustained. lliness accounts for much of this
change. Although in secondary unauthorised absence accounts for the
majority of the difference between Leeds attendance and national trends.

We know we have more to do and that improvement has to be sustained and has to
cover a wide range of issues. Key challenges include:

Reductions on the number of children looked after have been achieved by
supporting children to achieve permanence more quickly. There has been
little change in the numbers in particular age groups, eg. under 5’s and under
1’s. It will take time for preventative and early intervention strategies to have
a full impact. However, it illustrates the scale of the challenge.

Our biggest challenge around attendance is to tackle persistent absence and
unauthorised absence in our secondary schools. This is fundamental to
supporting our aims to improve educational attainment. The over-
representation of specific cohorts of pupils in absence is also an issue e.g.
Free school meal eligible pupils, some ethnic groups such as
Gypsy/Romal/Traveller, and some Children Looked After cohorts.

Further progress on NEET requires a focus on addressing the needs of young
people with the most significant and complex barriers to progression. This
requires intensive work with children looked after, care leavers and young
people facing challenges around issues such as housing, finance, mental
health, substance abuse, parenting and domestic violence.

Headline achievements and challenges for each of the five outcomes and 11
priorities are summarised below.

12
Page 42



Children and young people are safe from harm- Priorities 1-2
1. Help children to live in safe & supportive families-
2. ensure that the most vulnerable are protected

Achievements

The number of children in care at the end of March 2013 is 98 lower (6.6 per cent) than
the same period 12 months ago, and is also lower than at any point since November 2009.
There are 12 per cent fewer starters in the 2012-13 financial year than in the 2011-12
financial year.

More vulnerable children and families are having their needs met through joined up local
services. Referrals to social care are reducing. Almost 20 per cent fewer in 2012/13 than in
2011/12 (11,357 compared to 14,122). This has supported the reduction in children looked
after, and helped to ensure that the Social Work Service is focused on children with the
greatest levels of need.

High quality Children’s Centres, now working together with NHS services, provide strong
support for young children and their families. 82% of Leeds’ Children’s Centres are rated as
good or outstanding. Children’s Centres and health visiting services have merged to create
the ‘Early Start’ service to create a more joined up support for families.

Better referral processes and better referrals. External academic researchers and local
partners have provided positive feedback on our new arrangements for managing referrals to
social work services. Decision-making is improved, supported by clearer referrals, with more
referrals progressing to assessments. All referrals are quality assured by senior officers.

Improved support for children and families affected by domestic violence. Domestic violence
leads to many of the contacts and referrals for extra help from social care. We have put in
place stronger joint working supported by a dedicated social worker now located within the
police headquarters to provide advice and support on all cases.

Children in need of protection are supported more quickly. Partners are now very effective at
responding quickly when a child is in need of protection. More Child Protection Conferences
take place within timescales than in similar areas or the national average.

Safeguarding capacity has been strengthened. The Council has invested in creating a much
stronger, independent service to support safeguarding in Leeds. The Independent
Safeguarding Unit has far greater capacity to support multi-agency work with children at risk.

Restorative practice is making a difference for children needing protection. Partners have
successfully implemented the ‘Strengthening Families’ approach to helping children in need of
protection.

The attendance and achievement of Children Looked After is improving. In primary schools
attendance is better than the city average, and in secondary schools improvement has nearly
closed the gap with the city average. In part due to improving attendance, interim data show
that attainment has improved at all key stages.

Children Looked After are supported by stronger services. Dedicated teams have been set
up, with separate specialist teams for those aged 0-12 and those aged 13+. These teams are
based across the areas of the city and have strengthening links with wider services through
Clusters. The Council has invested in additional staffing, supported by new training
programmes and extra mentoring to newly qualified staff. As a result of this investment
caseloads have been reduced markedly from well over 25 to nearly 20.

The latest figures suggests that the local target to reduce the infant mortality rate in ‘Deprived
Leeds’ to 5.5 per 1000 live births by 2015 has been achieved.

13
Page 43




Children and young people are safe from harm- Priorities 1-2

1.Help children to live in safe & supportive families-
2.ensure that the most vulnerable are protected

Challenges

\uﬁ
o

Continue to support the development of stronger local working in Clusters. Through effective
early intervention by cluster working support more children to remain in their family network.

Invest in developing the range and quality of evidence based family support services for the
most vulnerable families.

omyy | owmy

Expand the use of restorative approaches that work with children and families such as Family
Group Conferencing. Increase (by March 2014) the family group conferencing offer across the
city to enable all families where there are concerns that a child under 5 may become looked
after to be offered a family group conference.

Increase the quantity and quality of uses of the Common Assessment Framework.

Invest in a programme of improvement for assessment skills in social work staff.

Work with children and young people to develop new and better ways for involving them in
support.

Undertake a targeted programme of support and challenge for areas of the city where rates of
referrals and re-referrals are higher.

Extend the use of restorative working to find ways to provide effective protection for children
within their wider family and community.

The development of a quality assurance process for children subject to a child protection plan,
similar to the existing one for children looked after, is a priority for 2013-14.

owy) ( owyy owy owm Oowy owmy oy

An examination of children becoming subject to a child protection plan for a second or
subsequent time will look at whether alternative systems are used in a timely and appropriate
way (family group conferencing, for example).

CL ]

A joint review with the LSCB of the rising numbers of children subject to a child protection
plan will look at the robustness of conference chairs’ decision-making, and ensure that best
practice is followed with regards registration and de-registration.

Implement a programme of improvements for care planning.

Invest in improvements to residential homes for Children Looked After.

Invest in developing more fostering and adoption placements in Leeds.

Implement a programme of improved support for Care Leavers to ensure all are in learning or
work. Review, update and improve all Pathway Plans that support Care Leavers.

Increase the number of care leavers entering higher education.

Put in place Early Intervention and Prevention measures designed to impact on the numbers
of younger Children Looked After, those under 5 and under 1.

Deliver the Families First programme.

owy) | owy | owy) | 0wy | 0wy ( owy ( Owy | =y

Refresh the Child poverty strategy, including strategy and actions to tackle the impact of
welfare reform changes.

14
Page 44




Children & young people do well at all levels of learning & have the skills for life- Priorities 3-6
3. Improve behaviour, attendance & achievement
4. Increase numbers in employment, education or training
5. Support children to be ready for learning
6. Improve support where there are additional health needs

Achievements

The percentage of children reaching a Good Level of Development in Early Years Foundation
Stage is in line with national and improved at the same rate of increase as seen nationally but
above the increase for statistical neighbours.

At Key Stage 1, the percentage of children meeting the required standard of phonic decoding
in Leeds was above both the national figure and the average for statistical neighbour LAs; it
places Leeds in the top quartile of schools nationally.

The percentage of children achieving a Level 2 or better at the end of Key Stage 1 in Leeds
increased by one percentage point for reading, two percentage points for writing, but has
stayed static in maths. Leeds outcomes are now between one and three percentage points
below the national.

At Key Stage 2 in 2012 there has been a three percentage point improvement in the proportion
of children achieving a Level 4 or better in English, a four percentage point improvement in
maths and a four percentage point improvement on the combined English and maths indicator.
Progress is in the top quartile of authorities.

At Key Stage 4 there have been a number of improvements in Leeds against most benchmarks
in 2011-12 for example the number of students gaining 5+ A*- C grade GCSEs including
English and maths rose by 1.1% to 55% which is greater than that seen nationally . Also, the
proportion of students gaining five good passes in any GCSE or equivalent subject rose by
2.1% to 83.7% in 2012. Leeds therefore remains above the national figure and above the
average for statistical neighbours.

The most recent national comparative data (2011/12 academic year) shows that primary
attendance for Leeds schools was in the top quartile of all local authorities. Secondary
attendance remained in the bottom quartile, but was the highest ever recorded in the city.

At the end of February 2013 there were 1437 NEET young people in Leeds (6.3%). The
projected out-turn for Leeds for 2012 is 6.6%, a reduction from 8.1% in 2011.

There were 2,214 apprenticeship starts by 16 to 18 year-olds in Leeds between August 2011
and July 2012. This represents a 16.3 per cent increase compared to 2010/11; nationally, over
the same period, there has been 1.4 per cent decrease. Success rates are above national
success rates; however, they have dropped slightly compared to Leeds’ position 12 months
ago (74.3 per cent in 11/12 compared to 76.9 per cent in 10/11)

Projections for the number of short breaks in 2012/13 show an increase, from 1,261 children
and 133,386 hours in 2011/12 to 1,345 children and 134,749 hours. (NB. These figures relate
only to universal plus, targeted and specialist provision, which is delivered internally or has
been commissioned. They do NOT include universal settings, which is where the majority of
disabled children should be able to access short breaks.

15
Page 45




Children & young people do well at all levels of learning & have the skills for life- Priorities 3-6
3. Improve behaviour, attendance & achievement
4. Increase numbers in employment, education or training

5. Support children to be ready for learning

6. Improve support where there are additional health needs

Challenges

Reducing persistent absence and unauthorised absence in secondary schools. Just over
3,000 secondary pupils missed more than 15% of school time in 2011/12.

Address the over-representation of specific cohorts of pupils in absence, Free school meal
eligible pupils, ethnic groups such as Gypsy/Roma/Traveller, & some CLA cohorts.

Work with secondary schools to understand the reasons behind high levels of unauthorised
absence and to make recommendations on interventions and services that will address these.

Improve understanding of daily engagement rates in all schools and settings across the city,
and maximise levels of engagement through effective cluster working.

Address the needs of young people not in education, employment or training with the most
significant and complex barriers to progression.

Implement the targeted information, advice and guidance programme.

Deliver the Leeds Apprenticeship Hub.

Through effective area and cluster working ensure the safe sharing of accurate and timely
information about NEET young people, and through that effective case management.

oy | Oowmy Owy Oowy Owy  owmy | owyy  owmyy o=y

Secure suitable land and buildings to support the expansion of local school places. Ensure
the expansion of local primary and secondary schools places as per the 10 year expansion
plan. Work with clusters to identify local demand for places and solutions that meet demand.

Improve further the percentage of good and outstanding schools in the context of a much
tougher Ofsted inspection framework.

Further improve attainment and progress outcomes for children and young people, especially
in Maths and English leading to a reduction in the number of schools below floor standards. .

omy | owmy | omy

Provide high quality support and guidance to all under-performing schools and their governing
bodies and cluster partnerships.

omy

Develop effective interventions for the use of funding targeted at disadvantaged children and
young people. (eg. Pupil Premium & Year 7 catch up). With a focus on achievement and
progression in English and maths. To be included in the 2013/14 offer to schools.

Through effective cluster working identify and resource solutions which target children who
are experiencing experience significant gaps, particularly in english and maths.

omy owmy

Deploy school improvement and cluster resources to support schools to provide a creative,
appropriate, broad and balanced curriculum for all children & young people.

Continue to improve school to school support through the use of seconded headteachers and
other systems leaders such as local and national leaders of education and teaching schools.

Expand the number of early learning for disadvantaged 2 year olds. (1,000 additional places
by March 2013; 2,500 in March 2014, projected 5,500 in January 2015).

Leeds will be trialling the new review for two year olds. This brings together the existing
Healthy Child Programme review and the new two year old Early Years Progress Check.

owy ( owyy ( owyy | oy

Improve access to universal settings and ensure fair and equitable access, so that all disabled
children, young people and their families who would benefit from short breaks can do so.

16
Page 46




Children & young people choose healthy lifestyles- Priorities 7-8
7. Encourage activity and healthy eating
8. Promote sexual health

Achievements

Teenage conception rates have reduced by 21% since Q4 2008. Rates in the majority of priority
wards have either stabilised or reduced. The latest national data shows the rates in Leeds are
39.8 conceptions per 1000 15-17 year old females (June 2011), compared to 50.8 per 1000 in
December 2008. This equates to 116 under 18 conceptions in the second quarter of 2011,
compared to 148 under 18 conceptions in the same period of the previous year.

Data from the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) shows that the rates of
childhood obesity in the city continue to be high and fairly static for both Reception (9.3%) and
Year 6 (19.7%) children.

A new Healthy Weight pathway has been signed off by the Early Start Board which will support
early identification and support of children with weight issues.

SCORED/TACKLED sexual health programme delivered to 64 boys considered at risk of early
unplanned parenthood and/or poor sexual health in areas of high teenage conception rates.
Assertive Outreach Contraception Scheme (providing young people with 1-1 support) launched

965 practitioners engaged in obesity work have attended HENRY training modules (HENRY =
Health Exercise & Nutrition for the Really Young)

All clusters covering priority Middle Layer Super Output Areas have been encouraged to include
teenage pregnancy within their action plan and to identify a Teenage Pregnancy/Targeted
Service Lead.

Priority schools have either a Healthy Young People’s Service (HYPS) or access to staff training
to ensure children and young people have swift and easy access to local sexual health services.

Range of activity has promoted active travel to school; car use is down from 26% in 2011 to
25.7% in 2012. 902 extra children walked /cycled or scooted part or all of the way to school
every day as part of WTHTG programme.

Challe

nges

|

oy

Although plateauing, rates of childhood obesity are far too high. 1:3 children in Year 6 are at
risk of developing obesity related health issues.

omy

Leeds FSM take-up is consistently below national levels, with around 5,000 children and young
people not taking their entitlement. Data for 2011/12 shows take up in Primary at 76.7% (76.6%)
in Leeds compared to 81.8% (79.8%) nationally, and take up in secondary at 68.9% (67.1%) in
Leeds compared to 70.6% (69.3%) nationally. Brackets show 10/11 figures.

Raise aspirations in young people and ensure that support to teenage parents continues to
avoid second and subsequent pregnancies

Existing Youth Work providers to target young people in priority areas around accessing
services, including contraception & sexual health information and advice

owmy | oy | oy

Continue to deliver the Free School Meals strategy focusing on catering services in new
schools; meetings with catering contractors; head teacher control over catering contracts;
inclusion of FSM issues in school improvement programmes; nomination of school governor
FSM champions; identification of FSM champion schools who can share best practice; inclusion
of FSM issues in cluster business planning; training and advice for family support workers;
publicity campaigns.

CL ]

Deliver eight more SCORED/TACKLED sexual health programmes for boys considered at risk
of early unplanned parenthood and/or poor sexual health in areas of high teenage conception
rates.

17
Page 47




Children & young people have fun growing up- Priority 9

9. Provide play, leisure, culture and sporting opportunities

Achievements

A group of 17 14-23 year olds have created a major exhibition at Leeds City Museum as part of
the London Olympiad.

The recent Darren Henley review of Cultural Education in England recognises Breeze card as a
model of good practice to be replicated across the country.

Child Friendly City young advisors have been recruited. There are currently over 40 children
and young people recruited to be involved in the development of services and activity across the
city.

Breeze Friday Night Projects across the city for children aged 8 — 18 (25 for young people with
disabilities).

150 young people performed the City of Leeds Youth Music Prom to 1000 children and young
people from Leeds, as well as the Lord Mayor and invited guests.

Challenges

¥
|
®

A new budget (underpinned by a new resource allocation formula) should be delegated to Area
Committees by April 2013 in their roles as community champions to stimulate the design and
delivery of a local activity programme for young people under the Breeze brand.

omyy

A new geographically targeted youth work service (underpinned by a new resource allocation
formula) should be established with Area Committees acting as key clients in partnership with
the Lead Member for Children’s Services.

CL ]

By April 2014 a commissioning process should have been completed to enable geographically
targeted youth work services to be contested and new contracts to be established where
appropriate. The new service should be expected to work within the framework for targeted
services.

CL ]

Review of the options for organising and managing Music & Arts provision for children and
young people in order to sustain a significant cultural offer in the medium to longer term as well
as securing a short term base.

omyy

Develop better measures of work on play, leisure, culture and sporting opportunities and a
better understanding of how to deliver and monitor priority 9, including an understanding of
children and young people’s perspective on having fun growing up.

18
Page 48




Children & young people are active citizens who feel they have voice & influence- Priorities 10-

11

10. Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour
11. Increase participation, voice & influence

Achievements

Creation of a single child friendly custody suite for Leeds at Stainbeck Police station, to promote
a joined up approach to dealing with young people as quickly as possible and to maximize
opportunities for diversion away from the criminal justice system. The single custody pilot was
extended to young people arrested from all three police divisions from March 2013.

Reductions in the use of custody by 25% over the first twelve month period as part of the West
Yorkshire pathfinder pilot (the only one of the 4 national pilots to achieve this success).

The Safer Schools Police Officers, who cover 35 out of the 38 secondary schools in Leeds, are
still having a positive impact on reducing the number of First Time Entrants to the youth justice
system. They are mandated to intervene and resolve conflicts directly in schools which are
preventing unnecessary criminalisation.

The use of restorative alternatives as a way of preventing escalation of minor offences to more
serious crimes.

Youth Inclusion Projects (YIPs) provide a voluntary service to children, young people and their
families at a pre-warning stage. This is a specialist & targeted service aimed at children
identified as being ‘at risk’ of crime, anti-social behaviour, being NEET, and/or at risk of entry
into care. YIP’s work with an 8 to 16 age range.

Established the annual Leeds Children’s Mayor programme. Over 3,500 votes were cast for
2011/12 children’s mayor. CYP (service users) with complex needs are engaged in the
planning, development and assessment of services.

CYP involved in recruitment and selection in children’s services and in commissioning and
contracting of services.

Challenges

Responding to the transfer of costs to the Local Authority in respect of managing custodial
remands and ensuring that the new duties around remanded young people becoming Children
Looked After are embraced.

¥ In partnership with West Yorkshire Police, implementing from April 2013, the new legislation on

¢ | out of court disposals and community resolutions.

¥ Work with young people who have offended at a less serious level. This is to prevent escalation

¢ | to more serious offences that would lead to criminalisation of young people.

] Develop a tiered prevention service aimed at young people at risk of or involved in the early

¢ | stage of offending

¥ Extend restorative justice into non statutory work, involving victims and giving young people the

¢ | opportunity to make amends

¥ Increase membership of Leeds Youth Council especially from harder to reach groups including

¢ | Children Looked After.

¥ Establish a Voice and Influence working group in specialist residential settings for disabled

¢ | children and young people to support, monitor the involvement of young people in audit, staff
training, recruitment and selection and developing and improving services.

] Increase CYP’s participation in services that focus on the assessment, care planning,

¢ | development and safeguarding of CYP with SEN, disabilities and complex needs.

] Run young people’s workshops across Leeds to seek views of young people on future youth

@

work delivery.

19
Page 49




Key Improvement Strategies- Working Restoratively, Putting the Child at the
Centre

Four underpinning principles for working with children and families have been agreed
by the CTB as part of the 2012 CYPP refresh:

1 The default behaviour of Children’s Trust and Local Government partners in
all their dealings with local citizens/partners/organisations should be a
restorative one - high support with high challenge. (A restorative approach is
built on the basic premise that "people are happier, more cooperative and
productive, and more likely to make positive changes when those in positions of
authority do things with them rather than to them or for them"

2 Children’s Trust and Local Government partners should ensure that families,
whose children might otherwise be removed from their homes are supported
to meet and develop a safe alternative plan before such action is taken.

3 For all other families where a plan or decision needs to be made to help
safeguard and promote the welfare of a child or children the family should be
supported to help decide what needs to happen. Children’s Trust and Local
Government partners must create the conditions where families can be helped to
help themselves - this would represent a fundamental renegotiation of the
relationship between Local Government and local citizens - from doing things to and
for families to doing things with them.

4 Children’s Trust and Local government partners must see all local schools
as community assets and have a clear role in holding those institutions - no
matter what the governance arrangements - to account for the contribution
they make to the well being of the local population.

An important part of what we need to do to become the best city in the UK, and as
part of that a child friendly city, is changing the way we work with the citizens of
Leeds. As part of this, we know we must try and prevent situations in families
escalating to the point at which the council has to take serious action, which in the
most extreme cases can mean removing a child from their family, because the social
and financial costs of doing so, as well as the impact on the child themselves, can be
significant.

We need to support families to become better equipped to solve their own problems
and address the challenges they face. We need to develop our role as a facilitator,
so that more of what we do enables families to make positive changes themselves
that ultimately make them stronger together and more resilient. Working in this way,
doing things with children, young people and families rather than to them or for them,
is a technique known as restorative practice and over the last 18 months we’ve been
gradually introducing a revolution in this approach across children’s services.

Restorative ways of working are already widely established in many cities and
organisations across the world. There is a significant body of evidence that
consistently shows the impact they can have. In Leeds we started our work by

20
Page 50



drawing on the best of this existing practice. Ultimately restorative practice is about
creating the conditions for people to have better quality conversations, ones that
avoid blame and instead focus on understanding how people feel and finding
meaningful solutions to their problems. This is done through things like asking the
right type of questions, creating the right setting to make the conversation as
equitable as possible and having the right facilitation s! kills present to keep the
conversation flowing, focused and constructive. It may sound simple and in many
ways it is, but embedding these ways of working genuinely into everything we do
takes time and investment.

And we have been investing. Over the last 18 months more and more of our staff
have been on restorative practice training. A number of our schools now use
restorative practice techniques to structure their day and shape how pupils and staff
communicate with each other.

Of particular importance is our roll-out, city-wide, of an approach called family group
conferencing, which is a form of restorative practice that takes the techniques I've
discussed, into the heart of families experiencing serious challenges. We've built a
team of skilled facilitators who are leading this work and we’re already seeing some
fantastic results to help families take control of their problems and make positive
changes.

Restorative Practice has benefits not just in how we work with families, but also how
we work with one another, reducing hierarchy, creating shared ownership of issues
and finding solutions together.

Key Improvement Strategies- Supporting children and families, strengthening
social work

The 9 Point Plan sets out how the Council intends to work with partners to further
improve support for families, strengthen social work and deliver improved outcomes
for children. The plan sits with the overall context and framework of the Leeds
Children and Young People’s Plan and sets out how social care services will
contribute to the shared vision of a Child Friendly Leeds.

The nine areas covered by the plan are:

Strengthening the voice and influence of children and young people
Improve provision for children looked after and young people
Strengthen the role of families

Developing social work practice

Improving communication and engagement across social care
Improving ICT Systems and the estate for social work and families
Developing peer support and challenge

Strengthening quality assurance and performance management
Strengthening Early Help / Early Intervention and Prevention

oNoahwh =2

Leeds’ approach is mirrored in national policy, where significant changes in policy for
social work and safeguarding have been informed by the Munro Review. The Review
advocates reshaping safeguarding and social work around the ‘journey of the child’

through their lives and through support and care. To achieve this Review advocates:

21
Page 51



better involvement of children; freeing social workers from bureaucracy; developing
the skills and professional judgement of social workers and their lead role across
children’s services.

The government has been active in promoting wider change in policy — for example
in promoting the importance of permanence — settled, stable family placements such
as adoption. Above all, the government has rightly made clear its higher
expectations for safeguarding and support for the vulnerable. The plan has been
developed to respond to a changing context and raised expectations for social work
and children’s services.

OfSTED in turn has reacted to these policy changes and rising standards and
adopted a new approach to inspection that changes the focus of inspection from
process to outcomes, with a central role for the views of children and families.

The implementation of the 9 Point Plan will be monitored and scrutinised by The
Child and Family Scrutiny Panel; The Children’s Trust Board and Leeds
Safeguarding Children Board; the external expert support and challenge board;
Corporate Carers and the Children in Care Council.

Key Improvement Strategies- Enhancing Cluster and Locality working

Our clusters are local partnerships (25 in total) that include, amongst others, the
Children’s Social Work Service, schools, governors, Police, Leeds City Council youth
service, Youth Offending Service, Children’s Centres, Housing services, third sector,
health, local elected members and a senior representative from children’s services.

Local clusters are key to the partnership and delivery arrangements for children’s

services in Leeds. The purpose of each partnership is to:

» enable local settings and services to work together effectively to improve
outcomes for children, young people and their families

* build capacity to improve the delivery of preventative and targeted services to
meet local needs

» create the conditions for integrated partnership working at locality level,

» promote the ambition of a child friendly city across the locality

This builds on cluster partnerships and networks which have developed across the
city in recent years and complements partnership arrangements at area and city
level. Cluster partnerships operate through a range of governance arrangements;
Families of Schools; Area Committees; and locally determined partnerships. This is
supplemented by cluster Chairs’ meetings which bring all clusters together and
support the development of common ways of working, consistency and networking
with clusters in other parts of the city.

Schools forum have agreed to contribute £5.2m per year for the next 3 years to help
fund cluster work. Clusters play a major role in driving the delivery of the CYPP.
This role is growing all the time. Currently, we are growing the capacity of clusters to
provide Early Intervention and Prevention support to local children and families
by developing the role of the Targeted Services Leader (TSL). TSLs work with

22
Page 52



clusters using a “TOP 100’ methodology to identify children and families who need
additional support. The “Top 100” methodology is a fluid record of the families who
are identified as vulnerable with multiple additional needs in the locality. To be
effective, input into the top 100 process should come from all cluster stakeholders
across education settings, children’s settings, health settings, community safety
settings, housing settings and adult settings. This includes a coordinated support
package and the identification of an appropriate lead agency.

Early start teams bringing together services for those aged 0-5 have been rolled out
across the clusters. They work together with the new area based social care teams
and TSLs to focus our resources on helping the most vulnerable, including
specifically targeting those most likely to become children looked after.

All clusters have multi agency groups focusing on identifying the best response for
all those requiring additional support, and appropriate decisions about which cases
require specialist social work interventions. They aim to deliver the relevant service
in a way which enables children to remain safely within their family and community.

Central to this work will be further progress on information sharing and case
management. This is designed to ensure the effective and appropriate sharing of
information, and is central to both the identification of the top 100 families, and
subsequent targeting and direction of resources.

Through the Families First Programme just over 870 families requiring support
around anti social behaviour, youth offending, school attendance, progress to work
and continuous employment. Cluster partnerships are identifying lead practitioners
and facilitating multi agency engagement. The focus on these families is part of a
national initiative and alongside the top 100 methodology is helping clusters to
effectively focus resources and effort. There is some overlap between the two
cohorts of families but not as much as originally envisaged. A clear picture of needs
and gaps in terms of service provision is emerging and being addressed through
joint working between the Families First team and cluster partnerships.

Clusters early work and successes arose from the application of Outcomes based
accountability (OBA) to the 3 obsessions. OBA continues to be a key method.
OBA takes the current baseline performance trend, and asks partners to agree an
action plan for improving performance, or “turning the curve” towards the desired
outcome. It helps us focus on the key question- is anyone better off?

Key Improvement Strategies- Implementing Early Intervention & Prevention

The purpose of early intervention and prevention is to work with children, young
people and their families as soon as possible to tackle emerging problems, to identify
specific issues, or to target areas or populations who are known to be more
vulnerable or at risk. Underpinning this is our belief that it is important for children
and families to remain together wherever possible and appropriate.

We are developing our support for children and their families to work together in a
restorative way, earlier in the lifecycle of problems and to develop positive

23
Page 53



approaches that support and empower families. There is no single service
responsible for early intervention and prevention in Leeds. It is the responsibility of
all services working with children and families to identify where additional support is
needed. There are, however, under our new model for children’s services a number
of services who have a core responsibility around delivering services and support.

Cluster Managers and Targeted Services Leaders in each cluster coordinate the
over view of local early intervention services. The Duty and Advice Team is the
‘Front Door’ service to ensure that when another professional or practitioner or a
member of the public has concerns that a child or young person may be at risk of
harm or in need that an effective and purposeful response is provided. Team
members decide on what response is required and direct the issue to the relevant
specialist social work service or to another cluster based support service.

Early Start Teams have brought Health Visitors and Children’s Centre staff together
to provide a seamless early pathway for families from pre-birth to five years. The
impact of these teams will be an increased take up of early learning places;
improvement in the attainment at the end of Foundation Stage for all children and
narrowing the attainment gap for the bottom 20%; a reduction in the number of
looked after children (LAC) and children with a child protection, under five;
improvement in a range of health outcomes, including infant mortality rates.

These teams are based in Children’s Centres and health settings. Additional support
is centred on the Healthy Child Pathway, where every child (including pre-birth)
have a series of contacts to ensure developmental milestones are being met. It is
through a universal offer for all families that additional needs will be identified.

For school age children, we are developing our cluster local partnerships which
bring together a range of services involved in providing universal services for school
aged children and families. This includes growing the capacity of clusters to provide
Early Intervention and Prevention support to local children and families by
developing the role of the Targeted Services Leader. TSLs work with clusters using a
‘TOP 100’ methodology to identify children and families who need additional support.
TSLs are tasked to ensure that each family on the top 100 list benefits from a shared
assessment; a team around the family; a Lead family practitioner; a shared
intervention plan; and a communication strategy for the family.

TSLs are tasked to ensure that robust “support and guidance” processes are in
place within the cluster to galvanise local cluster resources to provide appropriate
early intervention. Where available, access to targeted mental health support
(TAMHS) is secured through support and guidance. Where more specialist
interventions are required such as Multi Systemic Therapy, family group
conferencing, Signpost family intervention programme or support from the Leeds
family intervention service, TSLs will broker these arrangements, ensuring that these
resources are appropriately targeted.

Underpinning all early intervention and prevention activity in Leeds is the
requirement to undertake Common Assessments, to develop shared plans to
support vulnerable children and families, focussing on working with them to improve
their outcomes.

24
Page 54



We also know that there are times where help is provided at a stage beyond early
intervention, and is built around preventing problems from re-occurring. Another
element of the role of Targeted Services and Early Start Teams is supporting the
safe de-escalation of support for children and families from specialist intervention
to less intensive cluster based care and support.

Reducing dependency on specialist services is part of a process of building
resilience and independence within families, to promote their ability to manage their
own needs wherever possible. Universal and targeted services, working together
with specialist services, can support a seamless escalation and de-escalation
pathway.

Children with disabilities or SEN, together with their families, may require specific
support at the initial point of diagnosis or identification, which may continue
throughout their childhood, including through transition to adult services. Early
support is promoted in Leeds as the government’s key delivery mechanism for
ensuring appropriate services are wrapped around the child and family.

Areas for further work include:

* Reduce the need for babies and children aged under 2 to be taken into care

* Narrow the attainment gap at Foundation Stage for the bottom 20%

* An agreed offer of parent and family support available through all 25 clusters

» Ensure each cluster has full multi-agency representation to deliver the CYPP
locally

» Ensure each cluster has information sharing agreements which enable full
implementation of Top 100 methodology

* Ensure robust Guidance and Support, and access to intensive family support
to enable de-escalation from a social work intervention

* Increase quantity and improve quality of Common Assessments carried out
prior to requests for social work services

* Promote the inclusion of disabled children to access short breaks within local
universal provision

Specialists guidance to those working in the relevant service areas is available
through our ‘Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy’ as well as the ‘Handbook
Supporting Joint Working’ and the ‘Early Start Professionals Handbook’.

Key Improvement Strategies- Building a Child Friendly City

Our outcome for all children and young people to be active citizens who feel they
have voice and influence is reinforced by our vision for Leeds to be a truly child
friendly city. This vision underpins all our outcomes and priorities. We are engaging
the whole city in making positive changes for our children and young people. This is
being done through 'Child Friendly Leeds Pledges'. Pledges take 2 forms:

» Supporter: for organisations and individuals that agree to publicly support the
aims and vision of a Child Friendly Leeds

25
Page 55



Partner: for organisations and individuals commit to making a significant and
concrete pledge to do something extra to support CFC.

The 12 CFC pledges emerged from extensive consultation with children and young
people across the city. Over 80 child friendly Leeds young advisers have been
recruited to help with the delivery of the programme.

Children and young people can make safe journeys and easily travel around
the city

Children and young people find the city centre welcoming and safe, with
friendly places to go, have fun and play

There are places and spaces to play and things to do, in all areas and open to
all

Children and young people can easily find out what they want to know, when
they want it and how they want it

Children, young people and adults have a good understanding of children's
rights, according to the United Nation Convention on the Rights of the Child
Children and young people are treated fairly and feel respected

Children and young people have the support and information they need to
make healthy lifestyle choices

All our learning places identify and address the barriers that prevent children
and young people from engaging in and enjoying learning

There are a greater number of better quality jobs, work experience
opportunities and good quality careers advice for all

All children and young people have their basic rights met

Children and young people express their views, feel heard and are actively
involved in decisions that affect their lives

Places where children and young people spend time and play are free of litter
and dog fouling

Current work focuses on consolidating capacity, enthusiasm and the reach of the
initiative across the city. Specific actions plans are in place for work to support the 3
CYYP obsessions and the top 3 wishes or pledges.

make safe journeys and easily travel round the city

express their views, feel heard and ... actively involved in decisions that affect
their lives

(access a) greater number of better quality jobs, work experience
opportunities and good quality careers advice for all’

Key Improvement Strategies- Tackling Inequality & Vulnerability

We need to understand and respond to the diverse needs, aspirations and
experiences of all our children, young people, and their families and communities.
We aim to remove barriers that affect what they can do and achieve, and work with
them to build aspirations and help them achieve their full potential.

26
Page 56



Responding to inequality, diversity and vulnerability are central to the day to day
business of the Children Leeds partners. Rapid improvement in outcomes for some
of the most vulnerable children, young people and families is the rationale for our
focus on the three obsessions. It is at the core of our focus on cluster working and
early intervention and prevention.

We know that children and young people can experience inequality and unfairness in
the availability and access to services, in the outcomes and opportunities they
experience and in the degree of independence they have to make decisions affecting
their lives. In equality of opportunity, outcomes, aspiration, material and social
circumstance can come about for a variety of reasons. Discrimination and
disadvantage can be intentional or inadvertent. It can be relatively easy to deal with
or it can be rooted in complex social structures.

As a result of this complexity equality and diversity is not a “specialist subject.” It is
part and parcel of everything we do, every day and through all our engagement and
planning and delivery of services for children and young people.

Equality of outcomes and respect for diversity are also at the heart of key
programmes such as the Infant Mortality Strategy, Child Poverty Strategy,
Substance misuse work, Families First, the Leeds Education Challenge, the Social
Care improvement plan, Childhood Obesity Strategy and Free School Meals
Strategy. Narrowing the gap agendas are a particular concerns of many of these
programmes. A focus which arises because our key indicators often show stubborn
and significant gaps between the outcomes enjoyed by the majority and those
enjoyed by the lowest achieving groups.

As a result of this complexity inequality and vulnerability diversity is not a “specialist
subject.” It is part and parcel of everything we do, every day and through all our
engagement and planning and delivery of services for children and young people.
However, having said that, there are a number of issues worthy of being highlighted.

The Leeds Education Challenge (LEC) sets out a vision for every child to be in
learning, every school to be a great school and every young person to be
succeeding. The five strands of the LEC are:

» leadership, management and governance

» teaching and learning

» schools facing challenging circumstances

» closing the gap for vulnerable learners

» family and community engagement “beyond the school gate”

The impact of deprivation and other forms of inequality and vulnerability on
learning outcomes remains fundamental. For example, overall results have
improved at the foundation stage. However, the gap between the bottom 20% and
the average is 33.6%, above the national figure of 31.3%. The gap particularly
affects boys, pupils eligible for free school meals (FSM), those with English as an
additional language (EAL), those with special educational needs (SEN) and Children
Looked After. (CLA) This then translates into performance gaps in the later phases
of education. At the end of primary school the percentage achieving level 4 or above

27
Page 57



is 21 % points lower for FSM pupils for the combined English and maths indicator.
Significant gaps also remain for those with SEN and EAL alongside a dramatic
improvement for CLA. Patterns of this kind repeat at Key Stage 4. And the picture is
overlaid by persistent and significant gaps for some Black and Minority Ethnic
groups.

It is these kinds of factors that make the “closing the gap” outcomes in the LEC a
particular important measure of our progress. We also know that educational
achievement is a crucial determinant of a child’s life chances and that deprivation is
strongly correlated with poor educational outcomes and subsequent life chances.

In Leeds relative poverty defined as households earning less than 60% of median
income impacts on the lives of 23% of children under 16 and 22% of all children.
More than 33,000 children and young people in Leeds. The numerical equivalents of
these figures are 30.955 and 35,100. There are significant variations in the figures
by Ward. Five wards have over 40% of children in poverty- Burmantofts and
Richmond Hill; City and Hunslet; Gipton & Harehills; Hyde Park and Woodhouse;
and, Middleton Park. Five wards have less than 10% of children in poverty- Adel
and Wharfdale; Guiseley and Rawdon; Harewood; Horsforth; and, Wetherby.

The work of the Child Poverty Group which like the LEC programme Boards reports
directly to the CTB, develops a range of work in 4 key areas

* Financial support, including promoting Free school meal eligibility/take up

» Best start in life, including infant mortality in Leeds and deprived areas of
the city

* Employment & Adult Skills

* Housing & Neighbourhoods

A particular new emphasis is working with partners across the city to identify and
address the impact of welfare reforms and changes to national and local funding for
public services on levels of poverty. For example, in Leeds 14,200 households with
children will lose an average of £2.61 per week as a result of the replacement of
Council Tax Benefit with localised Council Tax support schemes. (Overall a total of
27,000 people will pay more and an additional 7,000 will have to pay for the first time
as the result of the changes). Reductions in housing benefit for ALMO and Housing
Association tenants assessed as having too many bedrooms affect just over 6,700
and 1,500 people respectively. Of these 1,633 and 552 respectively are households
with children.

Many of these changes will impact on children and families that already experience
multiple poor outcomes. Particularly those identified through our Families First
programme and top 100 methodology.

The development of the Complex Needs Service in Leeds City Council and changes
in both health provider models and health commissioning, make this an appropriate
time to re-convene a senior level strategic interagency meeting to ensure clear
direction across agencies and promote integrated working practice to increase
efficiency given the financial constraints of all public sector partners.

28
Page 58



In addition the SEN Green Paper: Support and Aspiration: A new approach to
special educational needs and disability —Progress and next steps (May 2012)
proposes key actions to support more effective interagency working for young people
with Special Educational Needs, disabilities and learning difficulties, including an
Education, Health and Care plan, which is a multi- agency assessment and plan to
replace the statementing process from birth to 25.

The CTB has therefore established a Complex Needs Partnership Group to
oversee .these developments. It is interagency across social care, health, education
and includes representation from the voluntary sector, parents and adult services.
Clear links to young people’s groups will be established. It will also have
representation from both providers and commissioners.

One immediate initiative in this area is the adoption by Leeds of the Every Disabled
Child Matters Charter, see appendix one. This is a national initiative and Leeds is

intending to sign upto the charter in Spring 2013. There is a commitment to meeting
the standards set out in the charter within one year of signing.

Key Improvement Strategies- Investing in Children’s Services

Leeds City Council budgets are a major source of funding for children’s services
across the city. As the available resources will reduce over the next few years,
there are significant challenges ahead in terms of how we target resources so that
we can continue to improve outcomes for all and in particular our most vulnerable
children and young people.

Proposals for 2013/14 include further reductions in the demand-led pressures within
the placement budgets leading to potential savings of £7m (with a further £4.2m in
2014/15) around reducing placement numbers and changing the funding mix across
the externally provided residential and fostering placement budgets. These savings
recognise the impact of the additional investment into work around prevention and
intervention and the changing mix of placement provision through additional
investment into in-house provision, special guardianship orders and adoption
support. In addition, the proposals include £1.1m of procurement savings arising
from the implementation of regionally negotiated framework contracts for residential
and fostering placements.

From April 2013, Government have proposed to end the core Early Intervention
Grant and to top-slice and ring-fence existing funding to support the expansion of
early learning and childcare for disadvantaged 2-year olds. This is contrary to the
previous announcements from Government and local authority expectations. The
impact for Leeds will be a net budget pressure of £5.4m in 2013/14 which will rise by
£1.3m in 2014/15, with a further pressure of £1.75m in 2015/16.

In 2012/13, the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) for Leeds in 2012/13 is £32.7m and is
used to fund key priority services such as Sure Start Children’s Centres, short-
breaks and respite provision for disabled children, targeted/specialist information,
advice and guidance as well as support for teenage parents and specialist family
intervention services. Under Government proposals, the EIG will cease from April

29
Page 59



2013 with £1.7bn of the £2.4bn national total (£23.9m for Leeds) being built into
formula grant calculations from 2013/14 (£1.6bn in 2014/15, £22.5m for Leeds).
Nationally, £525m (£760m in 2014/15) will be ‘top-sliced’ in 2013/14 and transferred
into the ring-fenced Dedicated School Grant (DSG) in order to fund the expansion of
early learning and childcare for disadvantaged 2-year olds. In addition, Government
is intending to retain £300m nationally across both years to fund centrally run
initiatives and schemes.

These changes will effectively reduce the funding available locally to fund the
services that support our most vulnerable and challenging children and young
people. As mentioned above, the estimated net impact for Leeds in 2013/14 is a
pressure of £5.4m which recognises the transfer of the existing 2-year old costs to
the DSG and some flexibility around grant funding infrastructure development costs,
although this flexibility will only be available until 2014/15.

Maintaining and increasing investment across the range of preventative and early
intervention services is a cornerstone of the budget strategy and the proposal is
therefore to mitigate the immediate impact of the changes by one-off borrowing of up
to £4m in 2013/14 from school balances. This would then be repaid by March 2017,
through savings on the looked after children budgets.

In spite of the changes to the EIG funding, the budget strategy continues to support
the strategic obsession around reducing the need for children to be looked after, by
maintaining and prioritising resources into preventative and early intervention and to
target resources to those vulnerable children and families who need support the
most. To this end, an additional £2.5m (£1.7m funded through the Families First
programme) has been provided to expand family group conferencing, family support,
increase the multi-systemic therapy provision and to continue to invest in targeted
locality services.

The current Children’s Services Transport Policy was produced following the
Education and Inspections Act 2006. The current policy includes discretionary
provision represented in the availability of free home to school travel to faith schools;
post 16 mainstream transport to schools/colleges and also home to school/college
transport for young people with special educational needs (SEN) between the ages
of 16 and 25. The budget strategies for 2013/14 and 2014/15 recognise the
proposal to review, with effect from September 2013, the continuing discretionary
provision around mainstream and SEN post-16 transport and also the free provision
of transport to faith schools. These proposals would lead to cost reductions of £2.8m
in 2013/14 with further cost reductions of £2m in 2014/15. Any proposals will be
subject to consultation and equality impact assessments. As will the proposal to
withdraw funding for home to school transport for gypsy roma traveller children.

Recognising the availability of targeted pupil premium funding to all schools across
Leeds, the budget strategy also proposes to cease the provision of school clothing
allowances from April 2013, with estimated savings of £0.6m.

Prioritising resources to support the most vulnerable and challenging children, young
people and families across Leeds includes a recognition of the need to review and
reduce discretionary services. As part of this strategy the budget seeks to increase

30
Page 60



traded income in Learning Improvement and reduce the current net cost of Artforms
(including the Music Service). In addition, as part of developing the budget, all
budgeted vacant posts have been reviewed across the Directorate and an estimated
£0.5m of cost reductions have been included in the budget in respect of take-up of
the Early Leavers Initiative. As part of the medium-term strategy around prioritising
resources to front-line provision, the budget strategy includes savings of £0.3m in
2013/14 and a further £0.2m savings in 2014/15 around the continuing review of
back-office functions.

The proposals contained in the Youth Review seek to end generalist youth provision,
restructure the targeted service by September 2013 and commission new targeted
youth contracts by April 2014. In addition, a small grants framework will be setup,
based around Area Committees, to stimulate the development of activities for young
people. The estimated net savings from the Youth Review proposals in 2013/14 are
£0.4m with a further £0.7m of savings in 2014/15.

The fundamental reforms to schools funding from April 2013 will potentially have a
significant impact on individual school budgets and those services that are currently
funded from the central schools budget. These changes include the transfer of the
Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant (LACSEG) from the Council’s
formula grant into a specific revenue grant which, from April 2013, will then be
reduced in-year to reflect any maintained schools that become academies from April
2013.

Streamlining and simplifying commissioning processes and focusing them on
outcomes has been identified as a challenge for Children’s Services by the CTB.
Their consensus is that this will particularly help smaller organisations and
organisations in the third sector; releasing their full potential as contributors to
improved outcomes for children, young people and their families.

31
Page 61



Appendix one: Every Disabled Child Matters Charter

Local Authority Disabled Children’s Charter By [insert date within one year of
signing charter] we will ensure that in our authority...

We know how many disabled children live in our area and all agencies in our area
are working together to plan services based on this knowledge.

We have an identified lead with specific responsibility for services for disabled
children and families.

We are providing clear information to support choice and control for parents that
explains how we provide specialist services and also make all universal services
accessible.

Parents and carers in our area have access to transparent information on decisions
made about their child, and have access to mechanisms for providing feedback

Disabled children and their families are involved in the planning, commissioning and
monitoring of services in our area, including both specialist and universal services.

Our Parent Carer Forum is instrumental in developing and reviewing services in our
area and promoting choice and control for parents.

We actively include disabled children and young people in any decisions made about
them and the services that they access, that might affect them.

Parents in our area benefit from our Parent Partnership Service, which is able to
provide impartial advice and support to parents of disabled children and young
people

Our staff receive both disability equality training and training to ensure that they have
core competencies to work with disabled children.

We have produced a short break services statement that has been drawn up in
partnership with disabled children and their parents and have made it widely
available.

We have regard to the provision of services suitable for disabled children, when
assessing the sufficiency and supply of childcare in their area

We are working together with disabled young people and adult service providers in
our area to ensure a smooth transition to adult services for disabled young people
preparing for adulthood.

Signed
Lead Member for Children’s Services (or equivalent) Name of Local Authority:

32
Page 62



Appendix 2: Key Plans & Strategy documents supporting the CYPP

Supporting Children and Families, Strengthening Social Care
Child Poverty Strategy

Free school meals Strategy

Infant Mortality Strategy

Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy

Leeds Education Challenge

School Improvement Strategy

Child Friendly City programme and Child Friendly Leeds Action Plan
Voice Influence & Change. The children and young people’s
participation strategy for Leeds 2013-15

Workforce Development Strategy

Substance Misuse Partnership Action Plan

The Drugs Strategy & Action Plan 2013-15 (all age)

Leeds Tobacco Action Plan (all age)

Leeds Alcohol Harm Reduction Action Plan 2011-15 (all age)
Leeds Childhood Obesity Strategy

Families First Programme

Leeds Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report and Business
Plan

City Priority Plan for Health & Well Being

Joint Health and Well Being Strategy

Children Leeds Commissioning Prospectus

33
Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Appendix 2

Best Council Plan
2013 - 2017

Leeds City Council
June 2013

Page 65



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Foreword

The wider context for local government remains challenging with the toughest financial
settlement for decades; the continuing economic downturn; major policy reforms in
welfare, education and health; a growing city and increasing demands for services. It
would be very easy to become distracted but here in Leeds we have forged a different
path. Instead, we have looked forward and led a national Commission on the Future of
Local Government. This proposed an ambitious and positive vision of the future of local
democracy, with ward councillors at its heart as community champions. It set out three
key roles for councils: a new social contract between councils and citizens around
service provision, an economic role to help stimulate jobs and an environmental one to
build new 21st Century infrastructure - from superfast broadband to public green
spaces. The commission also recognised the need to continue to seek more powers
from Whitehall to enable us to shape our own destiny.

This adds up to a very exciting blueprint to bring to life what we mean by becoming the
best council in the best city in the UK. This plan - the Best Council Plan - is another
important step to make this vision a reality. It sets out what we will do over the next few
years to improve the quality of life for our citizens, especially those that are poor or
vulnerable, make it easier for people to do business with us and achieve the savings
needed to meet the financial challenges. In developing this plan we can also reflect on
some of the successes we have achieved over the past year like completing the
construction of a world leading new Arena; the opening of the Trinity shopping centre -
the largest of its kind to open in Europe in 2013 - bringing over 4,000 jobs; securing the
Tour the France and Rugby League World Cup; increasing the number of young people
who have jobs or are in education or training; enabling more children to remain safely at
home with their families; supporting more people with social care needs to live
independently and have control over their care; increasing recycling; and reducing
burglary to unprecedented low levels. All this at the same time as we delivered
significant savings in our budget - with local government continuing to be by far the
most efficient area of the public sector.

The message from our commission is that all of this is possible despite the cuts, but
only if we all pull together and make sure that this council is run to enable front line
services to achieve the outcomes the people of Leeds need. We are all going to need
to work differently and consider new ideas that ensure quality services can be offered to
people. We need to make the people of Leeds proud of their council and | know with
your continued help and commitment we can do it.

Clir Keith Wakefield (Leader of the Council)

Tom Riordan (Chief Executive)

Page 66



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best Council Plan 2013-17 - towards being an enterprising council

Our ambition and approach

Our Ambition is for Leeds to be the best city and Leeds City Council to be the best council in the UK
— fair, open and welcoming with an economy that is both prosperous and sustainable so all our
communities are successful.

Our Approach is to adopt a new leadership style of civic enterprise, where the council becomes
more enterprising, businesses and partners become more civic, and citizens become more actively

engaged in the work of the city.
Our best council outcomes

» Improve the quality of life for our residents, particularly for those who are vulnerable or in poverty;

Building a child
friendly city —
improving outcomes for
children and families.
With a focus on:

e our 3 partnership
'obsessions' (looked
after children,
NEET's" and
attendance)

¢ raising educational
standards and
narrowing the gap
for vulnerable
groups

e ensuring enough
school places as the
city grows

Dealing effectively
with the city’s waste —
minimising waste in a
growing city. With a
focus on:

* ensuring a safe,
efficient and reliable
waste collection
service

« providing a long
term solution for
disposing of our
waste

* increasing recycling

« reducing landfill tax
costs

» Make it easier for people to do business with us; and
» Achieve the savings and efficiencies required to continue to deliver frontline services.

Our best council objectives

Promoting

sustainable and

inclusive economic

growth - improving the

economic wellbeing of

local people and

businesses. With a

focus on:

* helping people into
jobs,

* boosting the local
economy,

» providing housing as
the city grows

» getting people active

* generating income
for the council

Delivery of Better
Lives programme —
helping local people
with care and support
needs to enjoy better
lives. With a focus on:
* giving choice
* helping people to
stay living at home
* joining up health and
social care services
» creating the right
housing, care and
support

» tackling poverty

e improving roads

» getting services right first time
* improving customer satisfaction

Ensuring high quality public services — improving quality, efficiency and involving people in
shaping their city. With a focus on:
 tackling domestic violence
* improving public health

* improving housing

Becoming an efficient and enterprising council - streamlining ways of working and developing our

people. With a focus on:

e encouraging an enterprising culture and .
behaviours .

introducing flatter simpler staffing structures
reducing office space

rolling out flexible, mobile working, simpler
processes and using technology better
encouraging volunteering and social enterprise

« developing a flexible workforce .
* maximising income and trading

» reducing costs and improving value for money ¢
¢ improving commissioning and procurement

Our values: underpinning all that we do
Working as a Being open, Working with Treating people | Spending money
team for Leeds honest and communities fairly wisely

trusted

! Young people who are not in education, employment or training

3
Page 67



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Introduction

Leeds has an ambition to become the best city in the UK — fair, open and welcoming
with an economy that is both prosperous and sustainable so all our communities are
successful.

This is a challenge that requires a clear focus on what we do as well a change in the
culture of how we work. The Commission on the Future of Local Government set out a
new leadership style of civic enterprise. This is where the council becomes more
enterprising, businesses and partners become more civic, and citizens become more
actively engaged in the work of the city. The council will become smaller in size but
bigger in influence, with the democratic mandate of members extended.

This ambition is set against an increasingly challenging environment. We, like many
other cities, are still dealing with the impact of the global financial crisis, alongside
changes to policy like the reform of the welfare system and reductions in public sector
spending. The challenging economic conditions combine with a growing and aging
population to increase demand for our services. Add to this the tough funding
reductions from Government, and we need a new approach that is innovative,
engaging, responsive and outcome-focused.

Current position

We have achieved a great deal in difficult circumstances since we published our last
Council Business Plan in 2011. We have made progress with our partners, in improving
the lives of the people of Leeds against city—wide priorities (see annex A); realised
significant financial savings; reduced our workforce, without a day lost to industrial
action; continued to bring investment into the city and improve infrastructure (with more
planned); built strong partner relationships and a diverse third sector; and most
important we have a committed workforce increasingly being driven by the council
values. Add to this our leading role in the collaborative work across the wider city
region and North, we are well placed to seize the opportunities offered through
increased devolution.

Some highlights of achievement from our last Council Business Plan are:

» The economic infrastructure of the city has seen significant investment — the
Arena, the Trinity shopping centre, HS2, the Apprenticeship Training Agency,
City Deal;

» The profile and reputation of the city continues to develop positively, with a
successful programme of events around Olympics and Paralympics. More
recently the city secured the Grand Depart of the Tour de France in 2014 which
is the biggest annual sporting event in the world;

* Leeds remains on target to continue to reduce time older people spend in
residential and nursing care homes supported by the local authority — thus
lengthening the time people stay in their own homes in the community;

» Outcomes for children and families are improving with educational standards,
including school attendance, the highest ever recorded in the city. More young
people are engaged in learning and training post-16 and there are on-going
reductions in the need for children to enter local authority care with children
remaining safely with their families;

Page 68



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

* Recycling rates continue to improve and are the highest ever for the city and the
delivery of a sustainable waste solution took a step forward with funding secured
and planning permission granted;

» The council is increasingly values driven in its culture and ways of working with
the continued robust financial planning and management. Since 2010/11 the
grant from Government has reduced by £94m and we have continued to balance
the budget at the end of each year.

City and council context

Leeds is the second largest metropolitan local authority in England covering an area of
552 square kilometres. It is an area of great contrasts. It includes a densely populated,
inner city area with associated challenges of poverty and deprivation, as well as a more
affluent suburban and rural hinterland with villages and market towns. The most recent
census (2011) indicates that Leeds has a population of 751,500 people living in
320,600 households, representing a 5% growth since the last census of 2001. Leeds
has a relatively young and dynamic population and is an increasingly diverse city with
over 140 ethnic groups including black, Asian and other minority ethnic populations
representing almost 19% of the total population compared to 11% in 2001.

In terms of the economy, Leeds has over 24,000 VAT registered businesses, with an
estimated 445,000 people working in the city, a workforce projected to grow by over
10% in the next decade. Leeds is by far the largest centre of economic activity in the
region, the total value of the economy is estimated to be £18bn per annum (GVA). We
have a renewed focus on our inward investment and work to raise the profile of the city,
through Leeds and Partners, and the recently published One Voice: One Ambition, a
city proposition which offers great potential.

Leeds City Council has 99 councillors, three for each of 33 designated areas of Leeds
known as electoral wards. The city is represented in government by eight MPs. The

council employs approximately 12,500 people and spends almost £2 billion (2013/14)
each year to deliver hundreds of different services both directly and with our partners.

The size of the city means that the scale of service delivery by the council is also
considerable with 3000 km of roads to clean and maintain; over two million bin
collections per month; 4000 hectares of parks/green space to look after; around 22,100
of over 65s in need of formal social care services; just under 70,000 tenants in 58,000
council houses, more than 260 schools and approximately 180,000 children and young
people, of which we look after almost 1,400 as corporate parents.

Realising our best council ambition: towards being an enterprising council

We have a clear vision based on civic enterprise developed through our leading role in
the work of the Commission on the Future of Local Government. This vision, despite the
unprecedented challenges facing us, provides a positive outlook and a route to respond
to the financial cuts without compromising our ambitions. The vision places significant
value on public service, employee engagement and trades union relations; broadens
the mandate for locally elected members, because they are valued for being the voice
of the community and improving the lives of local people; and develops a different kind
of council, that is smaller in size but bigger in influence. Taken together, the following

Page 69



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

five propositions about the future role of local government is a powerful combination to
enable us to become more enterprising.

We are encouraging civic entrepreneurs within the council and the city. These are
people, from any walk of life, who see a challenge and work with others to tackle it in a
sustainable way. For example: identifying opportunities rather than problems;
developing innovative solutions to financial constraints; and, using social and digital
media for dynamic results rather than more traditional approaches. We want to enable
civic entrepreneurs to flourish because we need everyone to fulfil their potential and
play a role to help achieve the shared ambitions. Community leaders, interest groups,
councillors and colleagues are seizing the opportunity and making a difference. Within
the council, our focus on values and behaviour - team-work, transparency, fairness,
community focus and value for money - will continue as a way to release the potential
talent we have and empower it to contribute in a civic enterprise way. It will require
flatter and simpler structures, so that decision-making and action is closer to the
customer and communities. It will demand a more outcome than service focus on
problems, in order that people can work better together towards solutions. For
members, the area lead member role, with more influence, is important. For officers,
this will mean, a continued focus on our calls to action - quality communications, quality
appraisals, keeping within budget, and being innovative.

We are using our democratic leadership and key delivery partner role, in the city and
beyond, to stimulate jobs, homes and economic growth. This is crucial because of
the challenges we face, the changing structure of local government finance and the
policy direction around economic growth. We will encourage socially responsible
growth, as an antidote to the welfare changes and put it at the heart of our anti-poverty
drive. We already have significant infrastructure developments underway that are being
very actively promoted and supported by the council. These aim to provide employment
for local people and are engaged with local communities. More widely we are working
with local employers to maximise employment opportunities for young people, the
establishment of the Apprenticeship Training Agency is key to this. We are taking a
different approach with our Core Strategy to ensure that there is wider ownership of the
approach to site allocation and that we have the capacity to enable the number of new
homes that are needed in the city. We are working with Leeds and Partners to raise the
profile of the city as a place to invest and visit.

We are working with others to stimulate innovation to help establish 21% century
infrastructure — for example, physical, social, digital infrastructure — that will be valued
by future generations. We need to think differently about what the new utilities of the
future will be, for example viewing individuals, families and communities as a central
part of the solution. We already have ultrafast broadband through Interconnected Cities,
jointly with Bradford. We have work underway on New Generation Transport — being
the first UK city to get a modern trolleybus system; HS2, including a brand new station;
a more strategic approach to transport investment as part of the new City Deal; the
advanced manufacturing health hub; our approach to improving household energy
efficiency and district heating; and the development of a new residual waste treatment
facility which will recycle over half of all household waste by 2016.

We are working with individuals, families and communities to co-create a different
relationship and devise a new social contract to work with people rather than simply

Page 70



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

deliver services to them, so that families and individuals can access co-ordinated,
effective, care and support. This will help reduce reliance on services where it is not
needed and ensure quality responsive provision to the most vulnerable. We are
empowering communities, families and individuals to plan and prepare for their future,
to reach out to those around them who may need support that best enables them to
meet their goals and aspirations. In children’s services, we are using family group
conferencing and restorative practice more generally to change our approach.
Developing the way area committees and local members fulfil their role in relation to
outcomes and services is another example of where this proposition can help us shape
the future.

We are working collaboratively with others to make the most of devolution and
demonstrate that we are deserving of more powers to make a difference locally. Leeds
has very close links with its neighbours, the wider city-region is a functioning economic
area, defined by the way our businesses operate and our residents live their lives.
Covering all of West Yorkshire and stretching into York, North and South Yorkshire, it
has a common labour market, patterns of commuting, economic activity and housing.
The city-region is the largest in the UK outside London. It is home to three million
people, 100,000 businesses and generates 5% of national economic output. The City
Deal Combined Authority, regional and devolved transport and infrastructure funding
are all components of this work as would any future city deal arrangements be.

These propositions are interlinked and overlapping. They do not provide detailed
answers but do provide a stimulus to think and act differently. Through the life of the
Best Council Plan, we will expect language, behaviours and actions to be different as
we lift our horizons to focus on outcomes. We will challenge ourselves more to be
innovative and take risks in order to achieve our ambitions. We will also expect
businesses, partners, the third sector and the public to make their contribution.

Our best council outcomes and objectives 2013-2017

Drawing our intended direction together we have agreed three best council outcomes
that will drive our priorities over the next four years:

1. Improve the quality of life for our residents, particularly for those who are
vulnerable or in poverty;

2. Make it easier for people to do business with us; and

3. Achieve the savings and efficiencies required to continue to deliver
frontline services.

These will be delivered through six best council objectives for the period 2013-17 which
give more detail on how we will achieve our outcomes.

Ensuring high quality public services

Dealing effectively with the city’s waste

Building a child friendly city

Delivery of Better Lives programme

Promoting sustainable and inclusive economic growth
Becoming an efficient and enterprising council

oaprLON=

Page 71



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

We developed these as part of our approach to financial planning during 2012, through
leadership events, public engagement, scrutiny and political engagement. These
outcomes and objectives are essential to ensuring our financial security in the medium
to long term, crucial for our contribution to becoming the best city and will be supported
by a range of cross-cutting activity which will promote an enterprising organisational
culture that has the needs of our community and anti-poverty as its heart.

For each objective we have set out the broad intention, together with performance
measures and targets for achievement by 2017. Also identified are operational and
strategic priorities for 2013/14 against which we will assess progress over the first year
of delivery. Whilst this plan sets out the overall strategic direction for the council and
identifies our key objectives, it will be implemented through directorate and service
plans, budget action plans, major projects and programmes as well as through
individual appraisal objectives. These links are set out in annex A. We recognise that
these priorities do not stand alone and are inter-dependent. They will require a broad
range of contributions from right across the organisation for their successful delivery.

We will review and publish our progress regularly in order to assess whether the pace
of change is adequate. This will look at qualitative as well as quantitative information
and draw upon as wide range of data and intelligence as required. Our performance
management arrangements also include independent and robust challenge by our
elected members through Executive Board, scrutiny and area committees to ensure the
public are getting the best out of their public services. We will engage with our
customers, workforce, members, partners and trade unions about progress and further
challenges.

We know that things change, so this plan will be subject to an annual review directly
linked to the budget setting process, which will ensure that the plan remains live and
dynamic to meet the needs of the people of Leeds. The views of elected members and
scrutiny boards, the views of our citizens and feedback from our customers will be an
important element of this review process.

The Best Council Plan is an important element of the city’s planning framework and
Annex A sets out how this plan sits alongside and contributes towards the city-wide
strategic context.

In conclusion, we have an opportunity to embrace a more positive outlook for local
government so that we can still achieve our ambitions, but it means that things will not
be the same. These objectives could make a significant difference to the council and
the city, but can only be delivered if everyone who can contribute is able to do so.

Page 72



FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: ensuring high quality public services

The council directly provides or commissions a wide range of services like housing,
libraries; highways, benefits, parks, education, sports centres, community safety, street
cleaning, social care, improving skills and supporting people into employment. It is
important that these are of a high quality, meet the needs of our customers and deliver
value for money. Within the current financial context budgets are shrinking and difficult
decisions will need to be made in terms of what services we provide and how we deliver
them. We recognise that our services need to be more locally responsive and integrated.
We need to support councillors, staff, partners, customers and communities to also
enable them make their best contribution to improving outcomes. Broadly this will mean
strengthening democratic leadership, both city-wide and locally; better engaging and
involving the public in shaping their neighbourhoods and services and making best use of
our assets to improve outcomes and the customer experience.

Alongside this broader improvement we also recognise that there are some services that
need a step change, a new approach or more radical improvement these will also be
captured within this section of the plan. In this way we will ensure they receive the right
level of political and officer focus. All other service delivery and improvement priorities
will continue to be captured in service plans.

Performance measures and targets 2017

* Improved customer satisfaction across range of services

* Reduced avoidable contact from customers

* Increase the number of service requests fulfilled at the first point of contact
+ Significant reduction in the running costs of the asset base.

* Increase the number of buildings in good or excellent condition

» Reduce carbon footprint of our buildings

* Increased budget devolved for local determination

» Public feel they have more influence on local decision making

2013/14 Priorities | What will success look like in March 2014
Cross cutting improvement
Customer Access - Self-serve infrastructure for environmental
» Delivery of transactional web and and waste service in place with roadmap
on-line services to facilitate for future roll out agreed
channel shift and self-service. - Demonstrable channel shift away from
e Ensure maximum value is telephone and face to face contact through
obtained from existing telephony early win activity
and face to face Infrastructure - Integrated customer services with single
* Integration of face to face services management structure within the Clty centre
one-stop
Develop a coherent approach to tackling | - Mitigate negative impacts of welfare
poverty. changes eg homelessness etc
- Strategy in place by Mar 2014
- Remodelled advice services in place
- Other success measures to be confirmed
as programme develops

Page 73




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Development and implementation of
asset rationalisation plan.

Asset Management Plan developed and
approved

Ward members engaged and involved
throughout process

Implementation of Area Review Delivery
Plan.

Local youth activity programme
successfully commissioned by area
committees

Area lead members in place, trained and
influencing decisions within council and
with partners

Review how area committees operate and
implement recommendations

Further delegations ready for
implementation 2014/15

Service improvement

Public Health is embedded and
effectively delivering health protection,
health improvement and population
health care.

Increase in successful completions of drug
and alcohol treatment designed to support
recovery

Increase in number of people accessing
stop smoking services

Increase in HIV testing in MSM (men who
have sex with men)

Increase uptake of NHS health check in
areas of greatest health inequalities

Each council directorate and Clinical
Commissioning Group business plan
includes actions that contributes to the
health and wellbeing strategy priorities

Reducing the prevalence and impact of
domestic violence.

Increased customer satisfaction with, and
confidence in, domestic violence services
Improved range of responses in relation to
perpetrators

Improved information sharing across
agencies

Quality highways assets including
carriageways and structures (e.g. tunnels
and bridges)

Reduce the numbers of people Killed or
Seriously Injured (KSI) on the city’s roads
Maintain the percentage of roads assessed
as in need of structural repair

Reduce the percentage of highways’
structures in need of essential repair

Housing management review.

Complete housing management review and
implement recommendations

Improved tenant satisfaction and value for
money

10

Page 74




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: dealing effectively with the city’s waste

This is a high profile and important service for our community with significant implications
where we fail to deliver a good service. There are significant challenges regarding the
financial sustainability of our current approach with costs continuing to increase including
most significantly the expense of disposing waste to landfill. We also require a new social
contract with Leeds’ residents on recycling to enable them to more fully contribute to
minimising waste in a growing 21 century city. This priority aims to deliver significant
changes to ensure a safe, efficient and reliable waste and recycling collection service that
meets the needs of residents, increases recycling and minimises waste to landfill (thus
minimising future costs of landfill tax to the city). This includes implementing a long-term
solution to dealing with waste, introducing alternate weekly collections and increasing
recycling to help reduce the level of landfill tax. This is supported by a renewed focus on
health and safety; and, improving the systems and data, to ensure more focus on
feedback from our customers to drive service improvement.

Performance measures and targets 2017

* Increased percentage of waste is recycled
* Reduced numbers of missed bins
* Reduced amount of waste going to landfill

2013/14 Priorities What will success look like in March 2014
Improved reliability of refuse service. - Reduced number of missed bins
- Improved response to customer complaints
Increased recycling and less waste to - 46.4% recycling by end of 2013/14
landfill. - Waste sent to landfill is less than 142,000
tonnes

- Progress in delivery of the waste solution is
on time and to budget

11
Page 75




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: building a child friendly city

One of our wider ambitions to be the best city for children. We want to do this by building
a child friendly city through the development of increasingly effective cluster and
partnership working. As part of this long term ambition we have identified a number of
priorities:

» Leeds has historically had higher numbers of children looked after than similar cities
with the significant social and financial cost implications that are associated with this.
Therefore, we are aiming to safely reduce the numbers of children looked after by
implementing a comprehensive programme of actions. This includes improving
placement commissioning; investing in early intervention and prevention in clusters
across the city; and encouraging more individuals and families in Leeds to become
foster carers. By safely reducing the numbers of children looked after we can further
invest in prevention and other priorities.

* A key challenge for schools, academies, early years settings and colleges in Leeds is
to raise standards and tackle under performance at all key stages with increased pace
with a special focus on narrowing the gap in outcomes for the most vulnerable groups
of learners. There are now many more good and outstanding schools and early years
settings in the city, but there are still some that fall below the floor standards or have
inconsistent results. Where this is the case the council needs to take strong action to
provide the appropriate support and challenge.

» The city is growing and this include the number of school age children and it is a
statutory duty for the council to ensure enough school places across the city. This
increasing demand is starting to impact in primary schools now and will be an issue for
secondary schools predicted from 2015-16. Key challenges are the limitations on
national funding; effective cluster and partnership working to identify and meet local
demand in communities across the city; as well as the increasingly diverse range of
education provider including academies, trusts and free schools.

Performance measures and targets 2017

* Reduced numbers of children looked after
» Reduced external placement costs

» Good progress across all aspects of the Children and Young People’s Plan and
especially the obsessions

2013/14 Priorities What will success look like in March 2014
Children’s partnership obsessions — - More children and young people will be
including reducing number children supported to remain within their own family
looked after. network in a safe and appropriate way

- School aged children are engaged in a
learning setting

- More young people are engaged in
education, employment or training

Leeds Education Challenge. - Higher percentage of schools achieving
good or outstanding Ofsted? judgments

- Reduction in the number of schools in
Ofsted categories

- Evidence for a “narrowing of the gap” in
educational achievement

2 Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills

12
Page 76




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

School places — meeting basic need. - Ensure provision of sufficient local school
places for all Leeds children

13
Page 77




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: delivery of Better Lives programme

The Better Lives programme introduces new arrangements that will help local people with
care and support needs enjoy better lives. The council is working with a broad range of
organisations to ensure that there are wider care and support choices available and
better ways for people to gain access to them. Our focus remains on ensuring that people
with care and support needs can access services earlier; and that care and support help
reconnect people at risk of isolation back with their communities and delay the need for
institutional care. There are therefore opportunities for a new social contract with our
communities with local people driving local solutions that better meet their needs in a
sustainable and cost effective way. People with social care needs will receive co-
ordinated, effective, personalised support from a range of agencies in the health, social
care, independent and third sectors, all working together.

Performance measures and targets 2017

» A greater proportion of people will be helped to recover from illness or to manage a
long term condition through the use of a range of joined up health and social care
services

» Users of health and social care services will report increased level of satisfaction

» There will be increased numbers of volunteers in commissioned services

» There will be a greater variety of localised community based and user led organisations
meeting personalised needs

2013/14 Priorities What will success look like in March 2014

Better lives through integration. - A further 800 people will be supported at
home through a package of reablement®

- Hospital admissions and long term care
placements will be reduced in South Leeds
as a result of the opening of the South
Leeds Independence Centre

- Holt Park Active will open in December

2013
Better lives through housing, care and - 70% of people surveyed will report that they
support. are satisfied with their care and support

- The unit costs of long term care placements
will be lower

- 40 more people will receive support from
their local communities purchased with
direct payments

Better lives through enterprise. - 50 more volunteers will be trained through
the ‘volunteering in the community
programme’

- 4 more community based and user led
organisations will support people to meet
their personalised needs

- Business cases for alternative service
delivery models for 2 existing services will
have been developed

3 Learning or re-learning the skills for everyday living

14
Page 78




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: promote sustainable and inclusive economic growth

Through stimulating sustainable economic growth (including housing growth and
regeneration) we can not only improve the economic wellbeing of local people and
businesses, but we can also generate income for the council through new homes bonus,
council tax and business rates, and the community infrastructure levy. Improving the
economic fortunes of the city should also reduce demand on services (e.g. reductions in
unemployment benefits, business closures, improving prospects for young people,
greater health and well-being). We will do this through working in partnership with the
city’s business community. At the Leeds City Region level, there is further potential to
unlock funding for transport, infrastructure, skills, and economic development. It will be
vital to demonstrate a strong track record to make a powerful case to Government for
further devolution of funding and other powers.

Performance measures and targets 2017

Increased number of jobs in Leeds

Maximise income from capital receipts

Optimise the current amount of the business rates base level
Number of new homes delivered and empty properties brought back into use.
Optimise amount of New Homes Bonus secured

Increased percentage of working age population that is economically active

2013/14 Priorities

What will success look like in March 2014

Maximise employment opportunities for
local residents

- 250 apprenticeship starts
- 2700 residents supported into jobs
- 6000 people with improved sKills

Progressing key infrastructure projects

including:
 Arena
« NGT

* Victoria Gate /John Lewis
e Leeds Station
* Flood Alleviation

» East Leeds Extension / Thorpe
Park

» Aire Valley (including South bank)

» Kirkgate Market

» West Yorkshire Transport Fund

- All projects on track to agreed timetables
with milestone met

Deliver Local Development Framework
» Core Strategy
» Site Allocations

* Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL)

- Core Strategy submitted April 2013;
examination Autumn 2013

- Site Allocations issues and options to
Development Plan Panel April 2013 and
Executive Board May 2013

- CIL examination Winter 2013

15

Page 79




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Develop a coherent approach to meeting
housing need.

3200 empty properties brought back into
use

There will be a 300 net reduction in long
term empty homes

407 affordable houses provided

2200 new housing units delivered

Enjoy an active and creative city where:
 all cultural organisations feel they
have a voice and influence over
cultural direction; and

* inactive people have become
active

establish an elected Cultural Executive by
October 2013

produce delivery plans for major events in
2013/15 including Tour de France, Rugby
League World Cup & British Art Show 8

contribute to reduced health inequalities
through the Leeds Let’'s Get Active project
development of a cycling legacy by March
2014

submit application for Cycle City Ambition;
Grant by April 2013

City Growth Deal

develop a City Growth Deal proposal by
March 2014

Attract large-scale external investment in
low-carbon technologies to Leeds

successful bid for technical assistance
funding

establish Leeds City Region Green Deal
partnership

joint delivery of 5,000 energy efficiency
measures in Leeds properties per year

16

Page 80




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Best council objective: becoming an efficient and enterprising council

Going forward the council will be smaller but more entrepreneurial and influential. We will
need to work differently, change our approach and culture and reshape our structures.
We have recognised that a clear approach to organisational design and alternative
delivery models is central to service development and improvement and to the
achievement of our ambitions. We will have some design principles to help us achieve
this, that will mean we have flatter, simpler structures and a much more flexible approach
with our workforce. We need an agile and resilient workforce with the right skills and
ability to work flexibly. We have a number transformational change projects which aim to
improve customer service, streamline internal ways of working, further develop an
enterprising culture and make efficiencies. There is also a range of work which focuses
on culture, developing people and leadership. This work aims to engage individuals
across the council and the partnership to ensure all aspects are included eg officer
development; member development; community engagement; a key delivery partner
approach; partnership development; communication; and managing change. In the
current financial environment we also need to maximise our income generation, with the
council becoming more entrepreneurial by developing services in new markets. At the
same time we do need to be careful of any unintended consequences such as impact on
vulnerable groups, multiple impacts on the same individuals from separate decisions or a
low return on investment. Where we do subsidise services we must also make sure that
these are transparent, justified and support our priorities.

Performance measures and targets 2017

* 100% of staff successfully taken through new ways of working in city centre and priority
locality projects

» 35% reduction in city centre office space requirement

» Reduction in headcount and agency staff in line with medium term financial plan

» 30% savings in support services by 2017

» Above inflation increase in total income

* 100% staff have had a quality performance appraisal

» Improved staff engagement

* 100% decisions include equality and consultation

* Improved attendance

2013/14 Priorities What will success look like in March
2014
Continuing the focus on the values and - 100% staff have had a quality
calls to action of: performance appraisal
* Quality Appraisals - Increase employee engagement levels
» Effective communication and equal to or greater than 75%
engagement - 100% important decisions include due
« Delivery 13/14 budget regard for equality and evidence of
« Innovation consultation as appropriate
- Improved attendance with a target of 8.5
days absence per full time equivalent
delivered
- The 2013-14 budget is on track with no
significant over or underspends

17
Page 81




FINAL DRAFT VERSION — For Executive Board 19" June 2013

Develop leaders at all levels that drive an
enterprising culture

Our listening and engagement
programme has expanded

Leaders and managers are equipped to
deliver in an enterprising organisation
Our workforce is more diverse through
increased employment opportunities

Develop a flexible workforce

Staffing resources optimised in line with
workforce plans

New solutions in place to enable staff to
change jobs effectively

Early Leavers Scheme delivered

Changing the workplace - for a supported,
agile workforce exploiting mobile
technologies and reducing the number of
buildings we occupy:

* Phase 1 city centre

* Phase 2 localities

Phase 1: 1300 staff taken through new
ways of working

Phase 2: early win project(s) being
implemented with delivery partners -
linked to ‘using our assets effectively’

Business management - for streamlined
and improved business support services at
a lower overall cost.

Business management early wins being
delivered.

All baseline work completed with a 4 year
road map established for future roll out

Enabling corporate centre project.

Establish Strategy and Resources and
Customer Services and Communities
directorates

Streamlined and consistent management
structures within the new directorates
Improving corporate and professional
support to all council services

Scoping opportunities and developing a
programme of to maximise income and
trading

Establish Civic Enterprise Leeds to
further develop traded services, and to
consider new models of operation
Review our internal recharging
arrangements to reduce unnecessary
bureaucracy

Identify opportunities for income
generation for 14/15 budget setting
process, whilst ensuring that there are no
unintended consequences

Page 82

18




Annex A: City-wide strategic planning context

The Best Council Plan sits alongside and contributes to a number of other plans. Here is
how they fit together:

Priority Plan:
Childran and [
el Familliae
Area :
- i
i Locality [ Tl | S| Srnd shonger (e
Planning = = ol Communitiss
2 | |servi HGEE
- Pricrity Plan; .
g ;;:{;e - hsstnang | | Vision
8 M01345[ T | = | & L For
E i Ele|= ; Leeds
£ 8|&|¢E priorty Plan: 2011-30
Team < = E = justsinables Economy |
Plans ﬂ T [+ and Culturs
and f
Individual |} i
Appraisal L Housing and s
Objectives R
| Equality Improvement Priorities |

Service plans 2013-15, team plans and appraisals objectives: sets out what each
service is seeking to achieve over the next two years including contributions to the delivery
the Best Council Plan or City Priority Plans, business as usual activity and any service
improvement or development objectives. They provide a vital link from the strategic level
plans through to team plans and individual appraisal objectives which are developed from
service plans.

Areallocality planning: at both area committee, ward and neighbourhood level a range of
plans exist which bring together priorities which are based on the specific local needs of an
area. Whilst these are informed by, and build upon, the city wide priorities they also
recognise that for a large and diverse city like Leeds plans need to be tailored to reflect
local circumstances.

Financial strategy 2013-17 and annual budget: the annual financial plan is our
approved budget for revenue spend for the year. This is developed and agreed on an
annual basis within the context of our longer term financial plan for the council, setting out

how resources will be aligned to the council’s “Best Council” ambitions for the 4 year
period up to 2016/17

Best Council Plan 2013-17: the council also has an ambition to be the best council and
this plan sets out how will adopt a new leadership style of civic enterprise to achieve this
ambition. It includes a range of actions to improve services, change culture, work
differently, become more enterprising and respond to financial environment.

19
Page 83



Equality Improvement Priorities: sets out what we are going to do to continue to remove
and reduce barriers that may prevent some people from fully participating in the social,
cultural, political and economic life of the city. These priorities are produced to ensure that
the council meets its legal duties under the Equality Act 2010 and sets out the council’s
continued commitment to equality. These are closely aligned to the Vision for Leeds, the
City Priority Plan and the Best Council Plan in order to ensure a more integrated approach
to equality in the council’s strategic planning framework.

People Plan 2013-17: sets out the council’s priorities for its people across five themes —
flexible, healthy, enables, engaged and performing — with the aim of enabling the council
to achieve its ambition through its people. It is underpinned by the council values, our
commitment to joint working with the Trade Unions and our commitment to civic enterprise
through working with the public, private and voluntary sectors.

City Priority Plan 2011-15: identifies the outcomes/priorities to be delivered by the council
and its partners over the next four years on our journey to be the best city in the UK.
Including a set of indicators we will use to measure our progress. This does not include
everything but is a small set of challenges that each partnership has identified as its
primary focus for the next few years. Some partnerships also have a wider plan or
strategy which sets out their broader aims.

Vision for Leeds 2011-2030: sets out the long term vision and aspirations for the city.

20
Page 84



Appendix 2 — Resources and Council Services Scrutiny Board Feedback and
Response

The Resources and Council Services Scrutiny Board reviewed the draft Best Council Plan
at their meeting on 22" April with the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council. The
Board raised a number of issues and these are set out below along with the response in
terms of changes to the plan or other actions. Overall the Board felt that the new plan
helped to give some more focus and to prioritise the most important things we need to do.
The addition of more clarity on the specific progress we are expect in in 2013/14 was also
welcomed and the Board felt this would help them fulfil their critical friend role. There was
considerable discussion about the importance of changing culture for the successful
delivery of the plan with the Board acknowledging the difficulties of this. They endorsed
the approach within the plan ie for staff to be more flexible and adaptable to changing
needs; working better across the council and with partners; and the need for the council to
be more enterprising and to find innovative solutions to the problems we face not least of
which being the financial context. The Board recognised the progress in this area but also
agreed that there was work still to be done.

A number of more specific points were raised:

1. The Board asked for clarification about the audience for the plan was this internal or
external? It was agreed that this was primarily internal (both officers and members) as
it aims to provide a clear set of priorities for the council. But as we are a public facing
organisation with links to the City Priority Plan and the Best City outcomes then it also
had an external audience.

2. Linked to this it was raised that the language used was not as clear or accessible as it
could be. Action: in finalising the plan the text has been reviewed and amended with
this in mind. Also a single page summary has been produced that will be used to
communicate the plan more widely and work is underway to develop a
communications plan that will look at the needs of, and tailor communications to, the
key audiences.

3. The Board were concerned that some of the targets/success measures were not
measurable and also felt that there was not always a balance between the 2013/14
compared to the March 2017. Action: in finalising the plan this has been specific
discussed with each Directorate and changes have been made in a number of areas.

4. Members felt that they would need more detail on the accountability arrangements, the
starting point and the interim delivery milestones to enable them to better fulfil their
role as a critical friend. Action: further work is underway to develop the wrap around
performance management and accountability arrangements which will be consulted on
with Scrutiny before they are finalised.

5. There was a specific discussion around the objective on maximising income and
trading and how well prepared we are for this change in approach. However, it was
agreed that there are already some examples where we already do this successfully.
Members were also keen that thought is given to potential un-intended consequences
of trading where the council might be competing with local businesses which could be
counter-productive to . Action: this is area of work is still being developed a shaped
and this feedback has been shared with the lead officer for consideration in developing
plans in this area.

21
Page 85



Specific gaps were raised in the following areas:

a.

Mental health and in particular the employment issues related to this. Response:
this is in the process of being agreed as a “must do” within the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and Best City Plan. Therefore, this issue is already identified as
a partnership priority.

. Should community asset transfer to community or voluntary organisations be

included with the objective on using our assets effectively objective. Response:
this is an option that will be considered are part of this work on a case by case basis
in line with the agreed Community Asset Transfer framework. Therefore, it is
considered too detailed an issue for this high level plan and is covered by service
plans and other specific plans being developed around this objective.

. Housing need - there was some discussion about whether the targets within the

plan go far enough to meet the needs of the city, in particular for social housing.
There was some discussion of the work already underway to develop the core
strategy that is progressing this issue particularly around site allocations.
Response: this is a longer term issue and one which is influenced by many wider
factors including access to funding and the broader economic conditions. However,
the housing targets will be reviewed annually so that they can reflect work that
continues through the Core Strategy and the Housing and Regeneration Board.

22
Page 86



Appendix 3 — Revised Equality Improvement Priorities 2013-15

The Best Council Plan draws together the council’s contribution to the City Priority Plan
with those areas and priorities specific to the council itself. There are a number of cross
cutting equality objectives included in the Best Council Plan which provide the building
blocks for ensuring that equality is embedded in all our service delivery and as an
employer.

They are outlined here:

Council Value
Working with communities

Leeds communities are changing and it is vital that we have a clear understanding of
who our citizens are in order to provide appropriate services in the most appropriate
way.

Equality focus (objective)
There is good evidence of the equalities profile of Leeds, based on national and local
data, which is regularly reviewed.

Equality Performance Area - Understanding our communities

Council Value
Being open, honest and trusted

Treating people fairly

We will give due consideration to equality and diversity when we develop policies
and make decisions. We will ensure that we fully understand the impacts of changed
funding on different communities, and take this into account when making decisions

Equality focus (objective)

Councillors and Officers have a reputation for championing equality issues and
ensure that the equality issues relevant to Leeds are taken into account when
making major decisions

Equality Performance Area — Showing leadership and working in partnership

Council Value
Working with communities

We will ensure communities are effectively able to influence what we do

Equality focus (objective)
Equality groups are integrally involved in consultation and engagement activities

Equality Performance Area - Involving our communities

23
Page 87



Council Value

Treating people fairly

We will understand the make-up of our workforce and work to ensure it is
representative of the population of Leeds

Equality focus (objective)

* To make the council an ‘employer of choice’ for people from groups in our
communities whose diverse backgrounds are not yet fully represented in our
workforce

» To demonstrate increased engagement, year on year, for staff from groups
whose diversity is not yet fully represented in our workforce.

» To improve opportunities for progression to senior levels in the organisation
particularly for black, and minority ethnic and disabled staff

Equality Performance Area - A modern and diverse workforce

City Priority Plan - Best city...for communities

Priority - Reduce crime levels and their impact across Leeds

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis
Address the impact of burglary There is an identified need to better
on Vulnerable Communities assess the impact of burglary on

emerging communities.

Tackle domestic violence and The overwhelming majority of domestic

protect and support the most violence is perpetrated by men against

vulnerable young people women and children.

Improve citywide approaches Disability, race, homophobic and

to dealing with hate crime transphobic hate crime is experienced by
many people.

Priority - Increase a sense of belonging that builds cohesive and harmonious communities

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis

There is a sense of belonging that In 2010/11 a small but concerning
builds cohesive and harmonious trend in youth related anti-social
communities behaviour and damage which suggest

deliberate targeting of vulnerable victims
(adults with learning disabilities, BME
residents in predominantly White British
neighbourhoods, gay or lesbian couples)
was recognised.

24
Page 88



City Priority Plan - Best city...for children and young
people

Priority - Do well at all levels of learning and have the skills for life
(taken from the Children and Young People’s Plan)

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis
Support children from all equality There are lower levels of attainment
communities to be ready for learning for some BME communities, people

with special educational needs and
those from poorer areas.

City Priority Plan - Best city...to live

Priority - Maximise regeneration investment to increase housing choice and affordability
within sustainable neighbourhoods

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis

Ensure that housing and regeneration Households headed by women with
investment meets the changing needs children, BME groups and those living in
of individuals and communities the social rented sector are more likely to

live in overcrowded or substandard
housing. There are also

significantly higher numbers of BME
people and people with disabilities who
are unemployed.

Priority - Improve housing conditions and energy efficiency

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis

Improve energy efficiency Many households containing people
recovering from long term illness,
disabled people, and pensioners
cannot afford to heat their homes.

City Priority Plan - Best city...for health and wellbeing

Priority - Increase the number of people supported to live safely in their own home

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis

Better Lives through integration | ‘Making it Real’ markers are being used to

All citizens of Leeds will have understand how well Leeds is doing in making
access to, and benefit from, joined | personalisation real for all citizens:

up services provided by integrated
health and social care teams. Flexible integrated care and support — my
support, my own way

25
Page 89



Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Better Lives through Housing
Care and Support

We will promote achievement of
agreed personal outcomes
(including increasing access and
the equity of access to services)
across all equality characteristics
to encompass all communities and
citizens of Leeds.

The following ‘Making it Real’ markers are
being used:

Active and supportive communities —
keeping friends family and place

Risk enablement — feeling in control and safe
Personal budgets and self-funding — my
money

Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Better Lives through Enterprise
All citizens will have access to
appropriate services and or
support, with assistance to
develop appropriate services from
within the community.

The following ‘Making it Real’ markers are
being used:

Information and Advice — having the
information | need, when | need it

Active and supportive communities —
keeping friends family and place

Risk enablement — feeling in control and safe
Personal budgets and self-funding — my
money

City Priority Plan - Best city...for business

Priority - Create more jobs and improve skills

Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Increase access to employment
opportunities and up-skill the
workforce

There are lower levels of skills and employment
amongst some communities in particular some
BME groups, and disabled people.

Priority - Support the sustainable growth of the Leeds’ economy

Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Improve financial inclusion

Lack of access to financial services
disproportionately affects lone parents (typically
female) disabled people, people with mental
health illness, and those living in poorer areas.

26
Page 90




Priority - Improve journey times and the reliability of public transport

Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Enable access for all to local
services, education and
employment centres by public
transport

Disabled and elderly people have specific
concerns in accessing transport.

Priority - Get more people involved in the city’s cultural opportunities

Equality focus (objective)

Equality analysis

Increase participation in Leeds’
cultural and sporting opportunities

People from poorer areas, BME people and
disabled people do not access sport services
as much as others. Low numbers of disabled
people access libraries.

Enhance the quality of Leeds’
Parks

Disabled people, those from a BME
background, and men tend to visit parks less
than other groups.

27
Page 91




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Appendix 3

The Every Child Matters Survey 2011/12:
Analysis Report

‘What is it like to be a child or young person growing up in

Leeds?’

Version Number:

2.1

Date produced:

February 2013

Created by:

Children’s Performance Service

Contact details:

childrens.survey@leeds.gov.uk

Status: Final

Filepath: G:/ECM-SURVEY/1112/2011-12 ECM Survey analysis report v2.1.pdf
Protective Not protectively marked

Marking:

Page 93




Appendix 3

Contents

Here are a few headlines to give you a snapshot of what it is like for children and young people

GIOWING UP N LEEUS. ... ettt ettt ettt e bbb e ense e 3
INEFOQUCTION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et ettt et bttt ene e sene e 4
BACKGIOUNG ..ottt ettt ettt et e et e et et e te et e e aseessesteesaeeeteebeenseennens 4
Levels Of PArtiCIPAION ... ...ttt 5
EXECULIVE SUIMIMAIY ...ttt ettt 6
B NEAITNY ...ttt ettt sae e eaeeae e eaee e 6
SHAY ST ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e eae e e enen 7
ENJOY @NA GCIIEVE ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt sa b esbeeseeseebeeneennans 8
Make a positive CONIIDULION ..ot 8
Achieve econOMIC WEIIFDEING .......cvooiiiie ettt 9
Section 1: YOU @nd YOUI FAMULY ................ccocooeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 10
SECHION 2: BE NEAILNY ... 11
2.1 HEAINY ALING ...ttt et ettt b ettt ae s 11
2.2 PRYSICAI QCHVILY ...ttt ettt ettt et e ettt e e b e e s e essestaesaeennas 15
2.5 AICONOL...... ettt ettt ettt b e btttk t st st et e b e beeae et e ent e st enb et enbeereeseeneeneenaens 19
2.6 11eQal SUDSTANCES ..ottt ettt b e bt e sttt ese e st esbensasbesseeseene e 21
2.7 Sex and relatioNSIPS .........cvoiiiiiiicice ettt ettt nnens 23
2.8 EMOLONAl NEAITN ...ttt ettt 27
3.1 SAFELY IN PIACES ...ttt sttt ettt n ettt ae s e neeneeneans 32
e BUIYING ..ottt ettt ettt et e ke et e ettt e e st et e s e be st et e eneentent et enbeeneeseeneeneeneans 38
3.5 School support for Staying SAf ..........ccociiiiiiicce e 40
g Y ]/ 41T o | RSOSSN 42
4.2 Pupils’ views Of theilr SChOOL ............c.ooiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 44
.3 LEAIMING ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt st esb e s s e b e b e eseeteeseesb e st esb b e b e be ke etsessentesb et e b e eteeaeessenees 47
Section 5: Make a poSitive CONEIIDULION. ....................ccocceeieiiiieieieeeee et 51
5.1 AWAreness Of MGNES .. ..cc.ooiieieeeeee ettt 51
5.2 Opportunities @t SCROOI .........c.ooeiiieeeeeeee et 51
5.3 Opportunities in the area Where YOouU lIVE ..o 54
5.5 School support for making a positive contribution ... 56
Section 6: Achieve eConomiC WEII-DEING...................ccooeoeeeieeeeeeeee e 58
6.1 Plans fOr the fULUIE ..ottt ettt ettt eae e 58
6.2 Skills and confidence for the fUtUre............ccoi e 60
6.3 YOUI 0CAI @rEa .......oueiiiiieieeeeee ettt ettt ettt e e st e stent et e besaeebeeneeneeneans 61
6.4 School support for achieving economic Well-beiNg...........c.ccvovviviiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeceeee e 62
SECHON 7: CONCIUSIONS ...ttt ettt 63

Page 94



Appendix 3

Here are a few headlines to give you a snapshot of what it is like for children
and young people growing up in Leeds.

e Over half of secondary respondents did not eat breakfast every day, with 22% rarely
or never eating breakfast. 27% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported not
eating breakfast the previous day.

e The number of secondary respondents who have smoked a cigarette has decreased
from 30% in 2010/11 to 25% in 2011/12. One fifth of young people from SILCs and
PRUs reported smoking a cigarette.

o 41% of all primary and secondary participants were potentially exercising every day.
17% of young people in SILCs and PRUs reported exercising 7 or more times in a
week.

o 28% of all primary and secondary pupils said that they had been bullied a few times
this year, with six percent reporting being bullied most days or every day.

o 47% of all primary and secondary participants thought that graffiti/litter was a
problem in the area they live, this was followed by 39% of participants saying alcohol
was a problem.

e The majority of pupils know how they learn best, but only half of secondary
respondents said that they thought their school helped them to learn in the way that
is best for them.

e Only a third of secondary pupils thought that lessons were interesting and fun, this
figure decreased with age.

e More fun and interesting lessons and more help from teachers were the most popular
choices when primary and secondary pupils were asked what would help them to
improve at school.

e 80% of young people said that they enjoyed their life. This is higher for primary than
secondary age pupils. Only 67% of participants from PRUs and SILCs agreed with
the statement ‘I enjoy my life’.

e 43% of all primary and secondary participants know that they have rights but don’t
know anything about them.

e 71% of respondents from all secondary and primary schools thought that Leeds was

a good or very good place to live. 88% of PRUs and SILCs respondents stated that
Leeds was a good or ok place to live.

Children’s Performance Service Page 3 of 71

Page 95



Appendix 3

Introduction

The Leeds 2011/12 Every Child Matters Survey (ECM) is an online, anonymous pupil survey
available free of charge to schools in Leeds. The survey covers the five Every Child Matters
outcomes and is designed to provide information for both schools and Children’s Services to
inform self evaluation and needs analysis.

The questions in the survey are organised into six sections; corresponding to what were the
five Every Child Matters outcomes for children and young people (Be Healthy, Stay Safe,
Enjoy and Achieve, Make a Positive Contribution and Achieve Economic Well-Being) along
with an introductory section on "You and Your Family’. Different versions of the survey are
available for years 5 and 6, year 7 and years 9 and 11 so that only those of an appropriate
age are asked questions relating to issues such as sex and drugs.

2011/12 was the first year for rolling out the Every Child Matters for All Survey, which has
been designed to be accessible to young people in Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) and
Specialist Inclusive Learning Centres (SILCs). As with the Every Child Matters Survey, the
questions are framed around the Every Child Matters outcomes. The survey has been
adapted into two sections for the SILC/PRU survey; section one: Be Healthy and Stay Safe
and section 2: Enjoy and Achieve, and Make A Positive Contribution/Achieve Economic Well
Being. Different versions of the survey are available for years 5 and 6, year 7 and 8, years 7
and above, and years 9 and above. Findings from this survey have been incorporated into
the analysis below.

Background

The survey has been completed in Leeds since the 2007/08 academic year. It was
redeveloped in 2009/10 with a focus on improving the technology and enhancing the
reporting features, however this also presented an opportunity to improve the overall survey
service. Schools and services were consulted about the survey questions, survey wording,
processes and the aesthetics of the new system. In February 2010 the new version of the
ECM survey was piloted and subsequently released to all schools in May 2010.
Unfortunately, as a result of timing, year 11 pupils were unable to participate in the online
version of the survey. The Healthy Schools and Wellbeing Service created a paper version
with some questions from the Be Healthy section; these results are included where
applicable. This has some implications for 2009/10 secondary trend data due to the
exclusion of year 11 pupils and any comparisons must be observed with a degree of
caution.

In 2011/12 a small proportion of year 11 pupils completed the survey online. The Healthy
Schools and Wellbeing Service enabled some schools to complete the survey with year 11
pupils using a paper copy. Whilst we have year 11 data for all questions, the numbers
participating in the Be Healthy section are double other sections of the survey. Please note
the paper survey only covered health related questions and a few questions from the stay
safe and enjoy and achieve sections.

Children’s Performance Service Page 4 of 71

Page 96



Appendix 3

Levels of participation

2011/12 was the fifth consecutive year that the survey has been available in Leeds. The
2011/12 academic year had the largest number of pupils participating. It also had the
greatest number of secondary schools and respondents. The number of participants has
been the highest yet for all year groups other than year 11. The number of participating
primary schools increased from 88 in 2010/11 to 98 in 2011/12. The lowest number of
primary schools took part in 2009/10 (78) and the largest number of primary schools took
part in 2008/09 (102). Secondary school participation has increased again this year to 16
from 13 in 2010/11, 11 in 2009/10 and 6 in 2008/09.

In the summer of 2012 the ECM Survey was reviewed and as a result of this work a number
of improvements have been made based on feedback from schools. The survey is now in
line with the Children and Young People’s Plan priorities, the number of questions has been
reduced and the survey is now known as the Growing Up in Leeds Survey. The 2012/13
Growing Up in Leeds Survey and the Growing up in Leeds Survey For All are available for
schools to participate in from November 2012 until the end of the academic year.

Distribution of respondents by year group for primary and secondary settings.

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
No. of % of % of % of % of
Pupils respondents respondents Respondents respondents
No. of No. of No. of No. of % of
pupils pupils pupils pupils respondents
Year
e 1728 40% 46% 1673 29% 2185 31% 2654 32%
3119
Year | 990 21% 28% 1664 29% 1996 28Y% 2406 29%
6 0 0 0 0 0
1914
Ye;a’ 521 12% 9% 1100 19% 1278 18% 1400 17%
596
Year | 379 9% 9% 1250 22% 1229 17% 1592 19%
9 0 (] (*] 0 0
623
Yffr 763 18% 8% * 422 6% 321 4
567
Total | 4302 6819 5687 7110 8373 101

*In 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 some year 11 pupils completed a significantly reduced version of the survey. These results are
included in the analysis where appropriate. 1049 pupils completed a paper survey in 2009/10, 707 in 2010/11 and 615 in 2011/12.

Distribution of respondents by survey for SILCs and PRUs

2011/12
No. of % of
Survey Pupils Pupils
Section 1 Be Healthy and Stay Safe Yr7 & 8 17 11%
Section 1 Be Healthy and Stay Safe Yr 9 & Above 79 49%
Section 2 Enjoy, Achieve, Make a positive contribution and Achieve Economic 64 40%
Wellbeing Yr 7 & Above °
Total 160
Children’s Performance Service Page 5 of 71

Page 97




Appendix 3

This report provides an analysis of the results from the 2011/12 Leeds ECM survey,
including identification of any significant changes compared to the results of last year’s
survey, and the identification of any significant differences between responses for different
year groups. This year the report also includes some gender analysis, as often wide
disparities can be observed between male and female behaviours and perceptions. It is
important to note in the SILCs and PRUs survey the proportion of females that participated
was much smaller than the number of males and, therefore, comparisons should be taken
with caution.

Executive Summary

Be healthy

e Over half of secondary respondents did not eat breakfast every day, with 22% rarely
or never eating breakfast. 27% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported not
eating breakfast the previous day.

e 30% of all primary and secondary respondents did not have lunch every day and
16% said they did not have dinner every day.

¢ Only one fifth of pupils are eating the recommended five or more portions of fruit and
vegetables each day. Overall, this has decreased since 2008/09, however the
number of year 5 pupils having five or more portions has increased slightly.

e Just under a third of all primary and secondary respondents were eating three or
more snacks each day.

o 41% of all primary and secondary participants were potentially exercising every day.
Just 17% of young people in SILCs and PRUs reported exercising 7 or more times in
a week.

e Only 69% of primary pupils and 73% of secondary pupils brush their teeth the
recommended twice a day or after every meal. Year 5 pupils have typically been the
least likely to brush their teeth twice a day (68%). Less than half of pupils from
PRUs and SILCs reported brushing their teeth twice a day or after every meal.

e The number of secondary respondents who have smoked a cigarette has decreased
from 30% in 2010/11 to 25% in 2011/12. One fifth of young people from SILCs and
PRUs reported smoking a cigarette.

e The percentage of secondary respondents reporting they had never drunk alcohol
has increased from 26% in 2010/11 to 31% in 2011/12. 37% of young people from
PRUs and SILCs reported drinking alcohol.

e 32% of year 11 pupils had been offered drugs. Nine percent of secondary
respondents had used illegal substances, ranging from two percent of year 7s to
20% of year 11s. 19% of young people from PRUs and SILCs stated they had been
offered illegal drugs and 11% reported using drugs.

e 37% of year 11s have had sex compared to 48% in 2010/11. 28% of year 9s
reported they did not use contraception the last time they had sex, this is consistent
with 2010/11, but still above 16% reported in 2008/09.

o 15% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs reported having sex.

Children’s Performance Service Page 6 of 71

Page 98



Appendix 3

o 63% of secondary pupils felt that they had a lot of information about avoiding HIV,
AIDS, and STDs.

e Half of secondary pupils and 66% of primary were very happy or happy with the way
they look.

e Three percent of those taking part in the primary and secondary survey said they
rarely or never feel happy. Seven percent of young people from PRUs and SILCs
reported hardly ever or never feeling happy.

e 20% of all primary and secondary pupils felt angry or bad-tempered all or most of the
time, with just over a third saying that they did not cope well with these feelings. 23%
of secondary pupils felt stressed all or most of the time.

e Over a quarter of secondary respondents felt they would not know where to go to get
help or advice with emotional health.

Stay safe

¢ A small minority of pupils (two percent) said that they did not feel safe at home. In
PRUs and SILCs four percent of young people reported feeling unsafe or very
unsafe at home.

¢ Respondents felt safest at home, followed by at school, during lessons.

o Seven percent of primary and 12% of secondary and 11% of SILCs and PRUs pupils
said that they felt very unsafe or unsafe at school outside of lessons.

e 39% of primary and secondary pupils did not feel safe where they live after dark.

o 21% of primary and secondary pupils did not feel safe in their local park.

o 12% of young people from PRUs and SILCs did not feel safe in the city centre.

o 24% of primary pupils and 28% of secondary pupils felt that gangs were a problem in
their school.

o 59% of secondary pupils thought that smoking was a problem in their school
compared to 9% in primary school.

e 54% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs stated that behaviour was a problem in their
school and 33% reported people from different backgrounds not getting on well was
a problem.

e 47% of all primary and secondary participants thought that graffiti/litter was a
problem in the area they live, this was followed by 39% of participants saying alcohol
was a problem.

e 28% of respondents from PRUs and SILCs thought that graffiti/litter was a problem in
the area they live. This was followed by 21% reporting that crime and anti-social
behaviour was a problem.

e 35% of all primary and secondary respondents thought that bullying was a problem
in their school.

e 18% of primary and secondary participants reported having been a victim of bullying
and harassment in the previous year.

o 28% of participants from PRUs and SILCs reported being a victim of anti social
behaviour. This was followed by 23% stating they had been a victim of crime.

e 28% of all primary and secondary pupils said that they had been bullied a few times
this year, with six percent reporting being bullied most days or every day.

Children’s Performance Service Page 7 of 71

Page 99



Appendix 3

31% of participants from PRUs and SILCs reported being bullied in or around school,
of which 42% reported being bullied most days or every day.

Enjoy and achieve

80% of young people said that they enjoyed their life. This is higher for primary than
secondary age pupils. Only 67% of participants from PRUs and SILCs agreed with
the statement ‘I enjoy my life’.

Only a third of all primary and secondary respondents had been to a youth group in
the previous four weeks.

Overall the proportion of all primary and secondary pupils visiting a swimming pool in
the last four weeks has increased from 49% in 2010/11 to 56% in 2011/12.

84% of respondents rated their local play facilities as ok or better. This is broadly in
line with the figure reported in the PRUs and SILCs survey.

Primary pupils are more positive than secondary regarding provision for play, sports
and arts.

The percentage of secondary pupils reporting that they enjoyed going to school
increased slightly from 41% in 2010/11 to 45% in 2011/12, although the percentage of
primary pupils remained higher at 65%. Just over half the participants from the PRUs
and SILCs survey reported that they enjoyed going to school.

More fun and interesting lessons and more help from teachers were the most popular
choices when primary and secondary pupils were asked what would help them to
improve at school.

22% of primary and 31% of secondary pupils reported missing school without telling
anyone.

The majority of pupils know how they learn best, but only half of secondary
respondents said that they thought their school helped them to learn in the way that is
best for them.

Only a third of secondary pupils thought that lessons were interesting and fun, this
figure decreased with age.

44% of primary and 66% of secondary pupils said that they were easily bored in
class.

Only 37% of secondary respondents thought that there were good things to do at
break times.

Make a positive contribution

Over half of all primary and secondary participants said that opportunities in their
school for helping out in the community were good or very good.

16% of respondents from PRUs and SILCs reported as part of school they had
helped out as a volunteer in their local area, this compares to 31% for all other
respondents.

78% of primary and 40% of secondary pupils felt that there were good opportunities
for them to make decisions affecting their school. 59% of respondents from SILCs
and PRUs stated that they had made decisions or voted in a class or school council.

Children’s Performance Service Page 8 of 71

Page 100



Appendix 3

o 75% of primary, 58% of secondary and 60% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs felt that
they could make a fair amount or great deal of difference to the running of their
school.

o Just over half of all respondents from primary and secondary and 39% of PRUs and
SILCs participants thought they could make a difference in the way things are run in
the area they live.

o 26% of secondary respondents and 33% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs had been
noisy or rude in a public place.

o 21% of secondary respondents and 33% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs had
experienced a neighbour complaining about their behaviour.

e 14% of secondary respondents and 18% of PRUs and SILCs pupils said that they
had bullied someone in the last year. 10% of secondary and 14% of PRUs and
SILCs pupils had threatened or were rude to someone because they were different.

e 68% of all primary/secondary pupils and 83% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs know
nothing about the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child.

e 43% of all primary and secondary participants know that they have rights but don’t
know anything about them.

e 33% of secondary, 40% of primary and 37% of PRUs and SILCs pupils have worked
in the last 12 months to earn more money

Achieve economic well-being

o 63% of secondary pupils thought they would be in further education after leaving
school, this is a slight increase from 57% in 2010/11. In comparison, 42% of young
people from PRUs and SILCs thought they would be in further education after
leaving school.

e The proportion of secondary pupils considering university as an option has increased
from 51% in 2010/11 to 56% in 2011/12. However, only 23% of respondents from
PRUs and SILCs thought they would go to university.

e The percentage of secondary respondents who think they will be in a professional
career when they are an adult has increased from 26% in 2010/12 to 34% in
2011/12, this compares to 9% for students from PRUs/SILCs. 26% of participants
from PRUs and SILCs thought that they would be running their own business.

o Respondents identified parents as being the most common source of information,
advice and guidance to plan their futures.

e 73% of secondary and 58% of PRUs and SILCs pupils thought that the information,
advice and guidance they receive to help plan their futures, was very good or good
enough.

e 68% of secondary pupils felt that they were good or very good at planning how to
achieve their goals whilst 67% said that they were good or very good at solving
problems.

e 66% of secondary respondents thought that their local area was a good or very good
place to live for young people. Whereas 88% of PRUs and SILCs pupils rated their
local area as a good or ok place to live.

e 71% of respondents from all secondary and primary schools thought that Leeds was
a good or very good place to live. 88% of PRUs and SILCs respondents stated that
Leeds was a good or ok place to live.

Children’s Performance Service Page 9 of 71

Page 101



Appendix 3

Section 1: You and your family

26% of primary and secondary pupils reported that they help to look after someone in the
family because they are ill, have a disability or dependency. This is an increase from 18% in
2010/11. The percentage of young people reporting that they help to look after someone was
higher for pupils in PRUs and SILCs, at 33%.

Overall, 85% of respondents had access to the internet at home. This was higher for
secondary than primary pupils. A total of 91% of pupils from SILCs and PRUs said they

always had access to a computer to go on the internet at home.

Chart 1.0: Do you have access to the internet at home?

ALL

Secondary total

Year 11

Year 9

Year 7

Primary Total

Year 6

Year 5

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OVYes B Sometimes 0O No

Pupils were also asked how many times they had been on holiday in the last 12 months. The
results can be seen in the chart below. There was very little difference between primary and
secondary respondents. The majority had been on holiday once and 21% had not been on
holiday at all. 27% of PRU and SILCs respondents reported not going on holiday and 19%
reported going on holiday twice.

Chart 1.01: How many times have you been on holiday in the last 12 months?

30% -
20% -
10% -
00/0 1 1 1 1 1
None Once Twice 3 times More
than 3
times
O Primary B Secondary O SILCs/PRUs
Children’s Performance Service Page 10 of 71

Page 102



Appendix 3

Section 2: Be healthy

2.1 Healthy eating

The charts below show how often respondents to the survey eat each meal of the day.

Chart 2.0: How often do you eat breakfast?

ALL | NSSSSNEE T
Secondary 1 ARSI T |
Year 11 | NN S
Year 9 1 AASSSSSEEN [ ]
Year 7 RSSO T
Primary Total 1 WY
Years | ARSI T
Year 5 1 eSS T

0% 20I% 40I% 60I% 80I% 10(I)%

0O Everyday Most days B Sometimes 0O Rarely 0O Never

Breakfast is considered to be the most important meal of the day, impacting on concentration
levels. Children who regularly eat breakfast think faster and clearer, solve problems more
easily, and are less likely to be irritable (www.eatright.org). Overall, 13% of young people
undertaking the survey never or rarely ate breakfast. This has continued to decrease from
23% in 2009/10. The proportion missing this meal was higher for secondary age pupils and
increases with age, with 28% of year 11s rarely or never eating breakfast. The proportion
eating breakfast every day was higher for primary pupils (72%) than for secondary pupils
(44%), again this decreased with age. The proportion eating breakfast every day for all
respondents has decreased since 2008/09 (69%) with 59% of respondents eating breakfast
everyday in 2011/12. The proportion of pupils having breakfast every day is consistent with
2010/11 across all year groups. 73% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported eating
breakfast the previous day.

The proportion of primary respondents who said that they rarely or never ate breakfast was
consistent when compared by gender. Five percent of year 5 boys and girls said that on
average, they rarely or never ate breakfast, whilst eight percent of year 6 girls and six
percent of year 6 boys provided the same response. Over half of secondary respondents
reported not eating breakfast every day. Across all secondary age groups, more girls than
boys said that they rarely or never ate breakfast. In years 7 and 9 almost twice as many girls
than boys answered that they rarely or never ate breakfast. Results for year 7, 9 and 11 can
be seen in Chart 2.01.

Children’s Performance Service Page 11 of 71

Page 103



Appendix 3

Chart 2.01: Percentage of secondary male and female respondents who ‘rarely’ or ‘never’ eat

breakfast

40% A

30% A

20% A

10% A

0%

Year 7

0O Female

Year 9

Year 11

| Male

The proportion of young people from primary and secondary settings rarely or never eating
lunch or an evening meal is lower than for breakfast (four percent for lunch, two percent for
evening meal). 70% of respondents always ate lunch and 84% always ate an evening meal
again this is consistent with 2010/11. The percentage of pupils eating lunch every day is also
higher for primary pupils (79%) compared to secondary pupils (58%) and differences between
age groups can be observed with older year groups less likely to eat lunch every day.

Chart 2.02: Primary and Secondary: How often do you eat lunch?

ALL | RRSSSSECT
Secondary 1 AR |
Year 11 1 P o N T
Year 9 1 M
Year 7 MSSSSSTE 1
Primary Total 1 oSS SN
Year6 | AR ]
Year 5 1 ST

0% 20I% 40% 60I% SOI% 10I0%

O Everyday Most days B Sometimes O Rarely O Never

Children’s Performance Service

Page 104

Page 12 of 71



Appendix 3

Chart 2.03: Primary and Secondary: How often do you eat an evening meal?

ALL | ARSI
Secondary 1 WY
Year 11 1 AW ]
Year 9 1 Ao T
Year 7 1 o ]
Primary Total ] T
Year 6 1 o ]
Year 5 1 ST

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Everyday Most days B Sometimes O Rarely O Never

In preparation for completing the survey, primary and secondary pupils are asked to keep a
diary of their eating habits. The results are shown in the table below. Please note that year 11
data for 2009/10 is only available for the question about fruit and vegetables. Across all
primary and secondary age groups, only 21% of respondents were eating the recommended
five or more portions of fruit and vegetables a day. This is a slight increase on 2010/11 across
all year groups particularly in year 5 where there was a five percent increase on last year
(24%). However the figure reported for all year groups (21%) is still a decrease when
compared to 28% reported in 2008/09. There is a marked difference in the responses by age
with 27% of primary and 14% of secondary eating five or more portions. Only nine percent of
year 11 pupils were eating the recommended amount of fruit and vegetables. Pupils from
PRUs and SILCs were asked to report what they ate the previous day, 12% reported eating
the recommended 5 a day.

There was little difference found between the number of boys and girls who said that they
eat the recommended 5 or more portions of fruit and vegetables each day across all year
groups. However, for both genders, the proportion of respondents who reported eating their
5 a day decreased with age, with year 11 pupils least likely to eat their 5 a day. Primary
respondents were most likely to eat their 5 a day.

A high proportion of young people responding to the survey were eating a large number of
snacks and sweetened drinks. Overall, almost a third were eating three or more portions of
snacks a day, 25% for primary, 28% of secondary, and 31% of PRU and SILC respondents.
The percentage of young people consuming three or more sweetened drinks per day remains
consistent with 2010/11, with 36% of secondary respondents consuming three or more
compared to 28% of primary age respondents. The secondary figure is broadly inline with 38%
reported by young people from PRUs and SILCs.

Children’s Performance Service Page 13 of 71

Page 105



Appendix 3

Table 2.0: Percentage of respondents eating the following on an average day

5+ portions of | 3+ portions | 3+ portions of 3+ portions of
fruit and of snacks unsweetened sweetened
vegetables (crisps/ drinks drinks
2007/08 31% 30% 55% 34%
2008/09 31% 29% 56% 30%
Primary 2009/10 27% 26% 56% 30%
2010/11 23% 26% 54% 29%
2011/12 27% 25% 58% 28%
2007/08 15% 35% 50% 50%
2008/09 19% 34% 50% 45%
Secondary | 2009/10 12% *29% *44% *37%
2010/11 13% 33% 42% 36%
2011112 14% 31% 45% 36%
PRUs/ SILCs 2011/12 12% 31% 35% 38%

* no year 11 data was available for this sub question in 2009/10 and percentage includes year 7 and 9
only.

Therefore there is a high proportion of young people in the city eating large amounts of
unhealthy snacks and drinks and only 21% eating the recommended amount of fruit of
vegetables. This is a concern due to high and rising levels of obesity, especially given young
people’s views of how healthily they eat with six percent of all primary and secondary
respondents being unhappy or very unhappy with how healthily they eat.

Respondents were asked whether, if they needed to, they would know where to go to get help
or advice for eating healthily, overall 89% said that they would (92% of primary and 85% of
secondary pupils). This is consistent with last year’s results. 67% of all primary and secondary

Children’s Performance Service Page 14 of 71

Page 106



Appendix 3

respondents reported that they had a lot of information, help and advice about eating healthy.
The figures reported by young people from PRUs and SILCs were broadly similar, a
breakdown of the results can be found in Chart 2.04.

Chart 2.04: How much information, help and advice have you had about eating healthy?

SILCs/PRUs | AN -
Secondary | AN B
Year 11 | NONANNANAN B
Year 9 ] P |
Year 7 ] Y W
Primary | SN |
Year6 | AN B
Year 5 ] AARRWY

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OA lot & A little B Not very much O None

2.2 Physical activity

The Department of Health recommend that children and young people should undertake at
least 60 minutes of at least moderate intensity physical activity each day. The survey asked
children and young people how many times each week they were physically active for 30
minutes or more. Only 41% of young people who took part in the survey were potentially
exercising each day (seven or more sessions of exercise) and this is higher for primary (46%)
than secondary (34%) and down from 53% in 2008/09. More young people are reporting
exercising 3-6 times a week and this has steadily increased over the last four years, from 37%
in 2008/09 to 48% in 2011/12. 17% of respondents from SILCs and PRUs reported exercising
7 or more sessions of exercise and 42% reported exercising between 3-6 times. The survey
also breaks down where the physical activity takes place — at school in lessons, at school
outside lessons and outside of school.

Chart 2.05: How many times each week are you physically active for 30 minutes or more?

60% -

SRR

primary |secondary | primary |secondary | primary |secondary | primary [secondary

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

Oless than 3 u3-6 07 or more

Page 107



Appendix 3

11% of primary and secondary pupils reported never doing 30 minutes or more exercise in
school lessons. 45% of respondents reported doing less than one hour’s exercise. These
figures are similar to those reported in 2010/11 and 2009/10.

Across all primary and secondary year groups, a greater proportion of males (potentially)
exercise every day. In year 5, half of boys exercise 7 or more times a week, a fifth more than
girls. For year 6, the difference is over a quarter. In the secondary year groups, year 7 boys
proved to be the most active with almost half saying that they were exercising on average for
at least 30 minutes, 7 or more times a week.

Chart 2.06: Percentage of male and female respondents who exercise for 30 minutes 7 or more times
a week

60% -

40% A

20% A

0%

Year 5 Year 6 Year7 Year 9 Year 11

OFemale W Male

Information is also gathered in the survey regarding more sedentary activities undertaken by
children and young people. Due to a data error it is only possible to provide a breakdown of
the type of sedentary activity undertaken by year 9 and 11 and, therefore, this data is not
comparable with 2010/11. 71% of year 9 and 11 respondents spent less than an hour doing
school work each day and 56% spent between one and three hours each day watching TV,
with a further 18% watching more than three hours.

2.3 Dental health

Only 70% of respondents brushed their teeth the recommended level of twice a day or after
every meal, which is consistent with 2010/11.

Only 68% of year 5 respondents brushed their teeth at least twice a day. A small proportion of
children and young people reported never brushing their teeth or only once a week. For most
year groups the pattern of brushing teeth is broadly similar to last year, although the
percentage of year 7 brushing their teeth at least twice a day has increased from 65% to 72%
in 2011/12.

Children’s Performance Service Page 16 of 71

Page 108



Appendix 3

Chart 2.07: How often do you brush your teeth?

SILCs/ PRUs |-~ 4

All
Secondary
Year 11
Year9 [ -7.]
Year7 | ..
Primary
Year6 [-.-

Year5 | . .

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O After every Meal O Twice a day O Every day B Every 2 or 3 days O Once a week B Never

2.4 Smoking

40% of respondents reported living with one or more people who smoke, a slight decrease
from 2010/11 (37%).

The majority of respondents had never smoked themselves, with a notable difference between
primary (97%), secondary (75%, a slight increase on 2010/11), and SILCs and PRUs (80%).
Year 11 respondents were most likely to report having had a cigarette with 44% reporting
smoking. This consisted of just 40% who reported ‘trying a cigarette’, 15% reporting they ‘used
to smoke’ and 28% smoking one or more per day.

Primary pupils were least likely to smoke, with three percent of year 5 pupils and four percent
of year 6 pupils having smoked a cigarette at some point. Of the respondents that said they
have smoked a cigarette a small number of primary pupils reported smoking regularly. Of
these, 6% said that they smoked 10 or more a day. 79% of the primary pupils who reported
smoking said that they had tried a cigarette. Of the secondary pupils who have smoked a
cigarette, 49% had tried a cigarette compared to 44% in 2010/11. 20% of young people from
PRUs/SILCs reported smoking a cigarette at some point.

Children’s Performance Service Page 17 of 71

Page 109



Table 2.01: How many cigarettes do you smoke on your own or share?

Primary Secondary
| have tried a cigarette 79% 49%
| used to smoke 9% 17%
| sometimes smoke, but less than once a week 1% 10%
1 to 6 a week 2% 5%
1to 4 aday 2% 6%
510 9 aday 0% 7%
10 or more a day 6% 7%

Appendix 3

Boys in primary school were slightly more likely to report having smoked a cigarette. For
year 5 respondents, four percent of boys compared to two percent of girls reported having
smoked a cigarette. Five percent of year 6 boys had smoked a cigarette and three percent of
girls. In years 9 & 11, more girls than boys reported having smoked a cigarette. For year 11,
50% of the female respondents had smoked a cigarette, a quarter more than boys of the

same age.

Chart 2.08: Percentage of male and female respondents who answered ‘yes’ to ‘Have you smoked a

cigarette?’
60% -
40% -
20% -| |—I
wl —mm N | | |
Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 9 Year 11
OFemale W Male

Children’s Performance Service

Page 110

Page 18 of 71



Appendix 3

Chart 2.09: Primary and Secondary: How much information, help and advice have you had about
smoking?

A QNN | |
Socondary| ONNNNNNNNNN,
Vear 11| ONNANNNNNNN [
Year| ONAANAANNNN
VNN | |
privery | ANNANNNN | |
Years| NNNANNNNN |
ears| NN | |
0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 50% 0% 0%  80% 0%  100%
OA lot DA little ® Not very much O None
2.5 Alcohol

Respondents were asked which of the following statements in the table below, described them
best.

Table 2.02: Which of the following describes you best?

Primary Secondary
| have never drunk alcohol 58% 31%
| drink only at special times with my family 32% 34%
| have tried alcohol once or twice without my family knowing 5% 8%
| sometimes drink, but less than once a month 2% 12%
| sometimes drink, but less than once a week 1% 7%
| drink alcohol once a week 1% 5%
| drink alcohol 2 to 3 times a week 0.5% 2%
| drink alcohol every day 0.5% 1%

The proportion of primary pupils saying that they have never drunk alcohol has increased from
45% in 2008/09 to 58% in 2011/12. The proportion of secondary pupils saying that they have
never drunk alcohol has increased from 15% in 2008/09 to 26% in 2010/11 and has continued
to increase slightly to 31% in 2011/12. This rise is a result of increases across all year groups.

Children’s Performance Service Page 19 of 71

Page 111



Appendix 3

42% of primary pupils had drunk alcohol. 32% of primary pupils and 55% of respondents from
SILCs/PRUs who had drunk alcohol did so with their parents. Pupils in years 9 and 11 were
most likely to drink alcohol regularly with seven percent of year 9 pupils and 19% of year 11s
drinking at least once a week. Two percent of primary age pupils reported drinking at least
once a week.

Secondary boys were more likely than girls to drink alcohol on a regular basis. Over a third
more boys than girls in year 11 reported that they had drank alcohol at least once a week.

Secondary age pupils that responded that they had drunk alcohol were asked more detailed
questions about their drinking habits. Overall 54% of pupils, who had drunk alcohol, reported
having been drunk at least once. This has decreased from 63% in 2009/10. 10% of secondary
respondents said that they are regularly drunk or drink to get drunk. This is down from 16% in
2008/09. 58% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs reported being drunk at least once.

SILCs/PRUs | RONNOONNNANNNY
Secondary | NN o
Year 11 | NN oo
Year9 | QNN g

Year 7 | ONNNNNN )

0% 10% 20%  30% 40%  50%  60% 70%  80% 90%  100%

O | have never been drunk ™ | have been drunk once B | have been drunk a few times

O | am regularly drunk O | drink to get drunk

Chart 2.10: Which of these describes you best?

The most common source of alcohol was parents, particularly for younger secondary pupils,
with 85% of year 7s saying this was their main source of alcohol. Just over half of year 9
pupils named parents as their main source, as did 46% of young people from PRUs and
SILCs. 16% of secondary pupils obtained it mainly from friends, and another 9% from
‘someone older’. 42% of year 11s named parents as their main source and again, around a
quarter 26% obtained it from their friends, with 17% reporting asking someone older to buy it
for them.

Respondents were asked how much information, help, and advice they had received about
alcohol. The proportion of respondents saying they had had a lot of information about alcohol
increased with age, with 62% of year 11s saying they had had a lot of information. This
compared to 42% of year 5s and 44% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs.

Children’s Performance Service Page 20 of 71

Page 112



Appendix 3

Chart 2.11: How much information, help and advice have you had about alcohol?

PRUS/SILCs | ANANANN | |
Secondary | WY B
Year 11 | AN B
Year 9 | AW
Year 7 | M |
Primary | AN |
Year 6 | ASSSSS TN |
Year5 | RSN

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OA lot @A little ® Not very much O None

70% of primary respondents said that they would know where to go to get help or advice
about alcohol. This has decreased from 76% in 2009/10. Three quarters of all primary and
secondary respondents and 69% of respondents from PRU and SILCs knew where to go to
get help or advice on alcohol from.

2.6 lllegal substances

Only secondary age pupils were asked questions relating to drugs and illegal substances.
Pupils were asked whether they had ever been offered illegal drugs or glues, gases or
solvents as drugs. 80% had never been offered drugs, this is in line with the figures reported
by pupils from PRUs and SILCs. Seven percent of secondary pupils had not been offered
drugs but knew where to get them, and four percent had been offered them by a friend or
family member. There are marked differences between year groups, with 91% of year 7s
never having been offered drugs, compared to 61% of year 11s.

The percentage of secondary respondents reporting that they had used illegal drugs has
decreased slightly from 12% in 2010/11 to 9% in 2011/12. This varies by year group, from two
percent for year 7s, to 10% of year 9s, and 20% of year 11s. The percentage of year 7s using
drugs has remained consistent over the last four years. The proportion of year 9s reporting
using drugs remains consistent to 2010/11. Following a slight increase in 2010/11 (27%), year
11 usage is back in line with the figures reported in 2009/10 at 20%. 11% of pupils from PRUs
and SILCs reported using illegal drugs.

Year 11 usage appeared to have followed a downward trend in 2009/10, however, there

appears to have been an increase again in the 2010/11 academic year. In 2009/10, all year 11
participants responded via a paper survey which may have impacted on results.

Children’s Performance Service Page 21 of 71

Page 113



Chart 2.12: Percentage reporting having tried illegal drugs

30% A

25% A
20% A
15% -
10% A
5% A
0% T T T T [] —

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

Ovyear 7 Blyear 9 Byear 11 OSILCs/PRUs

2011/12

Appendix 3

The table below indicates the types of substances which have been used by those pupils that
have tried drugs. Please note that in previous years, this table has shown the percentage as a
proportion of those that report using drugs. This year, the table describes as a proportion of
all respondents and therefore should not be compared with previous years. Cannabis is the
drug most commonly used by young people and six percent of all secondary pupils reported
using cannabis sometimes. There are a small proportion of young people reporting the use of
each type of drug at least once a week.

Table 2.03: How often have you used these drugs?

Every day

Every week

Sometimes

Once or twice

Glues, gases or
solvents as drugs

1%

0.3%

1.1%

2.3%

Drugs prescribed
to someone else
e.g.
Tranquillizers,
methadone

0.9%

0.1%

1.0%

2.4%

Cannabis

1.5%

1.4%

3.7%

5.7%

Stimulants like
speed, ecstasy
or M CAT

0.8%

0.4%

1.1%

1.5%

Stimulants like
cocaine or crack

0.8%

0.1%

0.6%

0.9%

Opiate drugs like
heroin

0.8%

0.2%

0.1%

0.4%

Hallucinogens
like LSD, magic
mushrooms or
Ketamine

0.8%

0.2%

0.2%

1.2%

Steroids (not
prescribed by a
doctor)

0.8%

0.1%

0.6%

1.2%

A mix of drugs at
the same time

0.8%

0.2%

0.7%

2.2%

Children’s Performance Service

Page 114

Page 22 of 71



Appendix 3

The chart below indicates that older pupils are more likely to report that they had received a lot
of information, help, and advice about harmful drugs. 73% of year 11s said they had received
a lot, compared to 41% of year 5 and 59% of year 6 respondents. The percentage of year 11s
saying they had had a lot of information has increased slightly from 2010/11. Just over half of
respondents from PRUs and SILCs reported they had had a lot of information.

Chart 2.13: How much information, help and advice have you had about harmful drugs?

PRUs/SILCs MSSSSSSTE |
Secondary_ AW |
Year 11 | AN B
Year 9| NANANN .
Year7| ANNANNT — —
Primary | ASSSSE |
Year 6 | AMSSSASNTE |
Year 5 | AR |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O A lot & A little ® Not very much O None

Overall 71% of pupils reported that they would know where to go to get help or advice about
drugs. Again, this increased with age as 58% of year 5 respondents reported knowing where
to go, compared to 81% of year 11 respondents. This is consistent with 2010/11.

2.7 Sex and relationships

Only year 9 and year 11 pupils were asked about sex. Overall, 24% of secondary respondents
reported having had sex, which is a decrease from 32% in 2010/11.

It should be noted that year 11s responded via a paper survey in 2009/10 and this may have
affected the results, whereas in 2010/11 and 2011/12 pupils responded via paper and web
survey. 15% of participants from SILCs and PRUs reported having had sex of which 70%
were in year 9 or above when they first had sexual intercourse.

Year 9 and 11 pupils who had had sex were asked about contraception. 28% of year 9 pupils
reported not using any contraception the last time they had sexual intercourse. This is
consistent with 2010/11 but an increase from 16% in 2008/09. 14% of year 11s reported not
using any contraception the last time they had sexual intercourse. This has decreased from
22% in 2010/11 and suggests that year 11s were more likely to report using contraception.

Children’s Performance Service Page 23 of 71

Page 115



Appendix 3

Table 2.04: The last time you had sexual intercourse, did you or your partner...?

Year 9 Year 11
Use a condom(s) only 64% 44%
Use another contraception 4% 23%
Use another contraception and a condom 4% 19%
We didn't use anything 28% 14%

Year 9 pupils were also asked how much information they had had about using contraception
and 61% felt they had had a lot. This shows a slight increase on 2010/11. 23% of year 9
pupils reported having ‘a little’, eight percent not very much, and a further eight percent
reported having had no information. Year 11s were more likely to report having received
information about using contraception. 68% reported having had a lot of information, whilst
22% responded ‘a little’ and 10% ‘not very much’ or ‘none’. Pupils from PRUs and SILCs
were asked the same question and only 38% said they had had a lot of information whilst 38%
reported they had not very much or none.

Respondents were also asked how much information they had had about avoiding HIV, AIDS,
and STDs. The results to this question were broadly similar to last year with 63% of all
secondary respondents reporting having had a lot, 23% a little, seven percent not very much,
and six percent none.

All pupils were asked about how much information, help, and advice they had had about
various aspects of growing up and relationships. The responses are shown in the charts
below. The areas in which pupils felt they had the most information were healthy eating;
personal hygiene; and how their bodies might change. For most aspects there was no
particular age related pattern. However, older pupils felt that they had had more information
about how babies are made and born, with 77% of year 11 pupils feeling they had had a lot of
information, compared to 32% of year 5 pupils. The majority of respondents from PRUs and
SILCs reported that they had received a lot of information on how their bodies will change as
they grow up, personal hygiene, and eating healthily.

Children’s Performance Service Page 24 of 71

Page 116



Appendix 3

Chart 2.14: How much information, help and advice have you had about how your body will change as
you grow up?

PRUS/SILCs | AN
Secondary total | oS |
Year 11 | OANNNNNN W
Year 9 | BASSSSSTIN
Year7 | AN, B
Primary | AR
Year 6 | RSSO |
Year 5 | AR
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
OA lot @A little B Not very much O None

Chart 2.15 How much information, help and advice have you had about how your feelings might change
as you grow up?

R LT —— R, E—
ALY B

Secondary | ARSI |
| PR
Year9 | AN
| ARSI |
Primary | AAAARARARLRN BN
| o T
Year5 | AAARRRRANSY
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OA lot M A little B Not very much O None

Children’s Performance Service Page 25 of 71

Page 117



Appendix 3

Chart 2.16: How much information, help and advice have you had about personal hygiene?

SILCs/PRUs | NN
Secondary total | AW
Year 11 | BASSSISSAEN |
Year9 | NN
Year7 | AN
Primary | RS
Year 6 | ARSI |
Year 5 | oSS
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
OA lot @A little B Not very much O None

Chart 2.17: How much information, help and advice have you had about how babies are made and
born?

SILCs/PRUs | ANAANNNNNY
Secondary | RN I
Year 11 | RSN
Year 9 | ANy B
Year7 | ANNNNNNN
Primary | DOONNVANNNN  —
Year6 | OO
Year5 | ANMOODNY

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O A lot K A little B Not very much O None

Children’s Performance Service Page 26 of 71

Page 118



Appendix 3

Chart 2.18: How much information, help and advice have you had about making good relationships?

All | ANMOANAY .
Secondary | AN .

Year 11 | AR,
Year 9 ] ARARRAARRVWYY
Year7 | NN,
Primary ] ARG
Year6 | DAY, B
Year5 | MSSSSSSSSEEEE

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
OA lot KA little B Not very much O None

76% of secondary and 65% of primary pupils said that they would know where to go to get
help or advice on sex and relationships. This increased with age, from 58% of year 5s to 79%
of year 11s. Whilst respondents, particularly primary age, felt more confident about accessing
this type of information than in 2008/09, the proportion of primary pupils who know where to
access information has still fallen slightly. For example, in 2009/10, 70% of primary pupils said
they would know where to go, compared to 65% in 2011/12.

All pupils were asked if they would know where to get help or advice about body changes, and
18% said that they would not. For primary pupils the figure was 18%, which is an increase
from 15% in 2009/10 but a decrease from 29% in 2008/09. For secondary pupils, the figure
decrease slightly from 21% in 2008/09 to 17% in 2011/12.

2.8 Emotional health

Primary and secondary pupils undertaking the survey were asked a range of questions
relating to their emotional health.

Charts 2.20 and 2.21 show how happy primary and secondary respondents felt about
different aspects of their lives. The majority of both primary and secondary pupils were
happy about most aspects. Respondents were most positive about the number of good
friends that they had, with 84% of all respondents being very happy or happy. Generally,
primary pupils are more positive than secondary pupils. For example, when asked how
happy they were about the way they look, 66% of primary pupils were happy or very happy,
compared to 50% of secondary pupils. 14% of secondary pupils were either very unhappy or
unhappy about the way they looked at the time of completing the survey. Over three times
the amount of year 9 girls than boys said that they were either 'unhappy' or 'very unhappy'
with how they looked. Results were similar for year 7, in which three times the amount of
girls said that they were either 'unhappy' or 'very unhappy' with their appearance.

Children’s Performance Service Page 27 of 71

Page 119



Appendix 3

Chart 2.19: Percentage of secondary male and female respondents who are ‘unhappy’ or ‘very
unhappy’ with their appearance.

30% A

20% A

10% A

OO/O T T
Year 7 Year 9 Year 11

O Female | Male

There was also a significant difference in feelings between primary and secondary
respondents about how healthily they eat (75% primary happy/ very happy compared to 59%
of secondary); overall happiness with health (77% primary happy/very happy compared to
62% of secondary); and how active and sporty they are (80% of primary happy/very happy
compared to 64% of secondary). These results were broadly in line with figures from 2010/11.

Chart 2.20: Primary pupils: How happy do you feel about the following..?

How healthily youeat | INNNNNNNNNNNI 1]

The number of good friends you have Ny N
How lever you are | NN\ )

How healthy you are _W

How active and sporty you are _ P\KKX‘Q\\\&'“-EH

The way you look EQQQQQQQQQK_

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Very happy ® Happy B OK 8 Unhappy O Very unhappy

Children’s Performance Service Page 28 of 71

Page 120



Appendix 3

Chart 2.21: Secondary pupils: How happy do you feel about the following..?

How healthily you eat AN [ T1
The number of good friends you have BSOS T
How clever you are AN LT ]

How healthy youare | INNNSNSSSSNIEEGEN 1]
How active and sporty you are SRRy
The way you look

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Very happy @ Happy B OK 8 Unhappy O Very unhappy

The majority of both primary and secondary pupils felt happy every day or most days (83% of
primary and 81% of secondary respondents). Three percent of all primary and secondary
respondents hardly ever or never felt happy this was consistent across most year groups. The
figure reported for year 9 was slightly higher at four percent. More primary pupils than
secondary pupils felt confident every day or most days. Although most pupils didn’t feel lonely
often, nine percent of respondents felt lonely every day or most days. The proportion of
respondents that felt sad all or most of the time was similar to the amount that felt lonely, with
a further third of respondents reporting that they felt sad some days. 23% of secondary and
18% of primary pupils said they felt bad tempered or angry every day or most days. Just over
a third of secondary respondents reported hardly ever or never feeling bad tempered or angry.
Secondary pupils were more likely to feel stressed, with 23% feeling stressed all or most of
the time.

Chart 2.22: Primary pupils: How often do you feel...?

Happy [ ‘SSASSASSSSSSSSEEEE
Confident [ INSSARSISSSSSSEE T

Worried [ SN . [ |

Sad [ S [ |

Stressed [ RSN | |
Badtempered/angry [ NSNS - I |
lonely (R ... ... | |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Every day @ Most days B Some days O Hardly ever O Never

Children’s Performance Service Page 29 of 71

Page 121



Appendix 3

Chart 2.23: Secondary pupils: How often do you feel...?

Happy [ ENSNNASSSAESSSSASSSNEEEEN 1

Confident b [~ T1
Worried ] - I |
Sad (AN | |

Stressed AARARYY O e | |

Bad tempered/angry WaRARRY e [ |

lonely [RTINNNG | |

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

O Every day B Most days B Some days O Hardly ever O Never

Respondents were also asked how well they thought they coped with negative emotions, such
as loneliness, stress, anger, sadness and worry. Both primary and secondary pupils coped
least well with feeling bad tempered or angry, with just over a third feeling that they coped not
well or not well at all. This was consistent with 2010/11. Both primary and secondary pupils
coped best with feelings of lonliness, with 49% coping well or very well. This was a slight
increase from 44% in 2010/11 and 43% in 2008/09. For secondary pupils, only 40% felt they
dealt well with stress, slightly more than in 2010/11 (35%).

Chart 2.24: Primary pupils: How well do you cope with feeling...

Not well at all | TN ] |
Notwell [ T ] |
ok [ S | |

Wel NNNNN RO |
Very well mm| |
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Lonely & Angery B Sad O Worried O Stressed

Children’s Performance Service Page 30 of 71

Page 122



Appendix 3

Chart 2.25: Secondary pupils: How well do you cope with feeling...?

Notwell atall | Lol - |
Notwell | Moo | |

ok [ IRNNNNEEN |

well DANNS  BhbEh |

Very well NNNNN _ BBBEhE |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Lonely 8 Bad tempered or angry B Sad O Worried O Stressed

Primary and secondary pupils were asked if they would know where to get help or advice about
emotional health, 74% stated yes they would (75% of primary pupils and 72% of secondary). For
secondary, this is a slight increase from 69 % in 2010/11. The largest increase can be seen in year 11
where the figure went from 63% in 2010/11 to 73% in 2011/12. 81% said they would know where to get
help or advice about problems out of school, with 87% knowing where to get help and advice for
problems in school.

Young people from PRUs and SILCs were asked how often they feel a range of emotions such as
stress, anger and happyness, the results can be seen in the chart below. 28% of young people said
they felt bad tempered every day or most days. 71% said they felt happy everyday or most days and
16% of respondents said they hardly ever or never feel confident.

Chart 2.26: PRUs and SILCs: How often do you feel..?

Stressed | INASNNNNEG ] I

Bad tempered orangry | [ | |
Worried | RSN [ |

Sad IR | |

lonely [ KASSSTEEEN [ |

Confident ™ [T ]
Happy AR BN
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Every day k1 Most days M Some days O Hardly ever O Never
Children’s Performance Service Page 31 of 71

Page 123



Appendix 3

2.9 School support for health

Pupils were asked to rate how good their school is at supporting them to have a healthy
lifestyle. Overall 72% of all primary and secondary pupils rated their school as good or very
good. Although, this figure was higher for primary (83%) than for secondary (54%). These
figures are broadly similar to 2010/11. 94% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported
that their school was good or ok at helping them to have a healthy lifestyle.

Chart 2.27: How good is your school at supporting you to be healthy?

60% A

40% A

20% A

0% T T T

Year 5

Year 6
Primary
Year 7

Year 9

Year 11
Secondary
SILCs/PRUs

O Very good & Good B OK O Poor O Very poor

Section 3: Stay safe

3.1 Safety in places

Young people were asked how safe they felt in a variety of places, a breakdown of the results
can be seen in the charts below. There is a small minority of primary and secondary children
(two percent) who reported that they did not feel safe at home; this is consistent across year
groups. Four percent of respondents from PRUs and SILCs reported feeling unsafe or very
unsafe at home.

The place where the highest proportion of respondents felt safe was at home, this was
followed by at school during lessons. Outside of lessons, seven percent of primary and 12% of
secondary pupils reported feeling unsafe or very unsafe in school, this is consistent with last
year’s results. 10% of primary and 11% of secondary respondents felt unsafe or very unsafe
travelling to and from school. This remains consistent with 2010/11. 11% of young people from
PRUs and SILCs reported feeling very unsafe or unsafe at school not in lessons and 9%
reported not feeling safe in lessons.

Children’s Performance Service Page 32 of 71

Page 124



Appendix 3

The maijority of children feel safe in the area where they live during daylight, but this reduces
significantly after dark, with 41% of primary, 36% of secondary and 33% of PRUs and SILCs
pupils reporting that they felt unsafe or very unsafe in their local area after dark. However the
proportion of pupils in year 11 reporting that they do not feel safe in the area they live after
dark has increased from 24% in 2010/11 to 34% in 2011/12, all other year groups are
consistent with 2010/11. There is a distinct age split in the extent to which children and young
people feel safe in the city centre, with 33% of primary age reporting they feel unsafe or very
unsafe compared to 21% of secondary age respondents. The proportion of young people
saying they do not feel safe in their local park remains consistent to 2010/11. The proportion
of primary age pupils saying that they do not feel safe in the city centre has increased slightly
from 30% to 33% in 2011/12.

Chart 3.0: Primary pupils: How safe do you feel in the following places?

Other travelling 1 AR NN |
In your local park | ADNNNNNNNNUNNNUNNNNUNNNN NN |
City centre o — TTRIRRANRNRRRNANNNRRNRRRRY )
Area you live in daylight | A e T
Area you live after dark | PAONMAANNNMANANAAANAMNAANNNNY - |
Travelling to and from. ] AEARNNNNNHHERNN NN |
At school not in lessons | [DANANANANNANANNANNNNANNRNNONNNY |
During lessons at school | NNNNNNNANNANNANNNNNNNN |
Athome | NN
. . . . .
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
OVery safe Safe BmUnsafe OVery unsafe

Chart 3.01: Secondary pupils (years 7 and 9): How safe do you feel in the following
places?

Othertravelling [ TNNNNSRNANRRNRRRRNNRRRNANNSNNSN |

Inyourlocalpark [ [NNNARNARRARAANNSNSNSASN . |

Citycentre [ KRNNNSNANANANAARARRANRRRRNNNNGSNNE. |

Area you live in daylight RRRRRRNRRRNNESSSSSNI

Areayoulieafterdark | BANNSSAASOASSNEEEEEEEEEEES

Trawllingtoandfromschool [ [NNNNNNARNAANNSARRAARRRSSNNSSSNN |

Atschoolnotinlessons [ ’NNANNRRARRARRRRRRRNRRNNNNSNNN |

During lessons atschool [ RN RN NNNSNSSNSNE

At home OO

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Very safe & Safe @ Unsafe O Very unsafe

Children’s Performance Service Page 33 of 71

Page 125



Appendix 3

Chart 3.02: SILCs and PRUS How Safe do you feel in the following places

City centre -m
I your local park | R NNNNNSNNSSNSSSNSSCC
Area you live in daylight | NNNNNNOANANANY B
Area you live after dark -:W
Travelling to and from school ] NS I
At school not in lessons. |~ [ RRNNNNNSNSSSSSSSSSS
Lessons at school | ANANNANNANNNNNNGN ]
Hore | ANNNNNNNANNNNNNN |

0% 20I% 40I% GOI% 80I% 1 O(I)%

O Very safe 0 Safe W Unsafe @ Very unsafe

3.2 Safety at school

The extent to which students report certain issues being a problem in their school and their
views of the school’s effectiveness in dealing with each issue, are shown in Chart 3.03 and
Chart 3.04. The issues most commonly reported as being a problem are smoking for
secondary respondents, whereas primary, PRUs and SILCs pupils reported behaviour as a
problem.

Children’s Performance Service Page 34 of 71

Page 126



Chart 3.03: Safety at school

Appendix 3

O Reporting it is a problem

Behaviour (secondary

Behaviour (primary

People from different backgrounds not getting on well (secondary
People from different backgrounds not getting on well (primary
Drugs (secondary

Drugs (primary

Alcohol (secondary

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
Alcohol (primary)
Smoking (secondary)
Smoking (primary)

Gangs (secondary)
Gangs (primary)
Cyberbullying (secondary)
Cyberbullying (primary)
Bullying (secondary)

)

Bullying (primary

il

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

W Reporting school is OK or better at dealing with issue

Chart 3.04: PRUs and SILCs Safety at school

Gangs

Smoking

Alcohol

Drugs

People from different backgrounds
not getting on well

Behaviour

e
=

0%

O Reporting it is a problem

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

H Reporting school is OK or better at dealing with the issue

3.3 Safety where you live

Respondents were asked how much of a problem a range of issues were in the area they live.
Graffiti/litter, alcohol and gangs were seen as being a problem by most respondents.

Children’s Performance Service

Page 35 of 71

Page 127



Appendix 3

Chart 3.05: Safety where you live

Drugs

Alcohol

Gangs

Graffiti and litter

People getting on
together

Crime & ASB

lf||||

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

OSILCs/ PRUs m Primary/ Secondary

Secondary age respondents and pupils from PRUs and SILCs were also asked if they had
been a victim of various types of incidents in the last 12 months. Their responses are given in
Charts 3.06 and 3.07.

Children’s Performance Service Page 36 of 71

Page 128



Appendix 3

Chart 3.06: Percentage of secondary pupils who have been a victim of...

25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

Crime Anti social Bullying Cyberbullying  Discrimination Violence
behaviour
02009/10 W2010/11 02011/12

Chart 3.07: Percentage of SILC an PRU respondents who have been a victim of...

30% -
25% A
20% A

15% -

10% -

] .

O% T T T T T

Crime Anti social Bullying or  Cyberbullying Discrimination Violence
behaviour harassment

In 2011/12 there is a slight decrease in the percentage of secondary pupils reporting being a

victim of crime; anti social behaviour; bullying; cyberbullying; discrimination; and violence.
28% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported being a victim of anti social behaviour
and 23% reported being a victim of crime.

Chart 3.08 shows the percentage of males and females reporting they were a victim of
violence. Across primary year groups, around twice as many boys than girls reported being a
victim of violence in the past year. Almost three times as many year 7 boys than girls have
been a victim of violence. For years 9 and 11, the trend is consistent with the results of the
primary survey, with twice as many boys than girls experiencing violence in the past 12

Children’s Performance Service Page 37 of 71

Page 129



Appendix 3

months. 17% of males and 11% of females from SILCs and PRUs reported being a victim of
violence in the past year.

Chart 3.08: Percentage male and female respondents who have been a victim of violence in
the past 12 months

25% 1

20% A

15% -

10% A

5% A

0% A T T T T 1
Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 9 Year 11

B Female O Male

3.4 Bullying

41% of primary respondents reported having been bullied at least once at school in the
previous 12 months, and this has increased slightly when compared to 36% reported in
2010/11. Whereas, the percentage of secondary pupils reporting being bullied has decreased
from 37% (2010/11) to 33% (2011/12). Girls in each of the year groups that completed the
primary survey were more likely to have experienced bullying at school in the past year.
Around a third more girls than boys in both years 5 & 6 said that they had been bullied on a
monthly basis or more. Secondary school responses showed that the amount of boys and girls
who said that they had been bullied every month or more frequently, in the past 12 months
remained relatively similar across secondary school age groups. There was a slight difference
with year 9 respondents, with 11% of girls saying that they had been bullied monthly or more
in the past year compared to 8% of boys.

Table: 3.01: In the last 12 months, how many times have you been bullied in or around
school?

Primary Secondary All year groups

2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12

Never 63% 64% 59% 63% 63% 67% 63% 63% 62%

A few
times 30% 28% 31% 28% 28% 25% 29% 28% 28%

Every

month 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2% 2%

Every 1% 1% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2% 1% 1%
Children’s Performance Service Page 38 of 71

Page 130



Appendix 3

week

Most

days 3% 4% 5% 4% 4% 5% 3% 4% 5%
Every

day 1% 1% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

31% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported being bullied in or around school in the
last 12 months, of which eight percent reported being bullied every day, 35% said they had
been bullied most days, and a total of 57% said they had been bullied a few times this year.
Girls from SILCs and PRUs experienced bullying more often than boys. 19% of girls reported
being bullied every day or most days compared to 16% of boys. Over a third of male and
female respondents reported being bullied a few times this year.

Those young people that had been bullied in the last year were asked for reasons why they
were bullied, their responses are in Table 3.02. Pupils were able to report more than one
reason. Only pupils from secondary schools, PRUs and SILCs were asked about sexuality.
For primary pupils, the main reasons stated were, ‘other’, ‘no reason’ and ‘size (either over
weight or under weight)’, the latter has decreased from 32% in 2010/11 to 25% in 2011/12.
The reason ‘size (height)’ has also fallen from 26% in 2010/11 to 19% in 2011/12.

For secondary pupils, 43% of those that were bullied stated the reason ’appearance’, this is
consistent with last year. A high proportion also reported that they were bullied because of
other reasons and of their ‘size’ (either over weight or under weight). 11% of primary and 14%
of secondary pupils who had been bullied reported that this was due to their skin colour, race
or culture. The reasons for being bullied reported in 2011/12 for primary and secondary pupils
were generally in line with those reported in previous years.

62% of pupils who had been bullied from PRUs and SILCs reported being bullied because of

a disability or special need, in addition 35% of these stated no reason for being bullied and
46% stated appearance.

Children’s Performance Service Page 39 of 71

Page 131



Appendix 3

Table 3.02: If you have been bullied in the last 12 months, what was the reason?

Primary

Secondary

SILCs/PRUs
2009/10 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2009/10 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 2011/12

Skin colour, race
or culture 12% 16% 11% 10% 11% 14% 23%
Gender (being a
boy or a girl) 8% 9% 8% 4% 6% 4% 19%
Age 11% 14% 13% 6% 7% 5% 23%
A disability or
special need 6% 8% 6% 4% 6% 4% 62%
Religion 8% 11% 10% 6% 5% 8% 31%
Size (either over
weight or under
weight) 22% 32% 25% 28% 27% 27% 31%
Size (height) 17% 26% 19% 18% 19% 17% 15%
Being gay,
lesbian,
transsexual or
bisexual® *N/A *N/A *N/A 4% 7% 5% 12%
Appearance 27% 31% 24% 39% 41% 43% 46%
Family members 16% 16% 14% 10% 13% 8% 27%
Family income 6% 7% 5% 4% 6% 7% 15%
Personal
hygiene 6% 21% 5% 3% 4% 3% 8%
| have a free
school meal

N/A N/A 8% N/A N/A 3% 0%
Other 34% 39% 33% 27% 29% 32% 35%
No reason 24% 32% 21% 23% 19% 20% 69%

* Only secondary pupils and young people from PRUs and SILCs were asked about sexuality
*I have a school meal was added as an option in the 2011/12 survey, this data was not
collected previously.

3.5 School support for staying safe

Pupils were asked to rate their school on how good they were at supporting them to stay safe.
The majority (77%) felt that their school was good or very good at supporting them to stay
safe. There is a difference between primary and secondary, with 87% of primary and 60% of
secondary pupils rating their school as good or better. 11% of secondary respondents rated
their school as poor or very poor this compares to 3% of primary respondents. 98% of
respondents from PRUs and SILCs said their school was good or ok at helping them to stay

safe.

Children’s Performance Service

Page 132

Page 40 of 71




Appendix 3

Chart 3.09: How good is your school at supporting you to stay safe?

60%

40%

20%

0% AN N I Ny

Very good Good Ok Poor Very poor

O Primary 0 Secondary mAll O SILCs/PRUs

*SILC/PRUS only asked if good, ok or poor.
*All refers to Primary & Secondary combined.

Children’s Performance Service Page 41 of 71

Page 133



Appendix 3

Section 4: Enjoy and achieve

4.1 Enjoyment

Children and young people were asked how much they agreed or disagreed with the
statement ‘| enjoy my life’. The responses are shown in the chart below. Overall, 80% agreed
with the statement, although this was higher for primary than secondary pupils. Double the
proportion of secondary than primary respondents reported not enjoying life, eight percent
compared to four percent. 67% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported that they
enjoy life, 24% stated they were unsure.

Chart 4.0: Do you enjoy your life?

PRUS/SILCs | S SRS -
All | A
Secondary total | AR
Year 11 | IS5
Year 9 | SRS S
Year7 | AN
Primary Total | oSS
Year 6 | RS
Year 5 | NN |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Agree ™ Not sure W Disagree

Chart 4.01 indicates the proportion of children and young people reporting that they undertook
a range of activities outside of school, in the last four weeks. The majority of respondents had
spent time at home with friends. 76% of primary and 71% of secondary pupils had visited a
park or play area this is consistent with 2010/11. It is important to note in 2010/11 and
2011/12 many of the schools participated in the survey during the spring and summer term
which may influence these results.

Primary school pupils were more likely to say they had been swimming in the last four weeks
than secondary respondents. The proportion of primary pupils reporting visiting a swimming
pool increased from 55% in 2010/11 to 60% in 2011/12. In comparison, the percentage of
secondary pupils visiting a swimming pool also increased from 41% in 2010/11 to 49% in
2011/12. 52% of young people from PRUs and SILCs reported going swimming. Just over half
of all primary and secondary pupils and 48% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs reported visiting
a cinema or theatre in the last four weeks. In 2011/12 only 31% of all primary and secondary
pupils had been to a youth group (including brownies, guides, scouts, etc.), 25% to an art or
drama club, and 36% had taken part in a music lesson or group. The number of primary pupils
visiting a library increased from 30% in 2010/11 to 37% in 2011/12. The number of secondary

Children’s Performance Service Page 42 of 71

Page 134



Appendix 3

pupils visiting a sports club or class fell from 54% in 2010/11 to 45% in 2011/12. The figures
reported by pupils from PRUs and SILCs are broadly in line with the overall primary and
secondary figures.

Chart 4.01: Proportion of respondents undertaking each activity (outside of school) in the last
four weeks

Music lesson/ music group -;_‘

Art or drama club

_|
Been to a youth group —_—'|
_|
Sports club or class pEEEE————
_|
Been swimming ——'_l

Gone to music concert or gig

Visited a museum* E
Visited a library*  —————
_|
Visited cinema or theatre ﬁ

_|

Visited park or play area —_‘
_|
Spent time away from home with friends* *

.|

Spent time at home with friencls* |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Primary B Secondary O SILCs and PRUs

Respondents to the survey were asked how good they thought their local area was at
providing play, sports and arts for them. The proportion responding good or very good is
shown in Chart 4.02. Data for secondary pupils from 2009/10 is not shown as the absence of
year 11 data from the 2009/10 results would make the comparison invalid. Secondary pupils’
perception of their local play area has improved when compared to 44% in 2008/09 to 53% in
2011/12.

Primary pupils are significantly more positive about play, sports and arts provision than
secondary age respondents. The proportion of secondary pupils responding that arts provision
was either ‘good’ or ‘very good’ has increased from 18% in 2010/11 to 26% in 2011/12, in the
main, this was due to a small increase in the year 11 response.

Overall 82% of young people from PRUs and SILCs rated their local play area as good or ok.
A quarter of respondents stated their local sports facilities were poor and a further 32% of
young people said the local area was poor at providing arts like music groups, museums and
galleries for young people.

Children’s Performance Service Page 43 of 71

Page 135



Appendix 3

Chart 4.02: Proportion responding good or very good to ‘How good is your local area for...?’

-1

2011/12 —_‘
2010/11 h

Secondary

2008/09

—

2011/12 —
2010/11 —
2009/10 —
2008/09 *

Primary

5% 15% 25% 35% 45% 55% 65% 75%

O Play W Sports O Arts

Chart 4.03: PRUs and SILCs How good is your local area for...?

Arts #
Sports *
Play —

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

OGood% BEOK % 0OPoor%

4.2 Pupils’ views of their school

There was a significant difference between primary and secondary age pupils’ enjoyment of
school. Respondents were asked how much they agreed or disagreed with the statement ‘|
enjoy going to school'. Only 45% of secondary school pupils agreed with the statement,
compared to 65% of primary pupils and 51% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs. 33% of
secondary pupils reported not being sure. Enjoyment of school decreases with each year
group surveyed, with 67% of year 5 agreeing that they enjoy school, compared to 37% of year
11s.

Children’s Performance Service Page 44 of 71

Page 136



Appendix 3

Chart 4.04: | enjoy going to school

SILCs/PRUS | DO

Year 5 | B T

Year6 | ASSSSSSSIEEN

All primary | o T

Year7 | DO

Year 9 | BASSSSSSSSSSANEE

Year 11 _—m

All Secondary | BSSSSSSSSSS
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Agree &l Not sure B Disagree

There were marked differences between primary and secondary pupils’ views of their school,
as shown in Chart 4.05. In 2011/12, 84% of primary pupils felt their school was a welcoming
and caring place, compared to 53% of secondary pupils and 60% of respondents from PRUs
and SILCs. There remained a significant difference between year groups, with 85% of year 5s
and 40% of year 11s saying their school was a welcoming and caring place. The majority of
primary pupils felt that their school buildings were good and 60% of secondary schools agreed
with this statement this is an increase when compared to 52% in 2010/11. The proportion of
primary pupils reporting their school had good things to do at break times was higher (70%)
than for secondary pupils (37%). In the main, results for many of the statements for primary
and secondary are broadly similar to last year. 72% of respondents from PRUs and SILCs
agreed that school helps them if they are worried or have a problem.

Chart 4.05: Percentage of pupils agreeing with the following statements

1
Buildings and grounds are.

good

There are good things to do
at break times

There are good things to do
before and after school ,

R S

worried or have a problem ......................................... II

Al

that care about me

School is welcoming and
caring

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Primary 2010/11 O Primary 2011/12  ®Secondary 2010/11 @ Secondary 2011/12 O PRUs/SILCs 2011/12

Children’s Performance Service Page 45 of 71

Page 137



Appendix 3

Pupils were asked about the opportunities provided by their school for activities outside of
lessons. Once again, views are more positive for primary than secondary pupils.

Chart 4.06: Primary and Secondary: How good are opportunities provided by your school,
outside of lessons? Percentage responding ‘good’ or ‘very good’

After school or breakfast
club

I

School trips or holidays

Sports and physical
activity

Spending time with
friends

Using good computers
and the internet

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

W 2011/12 Primary 02011/12 Secondary

Pupils were asked to rate how good their school is at supporting them to enjoy and achieve
in life. Overall, 72% thought their school was good or very good. The percentage feeling
their school was good or very good was higher for primary than secondary (82% compared
to 570/0).

Chart 4.07: How good is your school at supporting you to enjoy and achieve

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

B =

Very good Good OK Poor Very poor

0%

O Primary B Secondary oAl

Pupils were asked if they had ever been away from school without telling anyone. In the main,
results remained consistent with previous years. Secondary pupils were more likely than
primary pupils to say that they had been away from school without telling anyone. In 2010/11

Children’s Performance Service Page 46 of 71

Page 138



Appendix 3

74% of secondary pupils said they had not been away from school without telling anyone, in
2011/12 this figure has further reduced to 64%.

In both years 5 & 6, a greater amount of boys than girls said that they had been away from
school without telling anyone. In year 6, the amount of boys who said they had been away
from school, was around a third greater than the amount of girls. This pattern continued for
secondary school respondents, where around a third more year 7 boys than girls said that
they had been away from school without telling anyone. For SILCs, PRUs, year 9 and 11,
the amount of boys and girls that reported being away from school was similar.

For secondary pupils, the most common reasons for being away from school without telling
anyone were ‘other reasons’, ‘not liking lessons’, and ‘being with family’. The most common
reasons reported by respondents from PRUs and SILCs were another reason, lessons and
teachers. (Table 4.0 shows the reasons for being away from school given by respondents who
answered ‘yes’ — the question was multi-select.)

Table 4.0: Have you ever been away from school without telling anyone?

Primary Secondary SILCs/PRUs
0 o
No 88% 64% 64%
Yes, due to lessons | do not o o
like 2% 7% 22%
Yes, due to teachers 2% 4% 21%
Yes, due to bullying 3% 3% 9%
Yes, due to being with family 5% 6% 9%
Yes, due to being with o o
friends 2% 4% 12%
0 o
Yes, for another reason 8% 8% 67%

4.3 Learning

The charts below show the differences between primary and secondary pupils’ responses in
relation to their learning. The majority of pupils in both primary and secondary know how they
learn best, however, just less than half of secondary pupils agreed that their school helps
them learn in the way that is best for them (and this was higher for year 7 than year 9 and 11)
compared to 77% of primary pupils. Only a third of secondary pupils thought their lessons
were interesting or fun (this decreases with age), compared to two thirds of primary pupils.
80% of primary pupils said the head teacher and senior staff in their school do a good job
compared to 51% of secondary pupils. 82% of primary pupils agreed that teaching is good,
compared with 50% of secondary pupils. Almost 80% of primary pupils felt that they learn a lot
in lessons, compared with 51% of secondary pupils. Results remain level with 2010/11. A
higher proportion of girls were more positive than boys. Across year 7, 9 and 11, more girls
than boys agreed that the teaching in their school is good, they learn lots in lessons and they

Children’s Performance Service Page 47 of 71

Page 139



Appendix 3

enjoy going to school. However, a greater proportion of year 9 boys than girls thought that
they were doing ‘good’ or ‘very good’ at school.

Chart 4.08: Primary pupils: how much do you agree or disagree with the following
statements...?

Headteacher and senior staff
in my school do a good job

I learn a lot in my lessons

Teaching in my school is
good

My lessons are interesting
and fun

School helps me learn in the
way that is best for me

| know how | learn best

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

0O Agree B Not sure O Disagree

Chart 4.09: Secondary pupils do you agree with the following statements...?

Headteacher and senior staff
in my school do a good job

I learna lotin my lessons

Teaching in my school is
good

My lessons are interesting
and fun

School helps melearn in the
way thatis best for me

| know how | learn best

1l

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
O Agree B Not sure O Disagree
Children’s Performance Service Page 48 of 71

Page 140



Appendix 3

Pupils from PRUs and SILCs were also asked about their learning. 63% of respondents
agreed that they learn a lot in lessons. This was followed by 59% agreeing that teaching in
their school was good. 17% stated that lessons were not fun and interesting, and 37% were
unsure of whether the headteacher and senior staff do a good job. A breakdown of the results
can be seen in Chart 4.10.

Chart 4.10: PRUs and SILCs pupils: Do you agree with the following statements...?

Headteacher and senior staff do a good
job

| learn a lotin my lessons

Teaching in my school is good

411

My lessons areinteresting and fun

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
O Agree B NotSure [ODisagree

The table below shows how easy respondents said it was to get help from their teacher.
Primary pupils found it easier to get help than secondary pupils, and, out of secondary pupils,
year 7 were most likely to find it easiest to get help. The number of year 11 who find it easy to
get help decreased from 79% in 2010/11 to 71% in 2011/12. 86% of participants from the
PRUs and SILCs survey found it easy to get help.

Table 4.01: How easy is it to get help from your teacher? Percentage responding easy or very
easy

Primary Year 7 Year 9 Year 11 Secondary PRU/SILCs
2008/09 85% 73% 73% 75% 73% N/A
2009/10 87% 77% 69% 73% N/A
2010/11 81% 75% 70% 79% 73% N/A
2011/12 85% 75% 70% 71% 73% 86%

*please note that data was not collected for PRUs and SILC until 2011/12.

Table 4.02 shows how respondents described themselves in relation to their learning. The
majority of pupils described themselves as hard working, well organised, well behaved and
achieving good marks. A fifth of primary and a quarter of secondary pupils reported that they
always or often messed about in class. However, 44% of primary pupils, 66% of secondary
pupils and 38% of participants from PRUs and SILCs said they were easily bored. The
number of primary pupils reporting they are well behaved has increased from 80% in 2010/11
to 84% in 2011/12.

Children’s Performance Service Page 49 of 71

Page 141




Appendix 3

Table 4.02: How would you describe yourself as a learner? Percentage responding ‘always’
or ‘often’

Primary Secondary PRUs/ SILCs
Hard working 87% 81% 55%
Mess about in class a lot 20% 27% 26%
Well organised 79% 72% 26%
Well behaved 84% 80% 38%
Achieve good marks 83% 81% 29%
Easily bored 44% 66% 38%

*Respondents from PRUs/SILCs were asked to tick next to each sentence that described them as a
learner.

Chart 4.11 shows how well respondents thought they were doing at school. 85% of primary
and 75% of secondary pupils answered good or very good to this question. The results are in
line with those reported in the last two years. 55% of respondents from PRUs and SILCs
thought they were doing well at school, 38% said ok and 7% said they were doing poorly at
school.

Chart 4.11: Primary and Secondary: How well do you think you are doing at school?

Secondary [ INNSNSNSSSSSSSSRSRSSSS T
Year 11 -
Vears [ INNSNSONSNNSRSNNRSRRS RS T
Year 7 -
primary | ANMANNANNANNNNN ]
Years | ANNNANNNANNANNNNNNN ]
Years | ANANNNNNNNNNNNNY @)
” - o - - ot

O Very good Good B Ok & Poor O Very Poor

The table below shows what pupils thought would help them to do better in school.
Respondents were allowed to select more than one option. In the main, the most popular
options were ‘more fun or interesting lessons’ and ‘more help from teachers’.

Children’s Performance Service Page 50 of 71

Page 142



Appendix 3

Table 4.03: What would help you to do better?

Primary Secondary PRUS/SILCs

More help from teachers 31% 40% 24%
More fun or interesting lessons 58% 74% 45%
A quieter or better behaved class or group 29% 33% 28%
Smaller classes or groups 20% 33% 12%
Fewer bullies 20% 22% 5%
More help from family and friends (with 16% 1%

homework and other things) 12%
Somewhere quiet at home to do homework 18% 10% 10%
Other things 28% 22% 36%

Section 5: Make a positive confribution

5.1 Awareness of rights

All pupils were asked if they knew about the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, 12%
of primary and 7% of secondary pupils reported they knew a lot and 17% of respondents
from PRUs and SILCs reported they knew about this. All primary and secondary pupils were
asked what they know about the rights of children and young people in England, 12% of
young people reported they don’t have rights, 43% reported they have rights but don’t know
anything about them. 32% reported they could write a few of their rights down this was
slightly higher for secondary pupils than primary respondents. Only 13% of pupils reported
that they have rights, and know a great deal about them, this was higher for primary than
secondary pupils. Please note it is not possible to compare this data, 2011/12 was the first
year it has been collected.

5.2 Opportunities at school

Primary and secondary pupils were asked for their views on the opportunities for undertaking
different activities in their school. Table 5.0 shows the proportion of respondents that said
opportunities were good or very good for each activity.

Children’s Performance Service Page 51 of 71

Page 143



Appendix 3

Table 5.0: Primary and Secondary: Percentage of respondents saying opportunities in their
school are good or very good for the following activities

Primary Secondary All
Helping out in the community 67% 39% 56%
Doing your bit to care for the environment 75% 41% 62%
Being a buddy, .helper, mentor or peer mediator 77% 43% 63%
for another pupil
Making changes in the way the school is run 68% 38% 56%
Helping out around school 78% 39% 62%
(I\:/(I)aukrlgﬁ decisions (or voting) in a class or school 78% 40% 63%

Pupils’ views of opportunities in their school for undertaking activities have changed very little
compared to previous years. For all activities, the proportion of pupils saying opportunities in
their school were good or better was higher for primary than secondary pupils. Overall, the
activity with the lowest proportion of respondents saying opportunities were good in their
school, was ‘helping out in the community’ and ‘making changes in the way the school is run’.

This is reflected in the proportion of pupils undertaking this activity in the previous 12 months
at school. (Helping out as a volunteer in the community, 39% of primary and 19% of
secondary). 40% of secondary and 78% of primary felt that there were good opportunities for
them to make decisions affecting their school (or voting) in a class or school council.

The following chart indicates the proportion that had undertaken each activity at school in the
last 12 months. Please note it is not possible to compare pupil’s views of opportunities in their
school/local area to make a positive contribution in the past 12 months as this question was
revised for the 2011/12 survey.

Children’s Performance Service Page 52 of 71

Page 144



Appendix 3

Chart 5.0: Proportion taking part in each activity at school, in the previous 12 months

:
Doing your bit to care for the environment ——‘

Helping out as a volunteer in the -—_I
community |

Activities before or after the school day ——‘
Making decisions (or voting) in a class or _—1

school council |

Helping out around school I

Had a chance to have a say in the way the _:J
school is run
Being a buddy, helper, mentor or peer |

mediator for another pupil |

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

O SILCs/PRUs W Secondary O Primary

In the main, participants from primary, PRUs and SILCs were more likely to participate in each
of the activities shown in Chart 5.0 at school in comparison to secondary pupils. All
respondents were least likely to help out as a volunteer in the community, and the majority of
primary and secondary pupils had taken part in activities before or after the school day.

Respondents were asked how much difference they thought they could make to the way that
their school is run. Overall, 68% of all primary and secondary respondents felt that they could
make ‘a great deal’, or ‘a fair amount’ of difference to the way things are run at school. This is
consistent with 2010/11. Primary school respondents were more likely to respond that they
could make ‘a great deal’ or ‘fair amount’ of difference (75%) again consistent with 2010/11.
The percentage of secondary pupils reporting they could make a great deal or fair amount of
difference has shown little change and is currently is 58% (2011/12). 60% of participants from
the PRUs and SILCs survey reported that they could make a great deal or fair amount of
difference to the way things are run at school.

Children’s Performance Service Page 53 of 71

Page 145



Appendix 3

Chart 5.01: How much difference do you think you can you make in the way your school is
run?

Year 5 ] e T

Year 6 | e T |

All Primary | TTETTTETTER I —— T

Year 7 | N [T ]

Year9 [ FNNNINNIIO—

Year 11 [ NN O— )

Secondary _

SILCs/PRUs | TRNNNENNNNNNNS ek ] ]
0% 26% 4OI% 66% 86% 1 06 %

OA great deal BA fair amount BNotvery much BNone atall ODon't know

5.3 Opportunities in the area where you live

Pupils were asked about opportunities in the area where they live in the last 12 months, the
responses to this question are not comparable to last year as the wording of the question has
changed. The proportion taking part in each activity is shown in Chart 5.02. For each activity
the proportion of respondents doing the activity reduced with age, with higher proportions of
primary pupils participating than secondary pupils. Year 7, 9 and 11 were least likely to work
to earn money. A higher proportion of young people reported caring for the environment in
their local area.

Pupils in PRUs and SILCs were also asked which activities they had undertaken in the last 12
months in the area where they live. The most popular options were caring for the environment
(55%), and going to a class or group to learn new things (36%). The least popular activity was
helping out as a volunteer in the community (15%).

Children’s Performance Service Page 54 of 71

Page 146



Appendix 3

Chart 5.02: Percentage taking part in each activity in the area they live, in the previous 12
months

1

Worked to earn some money

Been to a class or group to learn new things

Had a say in how your local area is run e.g. youth
forums or other groups

Taken part in religious activities

Doing your bit to care for the environment _—‘
|

Helping out as a volunteer in the community

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

OSILCs/PRUs m Secondary O Primary

The survey also asked young people how much difference they thought they could make in
the way things are run where they live. Just over half of all primary and secondary
respondents felt that they could make a ‘great deal’ or ‘fair amount’ of difference in the area
they live. 10% responded that they ‘didn’t know’. These figures are broadly similar to those
reported in 2010/11. 39% of respondents from PRUs and SILCs thought they could make a
‘great deal’ or ‘fair amount’ of difference. 47% reported they could not make any difference or
did not know.

Chart 5.03: How much difference do you think you can you make to the way things are run in
the area you live?

SILCs/PRUs | ABSSSASSA I | |
Secondary [ WNWNRASRSRNRRNS [ | |
Year 11 [ [NSARSNAASSA N I
Year9 [ ASRSNRNRSNN. I |
Year7 [ RSNSSSASSSSASSNEEEEEEEN I |
Primary [ RWSRSRANRERANENN [T
Year6 [ ASSSANSSASNSSANEEEEEEEEEEN I |
Year5 | SSSSSARSSSSSSE T

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OA great deal QA fairamount B Not very much ONone at all ODon’t Know

Children’s Performance Service Page 55 of 71

Page 147



Appendix 3

5.4 Participation in negative activities

In 2011/12 all year groups were asked if they had participated in a range of negative activities
in the previous 12 months. Prior to the 2011/12 survey, only secondary pupils were asked
these questions. Table 5.01 gives their responses. Year 11 data is not available for 2009/10,
but is available for 2010/11, and has been included in the table. Since 2008/09 there has been
a continued decrease in the percentage of secondary pupils saying they had participated in
each activity.

Table 5.01: Proportion of young people responding yes to “in the last 12 months have you...”

2011/12

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Secondary | Secondary | Secondary | Primary | Secondary SIL(c;i/;?US
Been noisy or rude in a
public place so that 37% 31% 28% 18% 26% 33%

someone complained
or got you into trouble

Had a neighbour

complain because they
were annoyed by your 27% 24% 22% 20% 21% 33%
behaviour or noise, in
or around your home?

Written things or
sprayed paint on a
building, fence, train or 20% 16% 13% 8% 13% 14%
anywhere else where
you shouldn't have?

Bullied or harassed

16% 15% 15% 11% 14% 18%
someone else?
Threatened or been
rude to someone 18% 13% 12% 8% 10% 14%

because of their
difference?

5.5 School support for making a positive contribution

Primary and secondary pupils were asked about how good their school was at supporting
them to make a positive contribution. 43% of primary pupils thought their school was very
good at supporting them to make a positive contribution to the school and the community, and
a further 32% responded with ‘good’. Only 14% of secondary pupils thought their school was
very good and 27% believed it to be ‘good’. 21% of secondary pupils felt their school was poor
or very poor at supporting them to make a positive contribution, this has increased slightly
when compared to 2010/11 (19%).

Children’s Performance Service Page 56 of 71

Page 148



Appendix 3

Chart 5.04: Primary and Secondary: How good is your school at supporting you to make a
positive contribution?

40%
30% -
20% -
10% -
Very good Good OK Poor Very poor
O Primary B Secondary oAll
Children’s Performance Service Page 57 of 71

Page 149



Appendix 3

Section 6: Achieve economic well-being

6.1 Plans for the future

Secondary pupils and young people from PRUs and SILCs were asked what they thought
they were most likely to be doing when they finish school following year 11. 43% of year 9s
thought that they would study at sixth form, which has increased from 36% reported in
2010/11. However a much lower proportion anticipated studying at college (21%). The
percentage of year 7s that thought they would study at sixth form has continued an upward
trend with 43% choosing this option, compared with 37% in 2010/11 and 30% in 2009/10.

Year 7 and 9 pupils were more likely to think they would be running their own business, than
year 11 pupils, and less likely to think they would be studying at a college.

Respondents from PRUs and SILCs were most likely to think they would be studying at a
college (23%) or studying at a sixth form (19%). Four percent thought they would be caring for

a family member and 11% did not know what they would be doing.

Chart 6.0: What do you think you are most likely to do when you finish year 117?

] NN\ |

Something else RONNNNNNNNNNNNNN | |

Run my own business - NONNNNNNNNNNY | |

Look afer my own chicre | NNNNNNNNNNNNNNS |
Care for other family members - RN |
R —\\N I

Voluntary work - ONNNNNNNNY | |

s witout g [~ TN |
Job with training or apprenticeship -:W |
Sty at s form | RN
Studying at college -:_

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Year 7 &l Year 9 M Year 11 O SILCs/PRUs

Secondary age respondents were asked whether they thought they would go to university.
The proportion of respondents that expected they would go to university increased from 51%
in 2010/11 to 56% in 2011/12 but still remained below 59% reported in 2009/10. Overall,
there is an increase across all year groups considering university as an option. 23% of young
people from PRUs and SILCs expected that they would go to university.

Children’s Performance Service Page 58 of 71

Page 150



Appendix 3

Secondary age respondents and pupils from PRUs and SILCs were also asked what sort of
things they thought they would be doing when they were adults. For secondary pupils the
most popular choice overall was to have a professional job (34%). This has remained
consistent for the past two years. One fifth of young people also thought they would be
running their own business and 15% thought they would have a skilled job. 14% of
respondents did not know what they would be doing as an adult. The figures reported remain
consistent to 2010/11. The most popular choice for respondents from PRUs and SILCs was
‘running my own business’, this accounted for 26% of respondents. 19% reported that they did
not know and 14% chose a skilled job.

Chart 6.01: What do you think you will be doing when you are an adult?

Dontknow [ NSNS |

Something else NN EEDERRERanhE I
Voluntary work | I

Caring for family members -:m-i-i-ii-i-] |
Caring for my own children | NN DEDDDoD ] |
Unemployed | NN |

Unskilled job, e.g. factory worker _ ]
Skilled job, e.g. plumber/hairdresser -:W '''''''''''''''''''' ]
Professional job, like doctor or lawyer -:W '''''''''''''''''''''''' | ]
Running my own business -:W .................... | ]

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

OYear7 OYear9 W Year 11 0O Secondary O SILCs/PRUs

*Please note armed forces was an option only included in the PRUs and SILCs survey. 4% of
respondents chose this option.

Secondary, PRU and SILC pupils were asked where they find information, advice, and
guidance to help plan their futures. The responses are shown in Table 6.0. Respondents
were able to select more than one option. In the main, respondents were most likely to talk
to parents and teachers, and 19% of year 11 respondents stated they would visit the Leeds
Pathways website. The percentage of year 11 pupils accessing information through parents,
older brothers or sisters, friends or peers, and teachers has increased when compared to
2010/11. Only four percent of year 9 respondents reported accessing information through
Connexions compared to 11% in 2010/11. Overall, the percentage of secondary pupils
accessing information from other sources to those listed has decreased.

Children’s Performance Service Page 59 of 71

Page 151



Appendix 3

Table 6.0: Where do you find information, advice and guidance to help plan your future?

Year 7 Year9 | Year 11 All SILCs/PRUs
Parents 83% 76% 72% 79% 47%
Older brothers or sisters 27% 29% 25% 28% 15%
Friends or peers 24% 32% 40% 30% 14%
Teachers 34% 46% 41% 40% 30%
Jobs and careers website 10% 21% 27% 17% 15%
Connexions 3% 4% 17% 5% 18%
Leeds Pathways website 4% 9% 19% 8% 8%
Other 18% 19% 13% 18% 22%

Secondary pupils were also asked to rate the quality of the information and advice given to
them to help plan their future. Chart 6.02 shows their responses. 80% of those in year 7 felt
the guidance was very good or good enough. This falls to 68% for year 9 and 70% for year 11.
Overall, 73% thought the advice was good or very good.

Chart 6.02: How do you rate the information and advice you get to help you plan your future?

Secondary tota AERRERRNRENRRRRS 1]
Year 11 AT o]

Year 9 ARIRRRRERRNERRRNRNNY RAN
(AN N NN e

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

O Very good Good enough B Needs to be a little better
B Needs to be a lot better O Don’t know

6.2 Skills and confidence for the future

Table 6.01 shows responses for a range of skills relating mainly to confidence. The proportion
that believed themselves to be good or very good was higher for primary than secondary
pupils. High proportions of young people thought they were good or very good at listening to
others, taking on responsibility, and planning how to achieve their goals. Young people felt
least confident about finding out about solving problems. The figures are broadly in line with
2010/11.

Children’s Performance Service Page 60 of 71

Page 152



Appendix 3

Table 6.01: Primary and Secondary: Percentage responding good or very good when asked
‘How good are you at...’

Primary| Secondary All
Planning how to achieve your goals 79% 69% 75%
Making decisions 7% 70% 74%
Solving problems 75% 67% 72%
Taking on responsibilities 79% 72% 76%
Listening to others 82% 72% 78%

6.3 Your local area

The survey asked both primary and secondary pupils what they thought of their local area as
a place to live for young people. There is a notable difference between the proportion of
primary pupils (79%) and secondary pupils (66%) saying that their local area is good or very
good. The secondary figure remains consistent with 2010/11. 51% of young people from
PRUs and SILCs thought their local area was a good place to live.

Young people were also asked what they thought of Leeds as a place to live for young
people. 66% of secondary and 74% of primary respondents thought Leeds was a good or
very good place for young people to live. On the other hand, eight percent of year 11
respondents thought that Leeds was a poor or very poor place to live. Only half the
proportion of year 5 respondents thought the same. 49% of young people from PRUs and
SILCs thought Leeds was a good place to live for young people.

Chart 6.03: How good is your local area for young people to live?

ALL
Secondary total
Year 11 SRR .
Year 9 DRERRRRRRE RS RS
Year 7 RN | |
Primary Tota AR
Year 6 DRSS B
Year 5 NN
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
O Very good 0 Good mOK 0 Poor @ Very poor
Children’s Performance Service Page 61 of 71

Page 153



Chart 6.04: How good is Leeds as a city for young people to live?

Appendix 3

Year 6

ALL
Secondary total
Year 11
Year 9
Year7
Primary Total

Year 5 R\\‘\‘\‘\‘\\X‘Q\‘\\}_D]

0% 20% 40% 60%

O Very good ™ Good B OK & Poor

80% 100%

O Very poor

6.4 School support for achieving economic well-being

Pupils were asked to rate how good their school is at helping them to prepare for the future.
82% of primary respondents rated their school as good or very good at helping them prepare
for the future, this is consistent with the previous year. 65% of pupils from PRUs and SILCs
thought their school was good or very good at preparing them for the future.

Chart 6.05: How good is your school at preparing you for the future?

40% -

20% A

0%

S |

Very good Good OK Poor

OYear 5 Year 6 W Primary OYear 7

Very poor
O SILCs/PRUs

*Please note it is not possible to compare 2011/12 data across all year groups as data was

only collected for year 5, 6, and 7.

Children’s Performance Service

Page 154

Page 62 of 71



Appendix 3

Section 7: Conclusions

For the most part the pattern of results in the 2011/12 Leeds Every Child Matters survey were
in line with the responses in 2010/11 survey. In the main, primary pupils tend to be more
positive than secondary respondents. However, higher proportions of secondary pupils
reported that they would know where to access help and advice on a range of issues.

As with last year, the survey has highlighted significant issues for young people relating to
healthy eating and levels of physical activity. Not enough young people are eating regular
meals, with too many respondents missing breakfast in particular. Only a small proportion are
eating the recommended five or more portions of fruit and vegetables a day. Levels have
fallen since 2008/09 for all year groups except year 5 which has seen a slight increase on last
year. Too many are eating a high number of snacks. Physical activity levels are also
decreasing in comparison to 2008/09, and fewer secondary pupils are making use of sports
clubs and classes. Eating habits, combined with high levels of sedentary behaviour and
decreasing levels of physical activity, have consequences for levels of obesity and general
health and well-being of children and young people. Although, the number of young people
reporting exercising 3-6 times a week is steadily increasing and the proportion of young
people swimming has also increased from 2010/11.

The results of this year’s survey also confirm the high levels of young people taking part in
risky activities such as illegal substance misuse, alcohol use, and unprotected sex. This is
particularly significant given the proportions of young people that reported not knowing where
to get advice relating to alcohol, sex, drugs, and emotional health. This year, in particular
primary and secondary pupils were more likely than in 2008/09 to say that they had never
smoked or had sexual intercourse or drunk alcohol or used drugs. The percentage of
secondary pupils reporting they have never drunk alcohol has increased to 31% this year from
15% in 2008/09. The percentage of year 11s reporting they have used illegal substances has
also decreased slightly from last year. The proportion of year 9s reporting using drugs has
gradually fallen over the last four years, however, in 2011/12 the percentage has increased.
The percentage of year 11s not using contraception has decreased from 22% last year to
14%.

The majority of young people felt safe at home although the small minority that do not feel
safe (2%) are of particular concern. Whilst most children feel safe in schools, some report
not feeling safe, particularly outside of lessons. 38% of all primary and secondary
respondents had experienced bullying in or around school in the last year, with 6% saying
they were bullied most days or everyday. Across all year groups a greater proportion of
primary girls reported being bullied. The level of bullying being reported for all primary and
secondary pupils has remained consistent over the last three years. The percentage of all
primary and secondary pupils reporting not being away from school without telling anyone
has fallen from 74% in 2010/11 to 64%. Across all year groups, more boys than girls
reported being away from school without telling anyone. In comparison, over half of pupils
from PRUs and SILCs reported being away from school without telling anyone.

Children’s Performance Service Page 63 of 71

Page 155



Appendix 3

Pupils reported being involved in a range of activities outside of school. In the last four weeks,
the percentage of respondents reporting they had been swimming and or visited a library
increased slightly from last year. Although, the percentage of secondary pupils visiting a
sports club or class has marginally decreased.

The majority of all primary and secondary respondents enjoy their life and most said they were
happy most of the time. Although, stress emerged as a significant issue, particularly for older
children, as did feelings of anger and being bad-tempered. Whilst most pupils reported they
coped OK or well with loneliness, the proportion of pupils feeling this increased slightly from
2008/09. Over a quarter of respondents from PRUs and SILCs reported being bad tempered
every day or most days. However, 71% felt happy every day or most days.

Primary pupils are significantly more positive about school than secondary pupils. There
appears to be an issue with secondary pupils’ enjoyment of school. Many of them are
regularly bored and don’t find lessons interesting or fun, and less than half feel that school
help them learn in the way that is best for them. The majority of children and young people
reported that more fun or interesting lessons and more help from teachers would help them to
do better at school. In the main, young people from PRUs and SILCs were positive about their
school and learning experiences.

The proportion of pupils saying opportunities in their school were good or better was higher for
primary than secondary pupils. Primary pupils were more likely to say that they had good
opportunities for making decisions (or voting) in a class or school council and helping out
around school. Overall, the activity with the lowest proportion of respondents saying
opportunities were good in their school was helping out in the community and making changes
in the way the school is run.

The majority of young people have positive aspirations for the future. 63% expected to be in
further education after leaving school. This is a decrease when compared to 2008/09 but an
increase on 57% reported in 2010/11. Although just over half expected to go to university,
this number has increased slightly from 2010/11 but remains lower than 59% reported in
2009/10. High proportions of respondents expected to be in professional or skilled jobs or
running their own business when they are adults. 30% of young people from PRUs and
SILCs thought they would go onto further education after leaving school and 23% expected
to go to university.

Overall, there is a mixture of differences between male and female responses and areas
where findings are broadly similar for both genders. The greatest differences can be
observed in the areas listed below. Across all secondary age groups, more girls than boys
said that they rarely or never ate breakfast, and across all secondary year groups, up to
three times the amount of girls than boys reported being unhappy’ or ‘very unhappy’ with
their appearance.

The findings illustrate a mix of responses in relation to negative behaviours; Secondary boys
are more likely than girls to drink alcohol on a regular basis. Boys in primary school were
slightly more likely to report having smoked a cigarette, whilst in secondary school more girls
reported smoking than boys.

Children’s Performance Service Page 64 of 71

Page 156



Appendix 3

There appears to be an issue with the proportion of boys experiencing violence as twice the
amount of boys compared to girls from primary and secondary year groups reported being a
victim of violence.

Children’s Performance Service Page 65 of 71

Page 157



99 1/ 10 99 abed

80IAI8S @oUBWIOLBd S,uslpliyD

00L | ¢5€8€ | 00L 00¥8 00L | 0L8SL | 00l 1961 00L ¢ev. | 00L | 96€L | O0L | OLLSGL | O'00L | €¥0S jejol
98y | G298l | 96F | 99y | €8y | ¢¥9. | S6F 0.6 414 18GE | 66V /69 | 06V | ¢O¥. | 967 | 66VC | dlewad
v'LG | /Z/6L | ¥0S | ¥ECy | L'LG | 8918 | G0S 166 8'Lg 1G8€ | L'0S 669 | 0lS | 80/ | ¥'0S | ¥¥SC dleN
% Juno9 | 9, Juno) | 9%, Juno) | % Juno9 | o, Juno) | % Juno9 | 9, Juno) | o, Juno) | Jspuag
jejol jejol ARIELIN Ll 8 6 1B L Jed) L Jed) 9® G ledA 9 'R GJIedA
apIM AN sjuapuodsay apIM AN sjuapuodsay apIMm ANo sjuapuodsay apIM AN sjuapuodsay
Japuag

"SNJe]S paau |euoneonpa [eioads pue ‘Ajijiqibie [eaw jooyos aad) ‘Aloiuyie ‘Japuab Aq sjuspuodsal Jo umopyealq syl Moys sajqel Buimojiol ay |

¢ xipuaddy

sjuapuodsal jnoge uonewiojul siydeibowaq — xipuaddy

Page 158



/9 L/ Jo J9 abed 90IAJ9S 9oUBWIONAY S,UdIp|IyD
joelg
80 | 90¢ | L0 29 | L0 | LI 80 GL | 60| 49 90 6 | 80| 82l | 80 ge | 4ouio Auy
ueaqquen
'L | €evy €l el €l | c0c €¢ 14 L'l g8 'l Ll oL | 9vl 0l LS
joelg
ueosLy
0¢ | €Ll L'e cle | 6'C | 6SY 8'v ¥6 8¢ | 0l¢c 6t 89 L'e | v9¥ 0¢ 0Sl soelg
vl | SZ§ 9l 8¢l vl | €cC 0'¢ oy €l | 00l 8l G¢ €l | c¢0¢ vl €. | ueisy JL9Yyjo
. ) . : ) . : ) lueysijed
Sv | 9¢Ll L'S 8.y | L'C | 889 194 ¥8 vy | 8c¢ ¥'9 06 ¥'G | 028 09 ¥0€ 19YI0
. . . : . . : ) lueysijed
8L | §G89 0¢ cll 8L | ¢8c €c 14 0¢ 1GL 8¢ 6¢ L'V | 5S¢ L'l .8 Lwysey|
L0 Ly A Sl L0 L L0 I 10 6 A € A LC A Ll 1oU0
Hiuysey
0¢C | €S2 Z'c g8l 6'L | L0€ €¢C 14 0¢Cc | 0Sl €¢C ce 0¢C | 96¢ L'C /0L | uelpu]
l
Al N EA®) 4 A" 66 6'0 | 8€l Ll ¥4 Ll Z8 60 cl 9L | ¢ve €l 99 ysapejBueg
% } % } % } % } % } % } % } % } Ad1uyg
uno) uno) uno)n uno) uno) uno) uno) uno)
jejol jejol Ll ®64E9A Ll 61B9A L 1ed)\ L Jea) 9 R G Ied\ 9 R GBI\
9pIM AN | syuspuodsay | apIMm Al1D | syuspuodsay | apip AND | sjuspuodsay | apInm A1 | sjuspuodsay
Ayo1uyy3

¢ xipuaddy

Page 159



89

1/ 10 g9 abed

80IAI8S @oUBWIOLBd S,uslpliyD

0l LLE

¢l L6

L0 | Ol

80 9l

60 69

9l ¢c

€l | g6l

¢l 69

dnoub
oluyja
1yjo Auy

A €L

vl vil

10 8l

90 ¢l

¢0 142

v'a 9.

€0 (2%

G0 9¢

paurejqo
Jou ojuj

VAN S RVA 4°]

9l gel

L'l | €9¢

6} LE

LV | 9cl

Ll 144

L'l | 849¢

gl v.

3}IYM pue
ueaqque)
noe|g
paxIN

¥'0 | 09l

G0 14

€0 1]

G0 6

G0 ve

L0 ol

G0 L.

G0 9c

9JIUM
pue ueosuyy
yoelg
paxiN

60 | O¥E

0l 08

80 | €¢l

L0 142

60 69

€l 8l

oL | 8yl

0l $14

aNyYM
pue ueisy

paxI

vl | 0€9

€l S0l

¢l | L8l

[ (44

€l 96

60 €l

9L | Lve

vl 04

punoubyoeq

PaXIN
J9yjo Auy

g0 | G/l

¥0 Ge

v0 04

G0 0l

¥0 8¢

€0 14

G0 Ll

¥'0 34

asaulyo

punoibyoeq

apIMm A11D

sjuapuodsay

apIM A)1D

sjuapuodsay

apIM AND

sjuapuodsay

apIM Au1D

sjuapuodsay

¢ xipuaddy

Page 160



69

1/ 10 69 abed

80IAI8S @oUBWIOLBd S,uslpliyD

00} | ¢s€8€ | 001 00¥8 | 00L | OL8SL | OO0l 1961 | 00l | CEv. 001 96¢€L | 00L [ OLLSL | 0OO0L €y0S | lejolL
ueadoung
€0 | vcl €0 9¢ A 1 Al € €0 %4 ¥'0 9 ¥'0 99 €0 Ll uisjsam
SHUM
. . . : . . : ) ewoy
G0 | 66l ¥'0 ve S0 8. Go 6 L0 14 L0 ol Go ¢l €0 Gl AsdAo
L0 | 0S¢ ¥'0 4% S0 08 ¥'0 8 80 9G 90 6 80 | Vil €0 Gl [ MLOM
abejliaH
L0 €€ L0 8 L0 8 L0 l 00 € L0 4 L0 44 L0 S ysui
SETELCATE
€0 | ¢O0l €0 14 €0 1£S] ¥'0 8 L0 6 00 €0 6€ €0 Ll ysu| ayYym
ueadoing
Ll 8Ly Ll 06 0l €Gl vl yX4 o'l ¢l vl 0¢ €l €61 60 €y | uisise3
SHUM
6 ) [4 ) 4 ) 14 : ysnug
v €€L8C | L'LL | ¥.6G | . /J c¢ieel | L0L | 18EL ) 88GG | €'¢€9 €88 2 €e60L | v'eL | ¥0LE SNUM
€0 | L1 €0 9C €0 14 €0 9 ¢0 145 €0 14 ¥'0 JAS) €0 9l pasnjay
apIM A)1D | sjuspuodsay | apIm AND | sluspuodsay | apIMm AND | sjuspuodsay | apim AND | sjuspuodsay

¢ xipuaddy

Page 161



0.

1,100/ ebed

80IAI8S @oUBWIOLBd S,uslpliyD

001 ¢GEBE 00} 00¥8 | 0'00L | OL8SL 001 L1961 | 0°00L | CEv. 001 96€1 001 0LLGL | 00} €v09 jejol
L'0C 9¢LL G'0¢C Le/lL 6'8l ¢86¢ 6°0C (00874 6°0C 12511 v've (0149 L'Le 06L€ €6l 1.6 | @1q16113
6'6. 9290¢ G'6. 6199 | L'L8 | 8Z8¢Cl L'6.L TGST | L'6L | 885 | 9G. | 9S0T 6'8. 0c6LL | L08 | ZLOV m_o__”_u_“
% uno? | % uno) | o Juno? | % uno? | % uno) | o uno) | % uno? | % jJunog | snjels
jejol jejol Ll '® 61B9A Ll '8 6189 VLN L 1ed\ 98 G JIEIA 98 G JEdA LMN_D_w
apIm Ao sjuapuodsay apim Ao sjuapuodsay apIm Ao sjuapuodsay apIm Ao sjuapuodsay °aid

¢ xipuaddy

Anqibi3 jespy jooyos aau4

Page 162



W] 1,10 |/ ebed

80IAI8S @oUBWIOLBd S,uslpliyD

001 2sege | 001 00¥8 001 01861 001 1961 00l 457 001 96€1 001 0LLSL | 0°00L €v0S [ejo

00 0 00 € 00 00 0 00 10 4 00 00 b A

0¢ G8. 80 19 g'¢ 66€ 60 8T 6'l 194" *N0] L 9’1 €ve 80 A4 juswelels

sn|d uonoy

€9 8¢y €4 21747 LS 606 [ €9 €q 26¢ L'¢E TS WA yxq%" 99 (A% 10040

uonoy

9¢clL 2aces 9'¢clL crll acl LeLe 691 (4% €Gl 6ELL 8'Gl 0ce 6'¢Cl ¢s6l Ll L6S |00YyoS

08. | Lle6C | €08 L9 Z'8.L LLECL 68 8YST GLL 8G.S 66 9TTT 0'8L | 88.L1L 808 L10v N3S ON

% Juno9 | % Juno) | o, Junos | % jJunos | ¢, unos | % jJunog | o, Junos | % jJuno9 | snjejs pasu

|euonesnpa

1ejo L jejol Ll 8 6B\ Ll 861\ L Jedx L Jedx 99 GIEIA 99 GIedA |e1oadg

apIMm Mo sjuspuodsay apIMm M1 sjuspuodsay apIMm M9 sjuspuodsay apIm M1 sjuspuodsay

¢ xipuaddy

snje}g spaaN |euoiyeonpl jeloadg

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



239

240

Appendix 4

EXECUTIVE BOARD
THURSDAY, 9TH MAY, 2013
PRESENT: Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair

Councillors J Blake, A Carter, M Dobson,
S Golton, P Gruen, R Lewis, L Mulherin,
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
RESOLVED - That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so
designated as follows:-

(@) Appendix 2 to the report entitled, ‘Disposal of Cleared Site in Holbeck
to Unity Housing Association’, referred to in Minute No. 249 is exempt
in accordance with paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it contains information
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council. It is
considered that the release of such information would or would be
likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to the
disposal of sites to Housing Associations and level of consideration
which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is considered that whilst
there may be a public interest in disclosure, much of this information
will be publicly available from the Land Registry following completion of
this transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at
this point in time. It is therefore considered that this element of the
report should be treated as exempt under Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4 (3).

Late Items
With the agreement of the Chair, the following late items of business were
admitted to the agenda:-

(@)  ‘Leeds LDF Site Allocations Plan: Issues and Options for Public
Consultation’. Due to the timescales involved in the Development Plan
Panel clearance process, it was not possible for this report and
appendices to be circulated with the formal agenda papers. It was
therefore submitted as a late item of business. Getting to the current
stage of plan preparation had meant a heavy work programme for both
officers and Elected Members. Extra meetings of the Development

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 165



241

242

Plan Panel were scheduled on 9" and 16" April 2013 and Members
also agreed to a day of site visits on 18™ April 2013. Those extra
meetings were held to maintain the progress in developing the Leeds
LDF Site Allocations Plan, and with this in mind, in order to maintain
such progress, it was recommended that this matter was determined at
the 9th May 2013 Executive Board meeting. However, final
Development Plan Panel clearance to enable a recommendation to be
made to Executive Board was only obtained at a meeting on 30" April
2013. Given this and the need to accommodate any changes arising
from the Panel debate on 30" April, it was not possible to meet the
statutory publication requirements. (Minute No. 243 referred).

(b)  ‘Transfer of School Sites under the Schools Standards and Framework
Act 1998 and the Schools Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007°. This report was
submitted as a late item of business, because although the report
covered all future transfers that may be requested under the act, there
was one specific transfer which needed to be progressed by the end of
May 2013 in relation to Brodetsky Primary School. Executive Board
approval to transfer land under the act was therefore required in May,
along with delegation of final approval of the terms of such disposals to
the Director of City Development. This was due to the fact that the
availability of DfE funding for the new proposed Free School on the
Brodetsky Primary School site was conditional upon the remaining land
held by the Council being transferred. The DfE would not sign the
Funding Agreement that would allow the Brodetsky Jewish Primary
School Foundation Trust to commence with construction works as
programmed, to develop their free school provision in time for
September 2013. Therefore, any significant delays would mean that
the opening of the free school would have to be delayed until
September 2014. (Minute No. 246 referred).

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting,
however, in relation to the item entitled, ‘Basic Need Programme: Outcome of
Consultation on Proposals for Expansion of Primary Provision in 2014 and
Permission to Consult on Proposals for the Expansion of Primary Provision in
2015’, Councillor Mulherin drew the Board’s attention to her position as Chair
of Governors at Robin Hood Primary School, which was affected by the
proposals detailed within the submitted report. (Minute No. 245 referred).

Minutes

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 24™ April 2013 be
approved as a correct record.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 166



243

NEIGHBOURHOODS, PLANNING AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Leeds LDF Site Allocations Plan - Issues and Options for Public
Consultation

Further to Minute No. 250, 16™ May 2012, the Director of City Development
submitted a report which sought the Board’s approval of the Site Allocations
material, specifically Volumes 1 and 2 of the Issues and Options documents,
as appended to the submitted report, in order to enable a period of public
consultation to be undertaken during June and July 2013 on the Site
Allocations Plan.

In presenting the report, the Executive Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning
and Support Services placed on record his thanks to all officers who had been
involved in the development of the Site Allocations documentation for their
considerable efforts in getting the documents to this current stage. In addition,
the Executive Member also thanked all Councillors who had contributed as
part of the associated Elected Member engagement processes which had
been undertaken to date.

Correspondence which had been received from Stuart Andrew MP regarding
Leeds’ housing targets was tabled at the meeting for Board Members’
consideration. Responding to the correspondence and also to Members’
comments, the Board received information on the reasoning behind the
housing targets detailed within the Leeds LDF Site Allocations Plan being
consistent with the level of housing need identified within the Core Strategy. In
addition, consideration was also given to how the approach proposed in
Leeds compared to that being taken by neighbouring Local Authorities.

Also tabled at the meeting was amended wording in respect of paragraph
1.4.3 and section E5 of Volume 2, Housing Market Characteristic Area
(HMCA) 1 (Aireborough) regarding Leeds Bradford International Airport. It
was recommended that the revised wording was incorporated into the
relevant sections of the issues and options document.

In considering the documentation, a question and answer session ensued.
The key points raised were as follows:-

* It was noted that Members may have specific concerns regarding
individual site allocations proposed, however, it was acknowledged that
the purpose of the documentation submitted to the Board was to
facilitate early community and stakeholder engagement on a range of
options;

* It was emphasised that the site allocations process needed to be
progressed at the earliest opportunity in order to enable the Council to
produce a Site Allocations Plan which would demonstrate that sufficient
land would be available when needed to meet the Core Strategy
targets. It was noted that having such arrangements in place would
enable the Council to have greater influence and provide greater
direction on development throughout the city;

* Members welcomed the fact that the number of site allocations
proposed in the ‘green’ and ‘amber’ categories was substantially

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 167



244

greater than the residual requirement in each of the HCMAs, thus
providing considerable choice for public comment;

* The Board highlighted the need for the proposed public consultation
exercise to be robust and genuine, and emphasised the need for all
sections of the community to be involved, including young people and
the elderly;

» Emphasis was placed upon the need to ensure that the unique
character of communities throughout Leeds was retained;

» The importance of the Neighbourhood Planning agenda was
highlighted, along with the ways in which the agenda related to the Site
Allocations process. In addition, emphasis was also placed upon the
efforts being made to support Neighbourhood Planning in Leeds;

» The ambitious nature of the city was highlighted together with the need
to ensure that Site Allocations process reflected such ambitions;

» The Board highlighted the vital importance of ensuring that appropriate
levels of infrastructure were secured across Leeds, which were in line
with demand, catered for all sections of the community and took into
consideration the city’s changing demographics. With regard to such
matters, emphasis was placed upon education, adult social care,
transport and health provision respectively.

In conclusion, as part of the ongoing engagement with Members, it was
requested that Leaders of all political groups be invited to meet to consider a
number of key issues in respect of the Site Allocations process, in particular
the methodology and extent of the proposed consultation exercise.

RESOLVED -

(@) That the Site Allocations Plan Issues and Options documents (Volumes
1 and 2 as appended to the submitted report) be approved for the
purposes of public consultation, subject to the inclusion of the updated
text which was circulated at the meeting in respect of Leeds Bradford
International Airport.

(b)  That as part of the ongoing engagement with Members, Leaders of all
political groups be invited to meet to consider a number of key issues
in respect of the Site Allocations process, in particular, the
methodology and extent of the proposed consultation exercise.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Golton
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)

Implementation of an Area Lead Member Role

Further to Minute No. 139, 12" December 2012, the Assistant Chief Executive
(Customer Access and Performance) submitted a report providing details of
the proposed formation of Area Lead Roles following the recent consultation
exercise which has been undertaken. The main aim of re-launching the roles
was to provide clarification around the roles themselves, strengthen links to
Executive Members and Council services, improve training, whilst also
supporting and encouraging both formal and informal links with relevant

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 168



245

partners. In addition, the report recommended that Area Committees appoint
to those roles in the new municipal year.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to the proposals contained within the
submitted report for Area Committees to appoint Area Lead Members for the
2013/2014 municipal year, in accordance with a number of defined roles to be
presented at the Annual Meeting of Council on 20th May 2013.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Basic Need Programme: Outcome of consultation on Proposals for
Expansion of Primary Provision in 2014 and Permission to Consult on
Proposals for the Expansion of Primary Provision in 2015

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report outlining proposals
which were designed to meet the local authority’s duty to ensure sufficiency of
school places. The report was divided into two parts: Part A detailed the
outcomes from the public consultation exercise on the expansion of primary
provision across the city for September 2014, and made recommendations for
the next steps for each of the proposals, whilst Part B sought the Board’s
permission to commence a public consultation exercise upon the proposals
for the expansion of primary provision in the city from September 2015.

With regard to the proposals, Members highlighted the considerable demand
being placed on specific schools highlighted within the submitted report.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, reassurance was provided in respect of
the timescales by which proposals addressing primary provision in Farnley
would be submitted to the Board.

Members commented upon the Council’s Schools Admissions Policy,
specifically regarding the way in which the distance between an individual’s
home and school was measured, and whether consideration was given to
transport barriers between an individual’'s home and school. In response,
reassurance was provided that work was currently being undertaken on the
Policy to ensure that it was as clear and accessible as possible.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Allerton
Bywater Primary School from a capacity of 210 pupils to 420 pupils
with an increase in the admission number from 30 to 60 with effect
from September 2014, be approved.

(b)  That the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Asquith
Primary School from a capacity of 210 pupils to 420 pupils with an
increase in the admission number from 30 to 60 with effect from
September 2014, be approved.

(c) That the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Morley St
Francis Catholic Primary School from a capacity of 154 pupils to 210

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 169



246

pupils with an increase in the admission number from 22 to 30 with
effect from September 2014, be approved.

That the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of East
Ardsley Primary School from a capacity of 315 pupils to 420 pupils with
an increase in the admission number from 45 to 60 with effect from
September 2014, be approved.

That the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Robin
Hood Primary School from a capacity of 315 pupils to 420 pupils with
an increase in the admission number from 45 to 60 with effect from
September 2014, be approved.

That the publication of a statutory notice to lower the age range of
Hollybush Primary School from 5 to 11 to 3 to 11, be approved.

That permission be given to consult upon the expansion of Pudsey
Primrose Hill Primary School from a capacity of 315 pupils to 420
pupils with an increase in the admission number from 45 to 60 with
effect from September 2015;

That permission be given to consult upon a linked proposal to expand
Guiseley Infant and Nursery School from a capacity of 270 pupils to
420 pupils and raise the age range from 3 to 7 to 3 to 11 with effect
from September 2015;

That permission be given to consult upon a linked proposal to expand
St Oswald’s Church of England Junior School from a capacity of 360
pupils to 420 pupils and lower the age range from 7 to 11 to 5 to 11
with effect from September 2015.

Transfer of School Sites under the Schools Standards and Framework
Act 1998 and the Schools Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007

The Director of Children’s Services and the Director of City Development
submitted a joint report which sought in principle approval for the transfer of
land to Applicant Schools under the control of Leeds City Council, in
accordance with the relevant legislation. In addition, the report also sought
approval for the necessary authority to be delegated to the Director of City
Development which would enable him to approve the detailed terms for such
transfers, in consultation with Director of Children’s Services, Executive
Member for Children’s Services and appropriate Ward Members.

RESOLVED -

(@)

That the transfer of Council owned land to Applicant Schools, as set
out within the submitted report, be approved, and that the Director of
City Development, in consultation with the Director of Children’s
Services, the Executive Member for Children’s Services and
appropriate Ward Members, be delegated the necessary authority to
approve the detailed terms of the transfers.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 170



247

248

(b)  That the principal of transferring land in the ownership of the Council
(and which an Applicant School may call for) to the Controlling Body,
be approved on the basis set out within the submitted report, and that
final approval of the terms of such disposals be delegated to the
Director of City Development.

RESOURCES AND CORPORATE FUNCTIONS

Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules

The Head of Governance Services submitted a report setting out proposed
amendments to the Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules intended
to reflect the Council’s current practice and procedure in relation to executive
decision making, as amended in light of the enactment of the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information)(England) Regulations 2012.

RESOLVED - That Rules 1.1 to 1.4, 2.1 and 3.1 of the Executive and
Decision Making Procedure Rules, as set out within Appendix A to the
submitted report, be approved.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Response to Deputation - Health and Wellbeing of people living in Hyde
Park and the need for local Schools and Community to access Sports
and Leisure Facilities

Further to Minute No. 125, 12" December 2012, the Director of Public Health
and the Chief Planning Officer submitted a joint report responding to the
deputation presented to the full Council meeting on 12th September 2012
from the Hyde Park Olympic Legacy Committee regarding the health of
people in Hyde Park and the need for local schools and community to access
decent sports facilities. This report followed the initial consideration of this
matter at the December 2012 Executive Board meeting.

In presenting the report, the Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing
requested that the second sentence within paragraph 5.1 of the submitted
report be amended, so that it read, ‘However, in a planning context officers
are mindful that refusal of the Victoria Road application would not
automatically serve to enhance local sports provision or community health as
desired’.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, officers provided the Member in question
with the current position regarding local primary schools’ access to local
sports facilities, including those referenced by the deputation.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the inclusion of the amendment to paragraph 5.1 of the submitted
report (as detailed above) be agreed.

(b)  That it be noted and acknowledged that the area in question has a
deficiency in sports facilities and pitches. In addition, whilst

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 171



249

250

recognising the role of the Local Planning Authority, the Board’s
support be given to the principle of enhancing opportunities for the
local community to engage in physical activity in order to improve
health and wellbeing in the area.

DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY

Disposal of Cleared Site in Holbeck to Unity Housing Association

The Director City Development submitted a report which sought approval to
dispose of a cleared site in Holbeck at less than best consideration and on the
basis of a “one to one” negotiation with Unity Housing Association. The report
noted that the disposal of the specified site would facilitate the development of
an affordable housing scheme in a priority regeneration area of the city.

The proposals detailed within the submitted report were welcomed, as it was
noted that such proposals would provide much needed accommodation and
would also assist with the regeneration of the area.

Following consideration of Appendix 2 to the submitted report, designated as
exempt under the provisions of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3),
which was considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was

RESOLVED -

(@) That a proposal to dispose of a cleared site in Holbeck, as identified at
Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be approved, on the basis of a “one
to one” negotiation with Unity Housing Association at a less than best
consideration, on the terms detailed within exempt Appendix 2 to the
submitted report.

(b)  That the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City
Development (with the power to sub delegate) in order to approve the
detailed terms of the sale.

A58 Inner Ring Road Essential Maintenance Scheme

Further to Minute No. 237, 11™ April 2012, the Director of City Development
submitted a report providing an update on the progress made in respect of the
A58M Leeds Inner Ring Road Essential Maintenance Scheme. In addition,
subject to Full Approval from the Department for Transport, the report also
sought authority to incur expenditure for the construction stage of the
Woodhouse Tunnel Strengthening Scheme.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, clarification was provided to the Board
regarding the Department for Transport approvals process.

RESOLVED -

(@) That the update provided in the submitted report, including the
substantial completion of New York Flyover and Lovell Park Bridge, be
noted.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 172



(b)  That it be noted that a contractor has been appointed for Woodhouse
Tunnel and is currently utilising Early Contractor Involvement to look at
the optimum solution for delivery, and also to feed into the Full
Approval process.

(c) That subject to Full Approval by the Department for Transport,
expenditure of up to £19,483,000 be authorised in order to implement
the construction phase for Woodhouse Tunnel.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: 13™ MAY 2013

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: 20™ MAY 2013 (5.00 P.M.)

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 p.m. on
the 21° May 2013)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 19th June, 2013

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



Appendix 5

Table of Scrutiny Inquires and Statements Relating to Children and Families

Inquiry Scrutiny Board Year
Private Fostering Children and Families 2012/13
Private Care Homes Children and Families 2012/13
Increasing the number of young | Children and Families 2012/13
peope who are EET

Young Carers Children and Families 2012/13
Welfare Reform Resources and Council Services 2012/13
Review of Children’s Congenital | Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 2011/12
Cardiac Services Committee

External Placements Children and Families 2011/12
Children’s Services Redesign Children and Families 2011/12
Child Poverty Children and Families 2011/12
Improving School Attendance Children and Families 2011/12
Engaging Young People in Sustainable Economy and Culture 2011/12
Culture, Sport and Recreation

Outdoor Education Centres Children’s Services 2010/11
Final School Balances Children’s Services 2010/11
Safeguarding Children’s Services 2009/10
Entering Education Children’s Services 2009/10
Education Standards Children’s Services 2009/10
Attendance Children’s Services 2009/10
Meadowfield Primary School Children’s Services 2009/10
Youth Survey Statement Children’s Services 2009/10
School Organisation Children’s Services 2009/10
Consultation

Inclusion Children’s Services 2007/8
Fountain Primary School Children’s Services 2007/8
Services for 8 — 13 year olds Children’s Services 2007/8
Adoption in Leeds Children’s Services 2006/7
Catching the Bus Young Peoples Scrutiny Forum 2006/7
Youth Services Children’s Services 2006/7
Implications of Trust Schools for | Children’s Services’ 2006/7
the Local Authority

14 — 19 Review Childrens Services 2006/7
Departmental Communications | Children’s Services 2006/7

Page 175




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 176



Agenda Item 10

Report author: Heather Pinches /
Peter Storrie

LN T CouNCTL Tel: 274638 / 43956

Report of Deputy Chief Executive / Director of Children’s Services
Report to Children and Families Scrutiny Board
Date: 28" June 2013

Subject: 2012/13 Q4 Performance Report

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [] Yes X No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and X Yes [ ] No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the
council relevant to the Children and Families Scrutiny Board.

Recommendations

2. Members are recommended to:

* Note the Q4 performance information and the issues which have been
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas.

Page 177



1 Purpose of this report

1.1 This report presents to scrutiny a summary of the quarter four performance data
for 2012-13 which provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant
priorities in the Council Business Plan 2011-15, Children and Young People’s
Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-15.

2 Background information

21 The City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 is the city-wide partnership plan which sets
out the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by the council and its partners.
There are 21 priorities which are split across the 5 strategic partnerships who are
responsible for ensuring the delivery of these agreed priorities. The Council
Business Plan 2011 to 2015 sets out the priorities for the council - it has two
elements - five cross council priorities aligned to the council’s values and a set of
directorate priorities and targets.

2.1 Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan priorities are shared with
partners across the city while the Council Business Plan sets out the Council’s
contribution to these shared priorities. The partnership contribution to children’s
elements of the City Priority Plan priorities is led by the Children’s Trust Board and
through delivery of the Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP). The
City Priorities, framed as obsessions, form part of the 11 children’s priorities. This
report includes a quarter 4 assessment of progress against the Children and
Young People’s Plan obsessions.

2.2 This report includes 3 appendices:

* Appendix 1 — Performance Reports for the 3 City Priority Plan Priorities
(these are the same as the “obsessions” from the CYPP)

e Appendix 2 — Children’s Services Directorate Priorities and Indicators

e Appendix 3 — CYPP performance update

3 Main issues
Quarter 4 Performance Summary - City Priority Plan/CYPP Obsessions

3.1 The projected position for the national measure of the November — January
average for the percentage of young people not in education, employment or
training (NEETSs) for Leeds is 6.6%, down from 8.1% a year before. Focused
effort by Connexions providers and partners led to not-known levels falling by
around 1000 between December 2012 and March 2013; at the time of writing, it is
now 6.7%, well below the national rate of 7.9%. Leeds performance is better than
the statistical neighbour average but there is more work to do in order to improve
our performance relative to national levels.

3.2 The numbers of Children Looked After continue to fall, and at year end was 98
lower (6.6%) than a year ago. At the end of March the Leeds rate of children in
care is 88.6 per 10,000 children and young people, a level not seen since 2009.

Page 178



3.3

Both primary and secondary school attendance numbers dipped in autumn
compared to the year before but remain above the previous year. The fall was
greater in primary. lliness is the main reason for this with the Leeds position
consistent with national as stated by the DFE- The latest figures show an increase
in absence levels in autumn term 2012 compared to autumn term 2011. Absence
levels in autumn term 2011 were, however, exceptionally low (largely because of
low sickness absence) and absence levels in autumn term 2012 remain lower
than in autumn term 2010 and previous years

Council Business Plan

3.4

3.5

Directorate Priorities and Indicators: There are 5 directorate priorities and 3 are
assessed as green and 2 are amber at Quarter 4. The amber priorities are:

» Develop a high performing and skilled workforce
e Putin place a joined-up children’s directorate

In terms of performance indicators 3 green, 5 amber and 1 red. Red indicator is:

e percentage of children’s homes that are rated good or better by
Ofsted - at the end Q4 performance remained at 36% the same as that
for quarter 3 as no further full inspections had been made. However
provisional results for inspections since April suggest that 55% are now
good or better, which would shift the indicator to amber. Additional to the
full inspection each home has an interim inspection each year following the
full inspections. With the interim inspections seven out of the eleven
homes were judged to be making good progress. This is the highest grade
that can be given at an interim inspection and means that a home has
demonstrated continuous improvement in quality of care and has
addressed all requirements and the large majority of recommendations
raised at the previous full inspection. This gives confidence for the next
round of full inspections, particularly as a programme of refurbishment
work began in Jan 2013 for six of the homes. The 2013 — 14 round of
inspections commenced at the beginning of April 2013, so far four homes
have been inspected and initial feedback is positive with all likely but not
yet confirmed as good.

Children and Young People’s Plan

3.6

At quarter 4 the Children’s Trust Board received an update against all Children
and Young People’s plan priorities, a summary of this in included in appendix 3.
Quarter 4 also marked the end of the second year of the current Children and
Young People’s plan. The Trust Board reviewed progress at year 2 and reflected
that overall progress against indicators was positive. There was an
acknowledgement that questions of pace remained in some areas and of the
continuing need to focus on equality gaps in Leeds and to continue to narrow
gaps to national performance where they exist. There was a consensus on the
benefits of the partnership approach and for this to continue to strengthen at city
and locality levels.

Page 179



Success highlighted at quarter 4 (not mentioned above)

* In February 2013 Ofsted tested key aspects of their proposed new methodology
for the inspection of services for looked after children and care leavers. They
noted that services for children looked after and care leavers in Leeds were
improving; that Leeds embraced and encouraged innovative practice; and that
the increase in the use of special guardianship reflected the strong focus on
providing children with permanence. Ofsted also carried out a thematic
inspection of the independent reviewing officer service in January. Ofsted
highlighted the service’s good practice, and will use this as a case study for one
of their future national reports.

» The Children’s Social Work Service was inspected by LILAC (Leading
Improvements for Looked After Children) in February 2013, and passed all
seven categories. Achieving this standard is a good measure of progress in
developing a more child friendly city and a child-centred social work service, as
the inspection is carried out by young people with experience of the care
system.

» Delivery of a universal Early Years Foundation Stage training programme has
engaged 473 practitioners through 22 courses since December 2012. 98 per
cent of practitioners indicating that this will positively influence their practice.

» 80 per cent of primary schools are currently judged good or outstanding by
Ofsted, an increase of 14 percentage points compared to the same period last
year. This rise is in spite of the introduction of a more challenging inspection
framework in September 2012.

» The Leeds Youth Council now has 51 members, including children and young
people with additional needs, and children looked after.

» The Leeds Apprenticeship Awards allow the city to celebrate exceptional
apprentices and businesses that are driving up skills in the city. A further
£300,000 funding over the next three years has been agreed through the Leeds
City Region City Deal to develop a Leeds Apprenticeship Hub. The Hub will
build on existing resources to facilitate an improved offer for learners and
employers in the city. From September 2013, further education colleges can
offer direct entry at age 14. Leeds City College will launch their 14-24
apprenticeship academy; a route which route provides an alternative to
traditional Year 10 and 11.

3.7 The Children’s Trust quarter 4 report highlighted the following 3 areas for
partnership consideration:

« The latest data released by the DfE shows that 50% of Leeds 19 year olds in
2012 had achieved a Level 3 qualifications (the equivalent of two A levels),
compared to 55% of state-educated young people nationally. Level 3 is
reflective of the higher level skills that are a springboard to successful careers or
university. The attainment gap for young people who were eligible for free
school meals remains evident at 19. The raising of the participation age,

Page 180



changes to 16-19 study programmes and reform of vocational qualifications
present an opportunity to ensure that young people are on high quality learning
pathways that maximise the potential for progression to Level 3 qualifications.

» The role of lead practitioner is a developing role but one crucial for local multi-
agency working. When a child and/or family are being supported at cluster
level, it is the role of the lead practitioner to co-ordinate the arrangements for
this support. The intention is that all organisations within the children’s trust
partnership should be undertaking this role. Children’s partners have been
asked to support this role within their organisations including ensuring
appropriate supervision arrangements exist.

* Autumn term attendance was raised. Please see paragraph 3.3. Work is
underway to ensure regular attendance information is available to the
partnership, including to clusters as part of the commitment to ensuring
momentum is maintained.

Children’s Services Inspection

3.8

A successful LILAC inspection and two Ofsted visits are highlighted above.
Together these offer confidence for future Ofsted inspections. However the
national framework for inspections is changing with the latest position being a
single new Local Authority inspection for children looked after and child protection.
At the same time there remains the likelihood of an inspection at any time against
the interim child protection framework. A new inspection around local authority
leadership of, and support for, school improvement is also being implemented.

Performance reporting going forwards

3.9

4.1
4.1.1

4.2
4.2.1

We are currently reviewing our performance arrangements to ensure they continue
to remain fit-for-purpose. This brings opportunities to streamline a range of
intelligence arrangements in the wider area of strategy and improvement and
reduce bureaucracy but we are mindful that this needs to be balanced with
ensuring proper accountability, decision-making and assurance. To allow time to
develop, consult on and implement any new arrangements, we are proposing that
we suspend Q1 performance reporting to CLT and members.

Corporate Considerations
Consultation and Engagement

This is an information report and as such does not need to be consulted on with
the public. However all performance information is published on the council’'s and
Leeds Observatory websites and is available to the public.

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration
This is an information report and not a decision so due regard is not relevant.

However, this report does include an update on equality issues as they relate to
the various priorities.

Page 181



4.3
4.3.1

4.4

441

4.5

4.5.1

4.6
4.6.1

Council policies and City Priorities

This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city
priorities in line with the council’s performance management framework.

Resources and value for money

There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a
high level update of the Council’s financial position. This is in terms of the cross
council priority within the Business Plan of “spending money wisely”.

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

All performance information is publicly available and is published on the council
and Leeds Observatory websites. This report is an information update providing
Scrutiny with a summary of performance for the strategic priorities within its remit
and as such is not subject to call in.

Risk Management

The Performance Report Cards include an update of the key risks and challenges
for each of the priorities. This is supported by a comprehensive risk management
process in the Council to monitor and manage key risks. These processes also
link closely with performance management.

Conclusions

This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for
the council relevant to the Children and Families Scrutiny Board.

Recommendations
Members are recommended to:

* Note the Q4 performance information and the issues which have been
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas.

Background documents’

None

' The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 182



‘Alleuoneu aouepua)le AIBpuooss pue S|ooyos AIepuodas SpasT Ul oUBpuUS)IE USaMISq doualayip ayl Jo Aluolew ayj J0J SJUNO2OEe pue
S|00yos AJepuooas Wolj 80Uasge pasiioyineun 0} JOJNQUIU0D Juediubis B S| 92U8sge J0) UOSEa. SIY} SEB UISdU09 JO SI SIY] "SJeaA Juadal ul sasealdap Buimol|ol
‘pasealoul Sey Uoseal pasioyineun Jayjo 0} anp asuasge ybnoyye ‘ssaujl ul 8sll e AQ 10} paIUNOOOB SBM 8SBaJOUI SIY} JO JSOW |9A8] Alepuooss je Alejiuis

"1 10Z uwnine o0} pasedwod adsuepuaje ul sjuiod abejusalad ¢ JO 1.} JYBIS B SI YdIyM ‘9%8°C6 SeM ZL0Z UWNnNe ul 8duepusje ‘S|ooyds AIepuodas spasa u|

‘dnoub Jeak Arewd Jayjo Aue uey) Jamoj (9%,G'€E Sem aduepusaye

uondedsay |0z uwnine ul pue sdnolb JeaA Jap|o uey) aouepuale JO S|9A3| Jamo| aAeY Ajjesauab uondsosay ul ualp|iy) "(Suonoe mau 99s) awiy 1s.ij 8y} Joy sjidnd
uondaoay Joj 8ouepusale sepnjoul ejep Alewlid | L0z uwnine o} pajedwod Z| Qg uwnine uj Ssauj|l 0} anp aduasge se pasiuobales (sAep-jey) suoissas |00yos

NS - 998G ---#--- |BUCHEN - 29§ —%— SpPasT - 295 —4—

NS - Ud --#--- [BUOHEN - U —¥—  spss] - id —e—

€LicLoe

cLLoe L1L/0L02 0lL/600¢

: : %16

- %cC6

- %6

- %P6

- %56

- %96

|e10} JO aJow juiod abejuadiad aUO YIm ‘SSau||l Ul 8SBaIOUI UB AQ 1O} pajunodoe

Ajaua jsowje si eouepuaje ul sjuiod abejuaolad |°| JO (e} SIYL "} | 0Z uwnine

Ul %6°G6 0} paledwod %Q 6 Sem Z| Qg uwnine uj aduepuaje sjooyds Arewnd uj

"WI8} Jawwins a8y} ul a|gejieAe a4 ||IM Ajjleuoiieu wia) Z10zZ

uwnine ay} BuaAod eiep aAiesedw o) “Jeak dlwapeoe Yoes WoJ) Wid) uwnine ay) o}

Bunejal ejep Jeak-uo-ieak smoys ydeib ay] ‘wis) g1 0Z uwnine ay} ui paule}sns usaq

JOU BABY | | 0Z Uwnne ul paAIasqo Sasealoul 8y} Ing | 1/0L0Z JO w.a) awes ayj ul
uey} Jaybiy [|ns aJe sajel adouepus)ie Jey) SMOYS ZL0g JO WIa} uwnine ay} woJj elecg]
By} Ul papJ0oal JBA8 }saybiy a8y} sem Ing ‘ajipenb wopoq sy ul paulewsl mocmbcmzmm
A1epuodag “Ajjeuoieu sanLoyIne [eoo] [e jo ajiuenb doj 8y} Ul Sem S|00UIS)

spaaT Joj souepuaye Asewnd jey} smoys (1eah ojwspedse g1/1 10z 9y} Jo swus} bulds

pue uwnjne ay} BullaAod) ejep aAljeledwod [euoleu Juadal 1sow ay| “JeaA snoirnaid

ay} 0} paltedwod ‘Jeak olwapeoe Z1/ 10Z @Y} Bunp spsaaT ul sjooyos Alepuodas

pue Aiewld je sajel aduepuslie Ul 9Sealdul 8y} paquosap aAey spJed podal Juaday

Sdjel aduepualje |00ydg /ANy
auleseq ay} puiyaq Aioys

bt~

Z10Z uwnne ul paulelsns Jou souepus)e Ul sasealoul pajuspadaidun s, | |0z UWNINy :[8AeJ) JO uolldalig a2e|d ul JJom saoiAles pajabie) Jo abuey vy

‘'sdnoub g g swos pue spasu uoleonpas jeroads yum sjidnd ‘sjeaw [ooyos aalj 1oy} a|qibie sjidnd fuaapjiyo

;Q il Jaye payoo| ‘seale paaudap ul Buiall asoy) “6e ‘@ouepuaje 100d aAey 03 A|9y1] 810w ale sawodno Jood ajdiinw adusliadxs oym sdnoub
[idnd Jenoiued ‘buipuayo yinoA pue | 33N Buiaq ‘Juswuiepe ‘eouepuspe usamiaq syull Buolis ale aiay] uoissasqo ue siyj} st AYm
pJEA\ MSUHEIN puE L9JID Uliday ‘pesd| 9190 ueuualg |ned ‘pead] 9I1

‘ . 9JI] IO} S|IIMS 8y} dAEY puB |
JUBWAABIYOE pue douepusdjie ‘Inoineyaq aAoldw| uoissasq :¢ fjuoud BUILIE) 1O S[OAS] |[€ 1€ |[oM op ojdoad BUNOA puE SIS :Z dwo9nQ
(L1-] sieaA) sjooyos spaa ul sjidngd  :uonendod €10z AeN 0| - pJieog isni] s.ualp|iyd :Bunesy

€1-Z10Z YO spJed Joday ue|d s.9doad Buno pue uaipiyd —3sniL s,.uaipjiyd



"S9IIAISS Hodsuel) ‘Sd9 ‘@aJawwo) Jo Jaquiey) ‘ssauisng ‘eipawl ‘siapinoid 9y| ‘sadiales Buisnoy ‘sadiAles Jnpe ‘uoieqoud ‘Saoinles
[oyoo|e pue Bnup ‘sdnolb AJlunwiwod ‘Sa2IAISS a1eOP|IYD ‘S4DA ‘@91j0d ‘siayiom yoealno Ajlwey ‘SIolsIA Yjeay ‘sjooyos ‘syualed ‘eidoad BunoA pue ualipjiyd

Kejd 03 9j04 e ym siaued

‘diysieuped ayj 1noybnouyy

a|gejieAe Ajapim aiow apew Buiaq siy} 0} Joud ‘ejep aduepusa)e [00yos
Apjoam Jo abelanod Jo Ss|oAd| 8y} Aoidwil 0} S82IAIBS S,uaJp|iy)d ulyim aoeld
Buiye) si1 YoM “sanoyine Jnoqybiau |eansiie)s Joj pue Ajjeuoljeu usaas

1By} yum spaa ul aouewlopad asedwod 0} usyeuspun aq ||Im sisAjeue

lIn} ‘wud} 102 uwnine ayj Joj 33a 8y} Aq paysiignd s| ejep [euofjeu Usyp
juswdojanap eje(q

"Jeak olwapeoe snoinaid 8y} ul Wid) swes ay) 0} patedwod Z|Log uwnine
ul JOUB|\ JJeD Je sduepuslie Ul 8sealoul Ue Usa(q Sey a1ay| "sduepusie
anosdwi 0} saljiwey Jisy) pue ajdoad BunoA yum Bupiom 1oy saibsiens

Jo abuel e Jo auo se ‘AJunwiwod [ooyds ay} Jnoybnouyy aoioeld aAljelo)sal
Jo sajdiouud ay} Buippaquie usaq aAey [00YIS AllUNWWOY) JOUB\ JJe)
Ajjeoao| syiom jeym

‘Aep Jooyos ay) Bulinp anuad buiddoys ay) asn oym sjdoad BunoA
abuajieyo Ajpjelndoidde o0y pabpeld aaey saijunoag pue ‘ejdwexs 1o
‘gouepua)e anosdwi 0] djay ueo Aay) moy 1noge ylom spaa Ajpuali4 plIyd
ybnouy; siseq Buiobuo ue uo sassauisng yjim aoe|d Buje) ale suoissnosiq
‘suoljesiuef10 UMo J1sy} UIylm Y0oojIno

s1y} ayowo.d 0} pue sbuipas Buiuies| J1dy} Ul SI 8q 0} ualp|iyo Joj ade|d }s8q
ay) Ao Ajpuauly pliyo e ui jey) abessawl 8y} 8SIopus 0} payse ale siaquiawl
pJeog 1sni| s,uaip|iyD "S|jooyds 0} abessaw Siy} 9)ed1unwiwod 0} Speayy,,
yum uonounfuoo ur aoejd ayel ||Im MIOAA  9ABS| [euondaoxa, palapISuod

aq |[IM SIY} 8JnjNJ U] "JUSWSIIUS UB S| SWI}-WId} Ul |[00YIS JO JNO UdJP|IYd
Jiay} Bune) jey) sjualed Joj uoissaidwi ay) 9jeald ueod jey) sAep Jo Jaquinu
189S B 0] S80Ualajal JN0 9.} 0} pue SAepljoy awij-wls), punole abenbue|
anoWal 0] €10z Jequaldag wodj 1088 0jul Sawod Jeyl abueyo aane|siba|

e Buipiebal saanejuasaldal gig yum Bunssw aie yels Ajlioyine |20
"uaJp|Iyo |ooyos

-a.d ul sjiqey aouepuaye poob ajeald 0} yJom Jo Joedwl ay) JojuoOW 0}

a|ge aq [|m AloyIne [Bo0| 8y} pue S|ooyods Jey) sueaw ejep Siyl JO U0I}09||00
3y "Jnoineyag uo JasIApy Jadx3 s,8)e1s Jo Aiejaldoag uay) ay) ‘Jojke |
alleyD AQ uayeuspun malAal 8y} Ul Spew SUOIlBpuUaWIWOda) Buimo|o)
s|idnd uondeosay 1o} 1ey) apnjoul 0} papuaIxe usaqg Sey ejep asuepuaje Jo
U01309]|02 8y} JO 8d0as 8y "SNSUBD [00YIS Y} BIA SWI} 1SJI} BY} 10} Pal0a||00
Buleq si sjidnd uoidasay Joj ejep aouepusaje Jeak olwepede ¢1/Z1L0Z @Yl U]

suoljoe MaN

‘Bunedionied Ag was)se-jjos pue aouapljuod pauieb aaey dnoib ay;

18y} subis Apealje ale aiay) pue sawwelboid ay} jo Bunenjeas pue Buiuueld
ay) ul pabebus Ajny Bulieq ajdoad BunoA ayy o3 anp jom Buiob si 108loid

3y "Wwn|noLIND papusixa Jiay} Jo Jed se a4juad ay) je saniAloe Bujules)
Aeam ul abebus 0y sjidnd jo Jaquinu |lewsS B 9|geus 0} OIS dS3g au}
yum Bunpjiom usaq aaey aajua)) AsjeaH siuaq 8y} WO} Je)s 92IAI8S YINoA
‘sjuswaAodwil uieysns

0] syuaJed Bunuoddns ul usaq aABY S8SIN0D dY] SAIJ08)J8 MOY SSOSSe

0] ‘pajoejuod Buiaq aie sasinod ay} ul pajedioued oym syualed ‘sjgey
aouepuaje Jenaq dojeasp 0} paau e Buipnjoul ‘spaau xa|dwod/jeuoippe
yum saljiwe} 1e pajebie) ‘palanlap alem sasinod Bunualed 7/ z10z Bulng

‘pakoldep AjaAjoaye 1sow aq pjnod asay) aiaym Bulkjiuspl pue ‘Jauonoeld

Allwey peaj Jo 804 8y} uo aye} 0} diystauped ay) uiyum salousbe aiow
Buioddns je %00| 0} sadiInles pajabie) uiyum aoejd Buiye) usaq sey YIOA\ e
‘ao1j0e.d 188 aleys 0} [1ounod uojdweyinog Aq payse sem Ajuoyjne |eoo|

ay) ‘uoniubooal jeuoneu Buiuieb si spaa ul 8ouepuslie aAoIdwl O} YIOA\ e
‘(3se3 Jouu| pue Asjweig ‘SS3r) s48)snjo 1salsng ayj Jo 83y} ul

aoe|d ul 1nd Buieq Jo ssao0.d ay} ul sI oddns saolnles poajabie) [leuonippy e
"HOY09 }sli{ saljlwed SpadT 8y} wolj saljiwe) Ge|l YlIM InoiAeyaq
[eioosiue pue Buipuayo padonpal pue aduepuape |00yos paroidwi aney
aM Jey) pajedisuowap Buiaey awayos synsal Agq uswAied s uswulanob

2y} woJ} Buipuny [euolippe WIEO 0] 8|ge SEM [IDUN0D Y] ‘€10z Alenuep u] e

auop aAey am Jeym

*Page 184

I

"gouepuae |0oyds Jisy) Bunosye senssi Jejnoiued pey sialed Bunok

se yons sdnols) "J0joe} B Se pauoijuaw os|e sem BulA|Ng pue ‘SUOSSa| pue WN|NJLLIND 8y} YIM Sanssi ‘sjualed yum pue awoy je swajqo.d :aJe aduasge Ul Siojoe)
A8y ayi 1ey; sn pjo} ajdoad BunoA ‘@ouasqe jualsisiad 1o} Suoseal ay} Ojul Uayelspun yoieasal [eoo] Jo Jed sy yuly) ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iys op jeyp

€1-Z10Z vO spJe) Joday ue|d s,9|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd —3sniL s,.uaipiyd



(£10Z ‘pouno Al spee Joj Jodal [euly DY) L SI0SSasSe Dy 8yl Ag uaas uoneaipap siyl Jo ajdwexa poob Alaa e sem aoe(d ul wes)
aousn|ju| pue aoloA 8y -aoe(d ul saioljod Jayjo pue Aoljod spaa Ajpusliq pliyo s.A10 ay) 1noybnody) pappagquia Sem JUswaA|oAUl pue uonedioied s sjdoad
BunoA pue uaip|iyo 1ey} ainsus 0} Juswabeuew JOIUSS pue Jels Jo uoneoipap ay) Aq passaidwi Ajjeas atam (ajdoad BunoA aousuadxe-aled) sl0ssasse D17,
"'splepuels UaAas [|e Buiraiyoe ‘Aienige4 Ul passasseal pue ‘AInp ul passasse sem [1ouno) A0 spaa] ‘ajdoad BunoA pasualiadxe—aled Aq padojarsp usaq

Sey YoIym JUSWSA|OAUI 1O} Spiepue)s AJljenb Jo ylomawel) B sasn yoiym ‘@210 jeuoneN v Agq uni josfoid e st Dy quiyy ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiys op Jeym

65T

985T

08ST

¥LST

806T

9sT

955t

0SST

ST

8€ST

CEST

7St

uolIe ou JI D

SLPT

99T

TorT

TSPT

Ly

0S¥T

A=y 4

LEFT

IFPT

(04

(04

CEVT

Cl-TTI0C VD —¥%—

LLET

98€EL

SLEL

S6EL

497"

rl

TEVL

LEVT

Serl

el

TeWL

=14

ET-CTOC V1D ——

(pua
-1eal)

BTN

934

23

AON

PO

dag

Int

AR

ady

yiuow Aq 1a14e paxoo| uaip(iyd

0SET

- 00¥T

r 0S¥T

- 00ST

- 0SST

- 0091

Jaye pay0o| uaJp|iyd JO Jaguinu 8y} 8onpay :8AINY

‘paau JO s|aA8| 1se]ealb ay) YlIM USIp|iyd Uo pasnoo] SI 80IAI8S

YO [BI00S S UBJp|IyD ay) 1BY) ainsus o) padjay pue ‘Isye payoo| ualp|iyo

ul uoionpal ay) papoddns sey iyl “(zzl'yL o) pasedwiod Ge'LL) 2L/LL0T

Ul ueyl €1/210z Ul Jama) 1uso Jad Oz 1SoW|e :90IAI8S HIOAA [BI00S S, uslpliyD

8y 0] S|eJiajal JO Jaquinu 8y} Ul Usas S| wea | 82IApY pue AIng ayj Jo 1oedwi ay |

‘punoibyoeq gNg e wod ale oym (Z10z Aenuep ulusd Jad $2) |04
|ooyos 8y} uo uaip|iyo Jo abejusaiad sy uey) Jamol Apyblis si siy -punoibyoeq,
JNg e wouy Buiwod jusd Jad |z Ajgrewixoidde yum ‘uonejndod Jsyje peyoofs
uaJp|iyo ay} Jo dn-axew odluyle ay} ul abueyo jueoiiubis ou usaq sey o_os._.m

(T

‘siaquinu Buonps A
ay) 01 Bunnqguiuoo Jaye payoo| ualp|iyo Joj aousuewlad pue ‘Yup Buissaippe
‘Buiuue|d a1ed UO SNo0} pasealoul ue Yym ‘Jeak [eioueul) Z1-1 LOZ 9Y) ul
uey) JeaA [eloueull £1-Z10Z dY} Ul ‘SloAes| aJow juad Jad 9| Jsow|e pue ‘siaye}s
Jamay Juao Jad Q| alem alay] ‘600Z 19qWBAON d2uls juiod Aue je uey) Jamo)
os|e sI ‘Aienuep Bundeoxs ‘pue ‘obe syjuow g| polad swes ayj ueyy (Juad Jad

9'9) JoMo| 86 £/€°L SI £L0Z YOJBIN JO PUS BY) Je S1eD Ul UaIP|Iyd JO Jaquinu 8y |
auljeseq ay} puiyaq Aioyg

bt~

Buronpau Ajeielidoidde ale pue Ajajes aied ul uaip|iyo JO SiaquInN :[8AeJ) JO UOI0adlg  SAoJdWl 0] 8NUIIUOD J8)e PaY00| USIP|IYD IO} S8DIAISS 8)BlS PalsIO :OVY

4

Jaquy

"sol|iwey

JIay) uIyym Ajajes a1l 0] ualp|iyo Loddns 0) seoinles aAlejuaAald apinoid 0] a|ge|ieAR S80IN0S8al 8y S108)Je SPaaT Ul Ja)je pay0o| uaJp|iyo Jo
slaquinu ybiy ay] “Alunwiwiod pue Ajiue) UMo Jisyl uiylm Ajajes aAl| 0] a|ge aie Aay) usym Janeq aJe ualp|iyo Joj sewoonQ Ajiouid e siyy st AYm

saljiwe} aAilloddns pue ajes Ul 9Al 0} ualp|iyo djoH uoissasqo

spaaT ul ajdoad BunoA pue ualpjiyo ||V

Alaw3 106plig pue pjoH asuer

‘pe’ 910 I3Y|EAN BABIS ‘Pe3| 901
11 Moud wJey woly ajes aJte gjdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyd i} awo23nQ
:uone|ndod €10z Aep 01 - pseog isniL s,uaipiiyd :Bunesy

€1-Z10Z YO spJed Joday ue|d s.9|doad Buno pue uaipjiyd —3sniL s,uaipjiyd



"(S921AI8S Y}|edSH |BIUS|N JUBISSI0PY PUB P|IYD) S82IAISS Yleay [ejusw ‘SadiAles Jodsuel)
‘sssuonnoeld [essusb ‘ssauisng ‘elpaw ‘Buisnoy ‘saoIAIes Jnpe ‘uoljeqold ‘SadIAISS |[0Yod[e pue Bnip ‘sediAles Buipuayo YnoA ‘SaoinIas 1edp|iyd ‘S10)0as
Aunwwod pue yyiey Aiejunjon ‘ao1jod ‘siayJom yoeaano Ajiwe; ‘sIo)sIA yjeay ‘sjooyos ‘syualed ‘ojdoad BunoA pue uaipjiy) Aejd o0} ajou e yjim siaulied

"Jauuew ajeudosdde ue ul pauoddns pue paiuapl

S| JOYO9 ,SIBABS| 81D MdU, 8y} }ey} 8insua 0} SpadT] ul Jno pauled Buleq
}IOM SAISUB]UI 0} P3| dARY SJaAed| aJed Bululyep 0} sabueyo Aoijod [euoneN e
juswdojanap eje(q

‘sjualed yym syuswoaalbe Aieyun|oa

Japun Jaye pa)oo0| uaip|iyo Joy sueid Bunisia-al pue ‘@ouspuadapul

ojul ualp|iyo Japjo Buipoddns ‘siepio diysueipienb [eioads ‘uondope
uo snooy Jajealb ybnouy) aieo Buines| ualp|iyo Jo siaquinu Buisealou| e
Ajjeoo| syiom jeym

"JUBWIUOIIAUS djes e ulyum ajdoad BunoA
pue siaad yym Bunoessyul pue sdiyspuaiy Buiping ‘s|iiys a1 J0 sedusadxa
JuaJayIp Jayo 0} ‘syjuswabuelse diysupy aie alay) alaym Sased uo
snoo} Jejnoiped e s alay “YIom YyinoA jo saoaid oioads wouy Jijauaq pjnom
1ey) aidoad BunoA Jaye pa)oo| [enplAlpul AJilUspl 0] 82IAISS UOIIUSAISIU|
Allwe 4 8y} yym paxIom aney pJem UOIB|PPIA S} Ul Wea) YIOM YinoA ay| e
‘poddns Buneoyy yym
uonepowwoooe Juspuadapul ybnolyy aied Buines| ajdoad BunoA uoddns
pue a)epowwod2e [|IM SIy| 8bejs pieme ay) payoeal sey ‘ajeloyoaliq
pooylnoqyblaN pue SjuswuodIAUg 8yl YIM pauoissiwwod Apuiol ‘ejdoad
BunoA a|qelauinA 1o} 82IAI8S paleys ‘Mau Y :doysyIom 919 ZL/LL/SO ®
"SyI0MIBU Ajlwue)
JIaY} UlyiIm Ajajes uiewal ualpjiyo aJ0w ainsua |Im saibajel}s asay} Jo yjoq
0} SS800B pasealdu| ‘asn Jajealb abeinoous 0} pauljweals pue paidwis
usa(q aAeY $8ss800.1d 4D pue ‘Yels Jo siaquiawl [euoljippe paynoal
sey 92IAIas Buloualajuo) dnoig Ajlwe ay) :doysyiom 10 ZL/LL/SO e
‘peydope usaq aney oym sjdoad pue ‘sesydope JoO saAle|al Jo sjualed
8Je OYM SUSZ|}I0 SPadT 0} d2IAISS Juspuadapul ue apiaoid O} [1DUN0Y By}
ypm diysisupied ul 3Iom aaiysyIoA uondopy Jeyy :doysyiom g10 ZL/LL/GO @
1011d sBuipaaoold aued ay) Joj Jabeuew
109l04d pue Jabeuew ased Jo s}sod ay} 1o} Aeemiapun S JUBWIHNIODY e
"90IA18g Buld)so4 spaa ulol si1aleo 18)soy Jusapuadapul 8WOS Se ‘t1/€102
Ul 8dnpal 0} slaquinu j0adxa a21AI8s a8y} ybnoyy ‘ebusjieyd e suiewsa.
sjuswaoe|d Aouabe Buliesoy Juapuadapul Ul Ualp(iyd Jo Jaquinu ay| e
"'SpP9a7 Ul JoaJed e SABY 0} JUBM OUM SJDXJOM |BIDOS 10} JBJO
JuaJayo9 pue panosdwi ue Buidojeasp ul apew usaq sey ssalbold poos) e
suoljoe maN

"S||IXS [B100S pue aouspiuod Buiroidwi pue

saljIAljoe mau BulAly ‘eade 8y} ul sewoyY S .UaJp|Iiyo ul pue ‘sjuswaoe|d aied
19150} ul 8jdoad BUNOA 10) SJUBAS PBJSOY BABY BJjUdY) Joze Asjwiiy ay| e
"aAlenIul siy) dojeaap 03 Aeemiapun ale sadlAIeg pajabie] ul
sanbea|j0d YyIm SUOISSNISIp Jaylng "saoualiadxa mau aieys pue saljiAloe
annisod ui ajedioiued o) way) ajgeus o0y Jayjeboy saljiwey J1dy) pue uaip|iyo
Bulig 0} sem wie ay| "sAep uoisayoo Ajiwe} 924y} pajel|ioe} wie4 weyaul
"'SYJUoW Z | 1Se| 8y} Jono paanpal Ajjueaiubis
sey sjuswaoed [enuapisal [BuId}xd Ul padeld ualp|iyd Jo Jaquinu ay |
"MaIASY oJun|p a8yl Aq palsebbns se ‘Jaylom |eloos
|edipund Jo 1sod ayy dojaasp ybiw spasa] moy ysijgeiss 0} j10eloud yoseasal
Yluow-aa4y} e pape)s sey ‘18)saola JO AJISIOAIUN BY) WO} ‘[98d NIeN e

'sJaJed J1ioy) pue ojdoad BunoA jo sedcualladxa pue SMaIA By} U0 paseq

S| pue ‘wa)sAs aled ay) Jo aousladxa yim ajdoad BunoA Aq 1no paLued

S| uonoadsul 8y} ‘82IAISS YIOM |BID0OS PaJluad-p|iyd e pue A)o Ajpusiiy

pliyo aiow e Buidojaasp ul ssaiboud Jo ainseaw poob e si siy] ‘sauobajed

uaAas |le passed pue ‘Aleniga ul (Ualp|iyD Joyy paxoo 1o} sjuswaroidu|
Buipea) Dy Ag pa1oadsul sem 92IAI9S YIOAN [BIDOS S.UdIp|iyD 8yl e

‘oousuewlad yym uaip|iyo Buipiroid uo snooy Buouis ayy

pajog|jal diysuelipienb [eioads Jo asn ay} ul 8Sealdul 8y} 1By} pue (saJjuad

uels Alles pue ‘saoualajuod dnolb Ajwe) ‘Adelayl olweisAs-ijinw se yons

ao1j0e.d aAleAouul pabeinodus pue padseiquia spaaT 1ey) (buinoidwi aiem

SPa97 Ul SIaAB9| 81D pue Ja)je pa)0o0| Ualp|iyo 1o} S82IAISS jey) pajou Aay |

"SPa97 Ul SISABS| 48O pUEB UJP|IYD Jaje paxy0o0]| Jo} SB2IAISS JO uonjoadsul
ay} Jo} ABojopoylew mau Jiay} Jo s1oadse Aay palsa) pals)jO ‘Adenigqe{ u| e
auop aAey am Jeym

[ ]
Paage 186

I

€1-Z10Z vO spJe) yoday ue|d s,9doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd —3sniL s,.uaipjiyd



"HoYyoo | J3N 9y} ul pajuasaldal-1aA0 os|e ale 92IAI8S BuipuayO YinoA a8yl Ag pasiniadns Buiaq ajdoad BunoA pue ‘sienes| a4ed ale oym JO a1ed

ul ajdoad BunoA ‘syualed BunoA Ajjigesip 10 Aynoiyip Buluies| payiuapl ue yym ajdoad BunoA -Hoyood z| Jea A ay) ul aidoad BunoA 1oy jey; sjgnop jsowje si dnob
abe siy1 ul | 33N aJe oym ajdoad BunoA jo abejusolad ay | "LOYoD | JBaA 8yl Ul | J3N JO 9ousjeAald 1sa1ealb ay) yum ‘sajel | 3N Bunosye Jojoel e s| aby
‘Buiuiedy 1o uoneonpa ‘uswAoidws Buiysas ale usw BunoA | 33N JO %08

UBY] Jow Sealaym ‘ualp(iyo Jisyy Joj Buued 1o Aoueubalid 0y anp ylom Joj ajgejieAe Ajjualind jou | JgN oJe oym uswom BunoA Jo pJiy) B punody "LUoyod | 33N 61
-9] 9yl Ul UsWOoM pue uaw BunoA Jo sonsiiajoeleyd ay) INOJe SUOIJOUlSIP SWOS aJle alay) ybnoyye uswom BunoA ueyy usw BunoA Joy Jaybiy Ajjeuibiew ale sajel
133N ‘spunoubyoeq asauiy) pue uelpu| wody ajdoad BunoA 1oj 3samo| Ajualsisuod ale sajel | 39N ‘punolbxoeg yoe|g JayiQ Auy pue spunolbyoeq lysepe|bueg
wo.j aidoad BunoA 1o usaq aAey seies | N Ul s|je} 1sabbiq ay; ‘e 0z Asenuer

0] SYjUOW 8A[aM] 8y} U] 'spunolbyoeq ueaqglied oe|g pue allyp\n pue ‘slypA Jeuylo
Auy ‘ysu| auypn ‘ewoy/AsdAs woly sidoad BunoA oy 3saybiy aq 0y pus} sajel | JIN
‘ainseaw SIy} UO Saljlioyine [eoo| 0G| JO §g= payuel

MOU S| Spaa ‘€10z Alenigad Je sy ‘julod siy) Je aouewlopad jeuoieu Yim aul| ul sem

sinoqybisu Je}g - - -  |BUOEN —¥—  SPas] —e—

_ %S SpaaT awly )sJlj 84} Joj 0S ‘9,8°G Sem ajel | JJN |BUOIl}BU 8} PUB 9%G'G SBM Spaa]
ul 8jel 8y} 10 JoqWIBAON U] "L L 0Z Ul %] "8 WoJj uoonpal e ‘%9°9 sl |0¢ 10} spesT]
%9 JoJ uin)-1no pajoafoid sy "Bunum jo awi ay) 1e a|ge|ieAe 184 jou si Ing |udy punose

Ajjeuoneu paysiignd Ajlensn si siy] “Jesk yoes jo Alenuer pue Jaquieds( ‘J8QUIBAON

%ol woJj ejep Jo abeiaAe ue asn 3jg 8y} ‘@ouewiopad [euoneu yiewyouaq 01N

%8 "UMOUY| Jou sI shiels asoym ajdoad BunoA jo slequinug

J

Ul uononpal |eiuesgns ay} Aq Joj pajunodoe ag ued Jed ul jey} ‘pJed Wodal ¢ Jeuenbd
8y} @ouls aseasoul Jybiis e si siy] ‘1 JJN @9 0} pawnsse ale oym jng ‘Umouy jou m.?
snies |enjoe asoym ajdoad BunoA swos Buipnjoul ‘einbiy .| 33N paisnipe, auyl si sIy |
%01 "(%€°9) spea ul ajdoad BunoA 133N ZEL 81em alsy) €10z Aeniged Jo pus sy} Iy
(g1 994 — 21 uer) 133N a.1e oym ajdoad BunoA jo abejusdiad :9AIn)

auleseq ay} puiyaq Aioys

%6

- %L1

SUMOUY| JOU JO SJaquinu Ul SUOIIONPal [eljUBISqNS :|8ARJ) JO uoljdalig Mues Buinoidwi pue souewlopad [euoneu o) deb Buiso|) 9wy

"awll] 1.1} 8y} JoJ aoe|dylom ay) Jejua 01 Bunjoo| ajdoad BunoA
Joquiy 10} sebusjjeyd siuasaid uINJUMOP 2ILIOUOIS JUBLIND 8y "Sawo2ino Jood ajdinw aAey usyjo oym ajdoad BunoA 1oj sjoadsoud pue suonelidse
‘@ aslel ued am ‘abus|jeyo Jenoied e si | 3N aleym seale pue sdnolb Bunabie) Ag -eouewuopad O1LIOU0I8 ||BIBAO S A)O By) siloddns
alojoiay) pue aduspuadapul dlLOU0Id pue sjoadsold ‘@ouspiuod s gidoad BunoA sesealtoul | 33 ul Buleg uoissasqo ue siy} st AYp
douel{ UOSI)Y pue poom}ea|{ UiLelN ‘pe9d; 919 ueuualg |ned :pea) 991
(133) 91| 10} S|[IXS Y} dABY pue
Buiuiesy 1o uonieonpa ‘QuawAojdwa Ul siIequinu 9sealdu| uoIssasqO 'y fuoud  Buluies) Jo s|oA9) e e |jlom op ajdoad BunoA pue uaipiyd 1z dwoonQ
(Bny ¢ uo abe) g| pue /| ‘9| abe olwepeoe jo sjdoad Bunop  :uonejndod €10z AeN 01 - pJeog isni] s,uaip|iyd :Bunesy

€1-Z10Z YO spJed Joday ue|d s.9|doad Buno pue uaipiyd —3snil s,.uaipjiyd



sJauped 10}08s yiie) pue Ajlunwiwod ‘AlejunjoA pue uabi ‘sjoadsold ‘@d1Alas YInoA ay) ‘aied |eloos jnpe ‘siapiaoid
BlIS|O ‘sh|d anuaoqor ‘siakojdwa ‘Ajlwey pue sjualed ‘ajdoad BunoA ‘seoinles Buisnoy ‘siapinold 9y ‘s8b8]j00 J4 pue sjooyos Aejd 01 9joa e yjIm siaujed

‘'s9jel | 39N uo joedw [eiuelsgns e aAey jou pjnoys abueyo

SIY} ‘SPaa7 Ul S[9A8] UMOUY JOU 82NpaJ 0} SYIUOW JUuddalJ Ul YIOM dAI}084D

ay} JO 8snedag ‘syjuow 8.y} Jaye ,umouy jou, 0} Bunneyap spiodal Jisy)
ueyy Jayiel ‘Auanoe aanisod e 0} passalboid aaey Aayy [nun | JgN ulewal |[Im
ajdoad BunoA ‘gLz [udy wol4 "ebeusdiad | JIN 8y} Buissaiddns Ajjeloiinie
SpJo2aJ ,umouy Jou, Jo s|oAd] ybiy jo 10edwi ay) aonpal 0} ‘sainbly | 33N oy}
0} Jojoey} Juswisnlpe ue paldde sey uoneanp3 1o Juswuedaq ay) £00Z @0uUIS
juswdojanap ejeq

‘0b9)|0D A)ID spasaT je aied |ewiue ul 8Sin0o

e 10} A|dde 0} wea} ay} wol) uoddns paaledal uosiad BunoA Jayjoue ‘aus

uo sjewiue ay) Joy Buled uspiem ayy yym Bupiom sayy “Bulieies ul uoneoiijenb
e spJemo) Buijiom unbag mou sey usyoy ay} ul pajsisse oym uosliad

BunoA auQ ‘AjjigeAojdwa Jiay) 8ouByUS pue S)S8JdlUI JIBY) Yyojew Jey} SalliAloe
pue syse} 1no Aled 0} | 33N Ajpuadino ale oym ojdoad BunoA jo dnoub |jews

e 10} saijiunuoddo Buuasjunjoa apinoid wie4 weysul je 82IAI8S YINOA ay |
Ajjeoo| syiom jeym

'sda)si00p J18y} Uo Sp|o Jeak

61-91 133N obebus-al 0} 1S9\ YLION JBUU| Y} JO SaIjIUNWIWO d1109ds

106.4e)] 0] pakojdep aq |Im ABojouyos) ajIqow Yiim SIoyIom YINoA ‘eale 1SOpN
YHON 1S9\ 98U} 10} ue|d uoljoe WealjSyIOM SSaUSSIOM 8y} Jo LUed sy e

"'S9a)IWIWO0D eale ybnoliyl Ajjeoo] paulwlisiep ‘esiuelentb

1slje1oads pue pajabie) ‘|esiaAlun e JaAljep 0} ‘Spaa] ul uoisinoid ynoA

0} sebueyo 1o} sjesodoud ay} Juswajdwi 0} uibaq |[IM YIOAA 1 JIN donpal
0] SaAljelIUIl JO JUOJjaI0) 8y] 1B SI A||ed0o] pue apIm-AlIo Yyloq ‘uoisinocid YjnoA e

‘suolesiuebiio jo abuels e yym aoe|d ul aiom jey) uolisinoid 82IAI8S

SuUOIXauuo0) J0} S}oeljuod Bunsixe Jo Jaquinu e saoejdal uabl yjim 10esjuod
mau ay] ‘|udy | uo suibaq aoiales OY| pajebie} oy} Joj JOBIJUOD MBU BY| e

‘uoissalbolid pue Buiuies|

91 1sod Jnoge suonsanb payse aq Aew pue saljiwe} J1oy} pue sjdoad BunoA

UlIM dJom oym siaxlom Joddns pue sjeuoissajoud isieloads uou o} s||ijs
Bunsodubis oy| apinoid 0} 108loid Juswdojaaaq 80I0PHOAN V] UB 10lId  ©

"Ll Jea A ul Bujuies| aysyo Buipuspe ate oym gl-jsod o} uoissaibolid

0] sJauleq aney oym sjdoad BunoA djay 01 slojoes pue siopiroid

SS0JOE S|opow uoljisued) ajgeurelsns juswa|dwi pue dojaasap o} Buiuunu
uaaq sey jey) 109foid Y4y Aloalaq |BD0T By} JO UOIENBAS S)EUapUN e
suol}oe MaN

‘'sAepiljoy jooyos Buunp AjAnoe Buipnjoul ‘suoissas uaAss Jo awwelboid e
ul ayedioiued 0] ajdoad BunoA G| sajqeus yiom siy ] | JJN Buiwooaq Jo ysu
1e a|doad BunoA syebie} gnH YnoA spaa Yyinosg e 108lold uonedidsy ay |
‘Buiuies| 0} psebal yum saljiwey Jidy) UIYlIM sapniijie pue sinoireyaq
aAlIsod pue | 33 Buleq ajdoad BunoA usamieq uone|a.i0o Buodis e sl
aloy| Juswdojonsp Buiutes) Jioyl yum saljiwe) Loddns 01 s181snjo SSIHOD
pue SYYOMIIN a4l ul pasn Buiaq si ainjeubig Buluies Ajjwe4 ay |
‘BuluoissIlLwo9 Jo ssaoc0.d dyj Ul [|13S aJe SId)sn|o
1y} YJOM UOIJUBAIBIUI [BOO] J1j198ds 8y} JO 8wWOs JO uodadxa ay) YIm
Buiuuny pue dn Ajin} aie swwelbolid ay) Jo syoadse ||y "Buluied) 1o uoleonps
quawAojdwae 0} passalboid Ajnjssaoons pey zz| pue swwelbold 10e4uod)
ylnoA 8y} uo payels pey ajdoad BunoA y6Z ‘€10z Alenuer Jopus aylly e

"9, Z2°8 JO djel [euoieu 8y} mojaq si (9%,0° /) umouy jou jo abejuadlad spaoT

ay} eyl smoys (§10z Aieniga4 wouy) ejep aAiesedwod Juadal Jsow ay |

133 03 shkemyjed yum wayy djay o} uoddns pajabie) pasayo aq ued Aay)

‘133N Buleq se paijuapl ale sjdoad BunoA aiaym jey; sueasw siy] ‘[|ed

alejlop\ 1o asn ybnouy) pue sdeams | 39N Buunp ajdoad BunoA 10e1U00

0] sJapinold suoixauuo) Ag uayeuspun 3Jom ay} 0} anp ‘€10z Areniqe
pue 10z JoqWaAoON usamiaq 000} Ueyl alow AQ ||8) S|OAS] UMOUY JON e
auop aAey am Jeymp

Page’188
I

‘sjidnd 18b6unoA 1oy sjuspnis AlISISAIUN JO SJUBPNIS [OAS]-Y WoJ) SYISIA Buisiuebio pue Ajjuspuadapul BulAll JO YJ0M Ul pasn 8q ued Aayl Moy 0} SUOSS9|

ul padojanap s||is pue abpajmous ay) Bupull ‘Jsiues uoneonpa sisased Buipels :Buipnjoul ‘uoieonps siealed anoidwi pinoo S|00yds Moy 0} se suolsabbns
yym dn awoo Ajsnoinaid aaey ajdoad Buno A sjidnd Aiepuooas 1o} anssi Juenodul }sow ayj Sem S|0oyos Alepuodas ul 8ouepinb pue adlApe ‘uoljewloul
sJ99Je0 Buinoidwi jey) paalbe Aay| "uo snooy 0} 8y Isow pjnom Aay} 1ey; senssi ayj uo pajoa ajdoad BunoA ‘(A)10 ay) ssoloe wol) syuapnis jo Bunsisuoo
pJeoq e) 10z lequianoN Ul pleog sJtaulea] abusjieyn uoneanp3 spea oyl jo Bunsaw [einbneul ayy 1y yuiyy ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiys op jJeypa

€1-Z10Z vO spJe) Joday ue|d s,9|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd —3sniL s,uaipjiyd



68T abed

2012/13 Children's Services Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period : Quarter 4 2012/13

Overall

Contribution to Cross Council Priorities
Progress

Progress Summary Supporting Measures Target Q1 Q2 Executive Portfolio

Q4
Neighbourhoods,
N/A Planning and Support
Services

Neighbourhoods,
74% 70% 73% 72% 74% Planning and Support
Services

The completion of appraisals was significantly higher than 11/12 , however the
completion of 6 month reviews was disappointing. Managers have attended the
performance ratings workshops in preparation for the introduction of the ratings
.In2013/14 HR will be working with managers within social care to support
more employees to complete their appraisals online.

Appraisals Every year 100% of staff have an appraisal 100% N/A

Throughout the survey year the Directorate has noted a comparable set of
engagement scores (Q4 74%, Q3 72%, Q2 73% and Q1 70%), each quarter
achieving a higher result than the council wide average. All performance gaps
have improved since Q1, with Q4 finishing above the council wide average in
this area as well. CSLT and HR Business Partners have reviewed the years
data with a view to formulating specific service area action plans, it is the
intention to link this into IIP Action Plans.

Extent to which the council is delivering what staff need to feel

Staff engagement engaged

There was 87% compliance with the criteria. Some reports could be even
stronger in this regard if section 4.1 included more detail of how people were
consulted, and how their views affected the decision. This can include reference

Consultation to other sections of the report if these describe the consultation. Care should
also be taken to very clearly state if and when it was not appropriate to consult
the public on any decisions. Two reports failed to meet the criteria.

Every year we will be able to evidence that consultation has taken
place in 100 per cent of major decisions affecting the lives of 100%
communities

Leader

67% of reports provided evidence that met the criteria (12/18)

The six that did not provide sufficient evidence to meet the criteria did not
explicitly reference in the relevant section of the reports how due regard to
equality had been considered within the proposals and if any impacts were
identified. Of these 5 of the reports were produced for Executive Board which
raises an issue about the signing off process within the Directorate. A QA has

Equality been undertaken to determine how due regard to equality is demonstrated
overall. As with previous quarters report writers are complying with the
requirements of the report writing guidance with relevant narrative explicitly
referencing potential impacts and findings from the screening and ElAs. The
QA carried out identified some very good examples of evidence where the
equality considerations are a key part of the decision making process. The
outcomes from the QA exercise will be discussed with the Directorate inform
future reports and in particular the signing off process.

Every year we will be able to evidence that equality issues have been

o
considered in 100 per cent of major decisions 100%

Leader

The directorate is projecting an underspend of £983k against the net managed
budget of £132m. At the end of February 2013, there were 82 children & young
people in externally provided residential placements and 311 children & young

Keep within budget people in placements with Independent Fostering Agencies. These placement
numbers are marginally above the 2012/13 Turning the Curve financial model
with overall externally provided placement numbers being +16 [-19 residential
and +35 fostering] more than that anticipated in the model.

No variation from agreed directorate budget in the year £0 Leader

D Docs\2\8\7\A100043782\$t303tfcb.xls




06T abed

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary P?::::;IS Supporting Measures Target Executive Portfolio

Create the environment for effective
partnership working

Deliver the Children and Young People’s Plan
(CYPP) with the aim of creating a Child
Friendly City

Put in place a joined-up children’s directorate

Build a strong relationship with schools which
delivers improved outcomes and develops
their role in their local area

Develop a high performing and skilled
workforce

Partnership commitment to the outcomes of the CYPP was renewed at a CYPP
refresh meeting where members of the Youth Council attended. This meeting
included an OBA session exploring the issues around substance misuse, as for
2013 onwards we have added minimising substance misuse as part of priority
7. This reflects the importance of the misuse of drugs, alcohol and tobacco by
children and adults and its role as a primary factor in many poor outcomes. The
format of Children's Trust Board meetings has been revised to be run as
workshops at every meeting. This means that meetings are more productive in
securing commitments across the partnership to take forward specific shared
pieces of work.

Recent work on making Leeds a child friendly city has focused on gathering the
pace and audience for involvement in Child Friendly Leeds through liaison with
external organisations such as businesses and third sector groups; increasing
children and young people's involvement; further strengthening governance
arrangements; ambassador recruitment; and embedding the brand and
developing engagement strategies with all partners. Momentum is building in
terms of city-wide ‘sign-up’ and robust systems developed to record pledges of
support. Two Olympic divers, Alicia Blagg and Hannah Starling have agreed to
be CFC ambassadors. Leeds Rhino player Danny McGuire has agreed to be an
ambassador focusing on promoting uptake of free school meals.

The restructure of the Skills for Life service is progressing, with some staff
having been transferred to City Development to better align work with the
Employment and Skills service. Restructuring is also still in the consultation
phase for the music service and the sensory service.

Complete restructure of children’s services

Relationships with schools are now greatly improved compared to the starting
point when this measure was set. The local authority structure is stabilised,
though greatly reduced in size. A sign of the improvement in relationships is that
there is an honest and mature approach to the quality of provision. A new school
improvement strategy makes clear the local authority view of schools. The
relationships with most sponsors and most convertor academies are now good
and improving.

A good deal of work has been undertaken over recent months to develop the
new Workforce Development service, due to be fully in place by the end of April.
This will ensure that each Head of Service has a named workforce development
colleague who can work with them to identify training needs and ensure that a
high quality programme is developed. The new Workforce Development
Service has three priorities, to be: child friendly; informed by restorative
practices; and research informed. To this end, we are beginning to make good
links with the three Universities in the city as well as with others in the wider
region.

In early May we are running seven large Restorative Practice Awareness
events. Each of these events will allow up to 100 people to attend a morning of
training in RP theory and practice.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\2\8\7\AI00043782\$t303tfcb.xls

New
structures at
tier 5 in place
by June 2012

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services



T6T abed

Maintain percentage of children’s homes that are rated good or better 100% by

by Ofsted 2015

Increase percentage of council-run children’s centres that are rated 82%

good or better by Ofsted ©

Increase percentage of pupil referral units rated good or better by o,

100%

Ofsted

Maintain per ge of initial 1ents carried out by social care o
A 80%

within timescale

Maintain percentage of in-depth (or core) assessments carried out by 85%

social care within timescale
Increase percentage of children in care with a qualified social worker  100%

Maintain percentage of children with a child protection plan with a

o
qualified social worker 100%

Increase percentage of complaints resolved within 20 days 83%

Maintain percentage of complaints resolved by the initial investigation 95% ----
1 o
n et Overall R A
City Priority Plans Headline Indicator
Progress

Help children to live in safe and supportive families. Reduce the number of children in care

Raise the level of attendance: primary schools 3
Improve behaviour, attendance and achievement.
Raise the level of attendance: secondary schools 3

Reduce the number of 16- to 19-year-olds who are not in education, employment or
training 4

Increase the levels of young people in employment, education or training.

Self Assessmen

During quarter 4 Children's services were successful in meeting all seven LILAC standards. LILAC (Leading Improvements for Looked After Children) is a unique initiative in which young people with experience of the Care system have developed their own good practice standards for services and are
trained to assess the performance of local providers against these LILAC standards. The outcome of the assessment of LILAC is important because it is based on the views and experiences of young people and their carers. Achieving this standard is a good measure of our progress in developing a
more Child Friendly city and a child-centred social work service. It shows that the new ways of working are making a real difference to the lives of looked after children and young people. As future OfSTED inspections will similarly base their inspections on interviews with children and carers so
success in this assessment gives some more confidence that improvements are making a difference and being recognised by children and carers.

Data from the autumn term of 2012 shows that attendance rates are still higher than in the same term of 2010/11 but the increases observed in autumn 2011 have not been sustained in the autumn 2012 term. Falls in attendance at both the primary and secondary phases are largely due to increases in
illness in the autumn term. Comparative data covering the autumn 2012 term nationally will be available in the summer term.

The next round of full children's homes inspections begins in April 2013. Each home has one full inspection, followed by one interim inspection each year. During 2012/13 seven out of the eleven homes were judged to be making good progress at their interim inspections. This is the highest grade that
can be given at an interim inspection and means that a home has demonstrated continuous improvement in quality of care and outcomes for children and young people, and where appropriate has addressed all requirements and the large majority of recommendations raised at the previous full
inspection. This gives some confidence that the direction of travel during the next round of full inspections could be for more homes to be judged as good overall.

This is the last time that timeliness indicators will be reported for initial and core assessments as the DfE's revised statutory 'Working together to safeguard children' guidance that came into effect on 15 April removed the distinction between initial and core assessments.

To benchmark national performance, the DfE use an average of data from November, December and January of each year. This is usually published nationally around April but is not yet available at the time of writing. The projected out-turn for Leeds for 2012 is 6.6%, a reduction from 8.1% in 2011.
Not known levels fell by more than 1000 during quarter 4, due to the work undertaken by Connexions providers to contact young people during NEET sweeps and through use of Welfare Call. This means that where young people are identified as being NEET, they can be offered targeted support to
help them with pathways to EET. The most recent comparative data (from February 2013) shows that the Leeds percentage of not known (7.0%) was below the national rate of 8.2%.

Notes

1 - The percentage of complaints resolved within 20 working days can only be calculated 20 working days after the end of each quarter, and complainants have 20 working days after this point to decide if they wish to take a complaint to stage 2.

2 - Snapshot indicator, as at 30 June 2012, 30 September 2012, 31 December 2012 and 31 March 2013. Please note that in-year data on the number of looked after children is provisional and is confirmed the following autumn.

3 - The quarter 1 result is for half-terms 1 and 2 of the 2011/12 academic year. The quarter 2 result is for half-terms 1 to 4 of the 2011/12 academic year. The quarter 3 result is for half-terms 1 to 5 of the 2011/12 academic year. This quarter 4 result is for half-terms 1 and 2 of the 2012/13 academic year.
4 - The NEET and Not Known figures reported above are the positions as at 30 June 2012, 30 September 2012, 31 December 2012 and 31 March 2013.

D Docs\2\8\7\A100043782\$t303tfcb.xls

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services

Children's Services



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



£6T abed

Appendix 3 - CYPP Performance Summary

The table below shows a summary of the position for each priority, and an indication of the difference between performance reported at the end
of March 2013 and March 2012.

Indicator Summary Performance
Q4 Q4 .
201112 | 2012113 | Difference
The number of children in care at the end of March 2013 is 1,377; 98 lower (6.6
per cent) than the same period 12 months ago, and, excepting January, is also
. lower than at any point since November 2009. The impact of the Duty and 1377
Obsession: Advice Team is seen in the number of referrals to the Children’s Social Work 1475 853
Number of Service: almost 20 per cent fewer in 2012/13 than in 2011/12 (11,357 96.9 per 000,
looked after compared to 14,122). This has supported the reduction in children looked after, | 10;]02312 March 2013
g | Children and helped to ensure that the Children’s Social Work Service is focused on e (provisional)
S children with the greatest levels of need.
5
"Z The number of children subject to a child protection plan has risen steadily over
© the last 12 months; March’s figure of 993 is 79 higher (8.6 per cent) than the
» Number of March 2012 figure, and is the second highest figure of the 2012-13 financial 993
children subject | year. All children subject to a child protection plan are allocated to a qualified 890 615 er
to Child social worker, and are seen regularly and reviewed in a timely manner. The 57.5 per 1(5,080 ®
Protection number of child protection reviews completed within timescales each month Ma1r2;10(2)812 March 2013
Plans remains high, with at least 95 per cent of reviews held within time every month (provisional)
since September.
% Data from the 2012 autumn term show that attendance rates are still higher
o) than in the same term of 2010/11 but the increases observed in autumn 2011 95.9% 94.8% .
c O . . .
€ = | Obsession: have not been sustained in the autumn 2012 term. lliness accounts for a large Primary Primary
© é Primary and proportion of this increase in apsence. .This is also the first term when data
o secondary have been collected for Reception pupils. 94.1% 93.8%
= % | attendance Secondary | Secondary .
2 @ 2011-12 2012-13
o HT1-2 HT1-2
Q




¥6T abed

Indicator Summary Performance
Q4 Q4 .
201112 | 2012113 | Difference
To benchmark national performance, the DfE use an average of data from 8.1% 6.6%
Obsession: 16- November, December, and January of each year. The projected 2012 out-turn Nov —Jan Nov —Jan
19 year olds for Leeds is 6.6 per cent, a reduction from 8.1 per cent in 2011. In November average (pfg\ﬁ;?gfal)
who are NEET 2012, the rate in Leeds was 5.9 per cent and the national NEET rate was 5.8
per cent, so for the first time Leeds was in line with national performance at this 7.7% 6.3%
point. Leeds is now ranked 80th of 148 local authorities on this measure. Feb 2012 Feb 2013
63 per cent of children reached a good level of development in Leeds in 2012,
continuing the steady rise since 2008. Leeds is in the second quartile of local
Foundation authorities for this indicator. The ‘low achievers gap’ indicator narrowed slightly . .
Stage good in 2012, from 35.0 per cent to 33.6 per cent, but is still yvider than the national 58% 63%
level of gap of 30.1 per cent. 2011/12 was the last year that children were assessed aigg%/rmc 320(;1(’16/;]?0 ®
development against this framework. A revised EYFS curriculum was launched in September year year
2012, placing a strong focus on three prime areas of learning: communication
and language, physical development, and personal, social and emotional
development.
£ Statutory assessment at the end of Key Stage 2 was amended in 2012, with the
5 writing test being replaced with teacher assessment. This change, along with
o the partial boycott of tests in 2010, means that the outcomes across the last
= IK ey Iatfge 2 three years are not directly comparable. With these caveats in mind, there has 73% 7%
g evel been improvement on the combined English and maths indicator; however, 2010/11 2011/12 2
£ English and similar improvements have been observed nationally, meaning that Leeds is academic academic
4 maths two percentage points below national and three percentage points below year year
3 statistical neighbour LAs on the combined indicator. Leeds is ranked 107th on
° this indicator.
g The percentage of pupils in Leeds achieving the headline measure of five or
g more GCSEs (or equivalent) at grades A*-C, including GCSEs in English and
= . maths, has improved 1.3 percentage points in 2012, to 55.0 per cent. Leeds o 0
B _5+ A 'C_GCSE remains below the national figure, though national results improved by only half 53.7% 95.0%
c inc English and , . . 2010/11 201112 ®
= a percentage point to 59.4 per cent, meaning that Leeds has slightly narrowed academic academic
T | maths the gap to the national average. Leeds is ranked 123rd of 151 local authorities year year
i on this indicator, placing Leeds in the bottom quartile in 2012.
Q




G6T abed

Healthy lifestyles

Indicator Summary Performance
Q4 Q4 .
201112 | 2012113 | Difference
50 per cent of 19 year olds achieved a level three qualification in 2012, which is
in line with Leeds’ performance for the previous year. Performance nationally
has increased to 55 per cent, meaning that the percentage point gap to national
Level 3 rates has grown wider. The gap in attainment at age 19 between those young 50% 50%
qualifications at | people formerly eligible for free school meals at academic age 15, and those 201011 201112
19 not eligible, closed nationally by 0.6 percentage points to 24.2 percentage academic academic
points, whereas in Leeds this grew by three percentage points to 32 percentage year year
points.
There were 2,213 apprenticeship starts by 16 to 18 year-olds in Leeds between
August 2011 and July 2012; this is a 16.3 per cent rise on the starts recorded in
16-18 year olds | the same period in 2010/11. Nationally, there was a 1.4 per cent decrease 2037 2214
starting between the two periods. The launch of the Apprenticeship Training agency in 2010/11 2011/12 ®
apprenticeships | November, as part of the Leeds City Deal, will allow micro, small and medium Aug to Jul Aug to Jul
sized businesses to take on apprenticeships with less risk on those businesses.
Projections for 2012/13 show an increase in short breaks to 1,345 children and
134,749 hours, from 1,261 children and 133,386 hours in 2011/12. The 2012/13
Children and short break capital allocation is on track to be spent within timescales. The 1345
families REACH figure for 2011/12 was 0.78 per cent; this is projected to rise to 0.83 1261 012113
accessing short | per cent for the end of 2012/13. (REACH refers to the number of disabled 2011712 financial year &
breaks children regularly receiving short breaks as percentage of the general 0-18 financial year |~ ection)
population.)
Data from the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) show that the
rates of childhood obesity in the city continue to be high and fairly static for both
' Reception (9.3 per cent) and Year 6 (19.7 per cent) children. Analysis from 19.9% 19.7%
Obesity levels previous years shows that children in deprived parts of Leeds are more likely to 2010/11 2011/12
at year 6 be obese than children in non-deprived parts of Leeds. academic academic
year year




96T abed

Voice and influence

Indicator Summary Performance
Q4 Q4 .
201112 | 2012113 | Difference

Uptake of free Leeds free school meal take-up is consistently below national levels, with 76.9% Data for
school meals - around 4,QOO c_hlldren and young peop_le not takl_ng their entitlement. In the grglmgao;y 2012/13
primary and 201 j/12 fmanmgl year, the gaps to national continued to narrow at secondary, Seco'nd;r financial N/A
secondary but increased significantly at primary. Packed lunches are often the preferred 2010/11 Y | year pot yet

option, with an estimated 57,400 students not taking a school-provided meal. financial year available

The citywide teenage conception rate was on a downward trend but local area
Teenage updates are no Ionger.available from the Departmept for Educa.ti.on (DfE). The 43.4 38.2
conceptions DfE’s decision and rationale to stop these updates is bel_ng clarified. Rate_s in Dec 2010 Sep 2011
(rate per 1000) Leeds have reduced for the past ten quarters; progress is faster than regional rolling rolling

and national rates for the past four quarters, although the overall Leeds rate is average average

still higher than the national rate.

The number of children and young people that have offended at least once and
% of 10 to 17 have reqeived a formal legal outcome has dropped by _354_ (-32.4 per cent) from
year-olds the previous 12 months’ total. The year-on-year reduction in the number of 1.5% 1.1%

young people that offend is greater than the decline in the general 10-17 2011/12 2011/12

committing one
or more offence

population. From the 2009/10 baseline, the general 10-17 population has
dropped by 7.8 per cent, whilst the number of young people that have offended
at least once has fallen by 61.7 per cent.

financial year

financial year

Children and
young people's
influence in the
community

The results of the 2011/12 Every Child Matters survey show that 56 per cent of
primary, 45 per cent of secondary, and 39 per cent of PRU/SILC pupils think
they have at least a fair amount of influence over the way things are run in the
area where they live. Across all year groups this equates to 52 per cent, which
is a fall from 58 per cent in the 2010/11 results. Child Friendly Leeds
consultation confirmed that lack of influence in local areas and the city is an
issue and that perceived influence is greater in school and at home than
elsewhere.

58%
2010/11
academic
year

52%
2011/12
academic
year




Agenda ltem 11

Report author: Sandra Pentelow
Tel: 2474792

== CITY COUNCIL

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)
Date: 28" June 2013

Subject: Work Schedule

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [] Yes X No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the
forthcoming municipal year.

2 Main issues

2.1 Further to the discussions already held with the Director and Executive Board
Members during today’s meeting, Members are now requested to translate the
decisions made around the chosen topics for Scrutiny into a work schedule for the
forthcoming municipal year.

2.2 A draft work schedule is attached. Already included within the draft work schedule
are the traditional items of Scrutiny work and the continuation of work from the
2012/13 municipal year. These involve performance monitoring, recommendation
tracking and Budget and Policy Framework Plans.

3. Recommendations

3.1 Members are asked to prioritise the topics identified for Scrutiny and incorporate
these into its work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year.

4. Background papers1 - None used

! The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 198



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14

Area of review June July August
Inquiries Agree scope of review for - Evidence Gathering
1) Clusters
2) Inquiry 2 Board Agree Reports*
3) Inquiry 3 Supporting Children to achieve in Maths and English
Directors Response CTB Response
NEET Inquiry Partnership Inquiry

Annual work programme Consider potential
setting - Board initiated pieces | areas of review
of Scrutiny work (if applicable)

Budget Budget Update 2013/14
T
@ Exec Board Request for
SA Scrutiny — Youth Offer Working group meeting
«

Policy Review
Basic Need — Exec Board July

Recommendation Tracking Comprehensive Progress Report — « Attendance Inquiry
Private Fostering Inquiry, LSCB and «  Service Redesign Inquiry
Director of C3 « Pre 2012 outstanding recommendations

Leeds Safeguarding Children — Draft
Performance Monitoring Quarter 4 Performance | Annual Report
Report

Working Groups 1) Youth Offer Working Group

“Prepared by S Pentelow

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14

Area of review September October November
Inquiries Evidence Gathering Evidence Gathering Evidence Gathering
Board Agree Reports* Board Agree Reports* Board Agree Reports*
The Best Start — providing good
foundations in early life for Directors Response Directors Response
children to succeed. Supporting Children to achieve in Maths | The Best Start — providing good foundations in early
and English life for children to succeed.

e —
Exec Board Request for

Scrutiny — Youth Offer

NNz abp 4

" * Young Carers » Comprehensive Progress « External Placement Inquiry
! Recommendation Tracking e Private Care Homes Report — NEET Inquiry  Partnership Inquiry
Inquiry — e Child Poverty Update and
3 Recommendation Recommendation Tracking
D including report on the
Residential Home
Charter.
Policy Review New Government requirements for
Education ( Academies, Free Developing the Leeds Offer for Kinship Carers
Schools....) Ref resolution meeting
Dec 12
Performance Monitoring Progress on Supporting Children and Families,

Strengthening Social Care, 9 point plan including
Social Services Care System update and impact
report.

Working Groups

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14

Area of review December January February
Inquiries Evidence Gathering Evidence Gathering Evidence Gathering
Board Agree Reports” Board Agree Reports* Board Agree Reports*

P N —§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§$—§$§$—§—$§—$R—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§S§—§—§—$—§—§—§—§—§—$—$R$—$—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§—§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§—§—§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$§$R—§—§—R—R—R—§—$—§—§$§$—§$§$§$§$§$§$§—§
Budget Initial Budget Proposals 2014/15 and

Budget Update

Exec Board Request for
! Scrutiny — Youth Offer

TNnZ abp
.- |

>Recommendation Tracking

Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 performance report

Working Groups

“Prepared by S Pentelow
Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14

Area of review

March

April

Inquiries

Board Agree Reports"

Directors Response

Board Agree Reports*

Directors Response

Partnership Review - Children’s
Trust Board

Partnership Review

Budget and Policy Framework?

Recommendation Tracking

pul |

Performance Monitoring

)

Quarter 3 performance report

073

Working Groups

D
D
o)

Need to schedule Ofsted report

“Prepared by S Pentelow

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting

Updated - 19™ June 2013

WG — Working Group Meeting



	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 25th April 2013 (Ordinary and Call-in meetings)
	Minutes - 25th April 2013 (b)

	7 Co-opted Members
	8 Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference
	Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference - Appendix A
	Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference - Appendix B

	9 Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board
	Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board - Appendix 1
	Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board - Appendix 2
	Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board - Appendix 3
	Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board - Appendix 4
	Sources of work and areas of priority for the Scrutiny Board - Appendix 5

	10 2012-13 Quarter 4 Performance Report
	2012-13 Quarter 4 Performance Report - Appendix 1
	2012-13 Quarter 4 Performance Report - Appendix 2
	2012-13 Quarter 4 Performanec Report - Appendix 3

	11 Work Schedule
	Work Schedule - Appendix 1


